Public Document Pack

sir ddinbych Y2
-«

County Council

To: Members of the Planning Committee Date: 10 February 2015

Direct Dial: 01824 712568

e-mail: dcc_admin@denbighshire.gov.uk

Dear Councillor

You are invited to attend a meeting of the PLANNING COMMITTEE to be held at 9.30
am on WEDNESDAY, 18 FEBRUARY 2015 in THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, COUNTY
HALL, RUTHIN.

Yours sincerely
G Williams
Head of Legal and Democratic Services

AGENDA

1 APOLOGIES

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (Pages 11 - 12)

Members to declare any personal or prejudicial interests in any business
identified to be considered at this meeting.

3 URGENT MATTERS AS AGREED BY THE CHAIR

Notice of items which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be considered at the
meeting as a matter of urgency pursuant to Section 100B(4) of the Local
Government Act, 1972.

4 MINUTES (Pages 13 - 20)

To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the Planning Committee meeting
held on the 21 January 2015 (copy attached).

APPLICATIONS FOR PERMISSION FOR DEVELOPMENT (ITEMS 5 - 11) -

5  APPLICATION NO. 01/2014/0705/PF - ST DAVIDS CHURCH, ST DAVIDS
LANE AND BROOKHOUSE ROAD DENBIGH (Pages 21 - 44)



10

11

To consider an application for construction of a multi-user active travel route
at land between St Davids Church, St Davids Lane and Brookhouse Road
Denbigh (copy attached).

APPLICATION NO. 01/2014/1390 - 51 MYTTON PARK, DENBIGH (Pages
45 - 64)

To consider an application for erection of extensions and alterations to
dwelling at 51 Mytton Park, Denbigh (copy attached).

APPLICATION NO. 18/2014/0793/PF - PENTRE MAWR COUNTRY HOUSE
HOTEL, LLANDYRNOG, DENBIGH (Pages 65 - 98)

To consider an application for change of use of outbuildings to form 2 no.
self-contained suites of hotel letting accommodation, demolition of steel silo,
steel framed agricultural building and stone wall; installation of a package
treatment plant and associated works at Pentre Mawr Country House Hotel,
Llandyrnog Denbigh (copy attached).

APPLICATION NO. 18/2014/0794/LB - PENTRE MAWR COUNTRY
HOUSE HOTEL, LLANDYRNOG, DENBIGH (Pages 99 - 122)

To consider a Listed Building application for change of use of outbuildings to
form 2 no. self-contained suites of hotel letting accommodation, demolition of
steel silo, steel framed agricultural building and stone wall; installation of a
package treatment plant and associated works at Pentre Mawr Country
House Hotel, Llandyrnog Denbigh (copy attached).

APPLICATION NO. 21/2014/0032/PF - CLWYD FOREST, MAESHAFN
(Pages 123 - 136)

To consider an application for erection of wooden tool store and shelter for
managing the woodland (retrospective application) at Big Covert, Clwyd
Forest, Maeshafn (copy attached).

APPLICATION NO. 21/2014/0096/PC - CLWYD FOREST, MAESHAFN
(Pages 137 - 152)

To consider an application for retention of existing shed and erection of wood
store (partly in retrospect) at Clwyd Forest, Big Covert Maeshafn Mold (copy
attached).

APPLICATION NO. 24/2014/1246/PS - CRAIG Y DDYWART QUARRY,
RUTHIN (Pages 153 - 164)

To re-consider an application presented to Planning Committee on 21
January 2015 for variation of condition no. 3 of planning permission code no.
24/2007/0694 (granted under appeal) to allow other organisations as
authorised by North Wales Police to be permitted to use the site at Firearms
Training Complex, Craig y Ddywart Quarry, Rhewl, Ruthin (copy attached)



12 TY NANT DEVELOPMENT BRIEF (Pages 165 - 210)

To seek Members’ approval to undertake consultation on the draft Site
Development Brief and the accompanying Strategic Environmental
Assessment with statutory bodies and members of the public (copies
attached). If approved, the Site Development Brief will assist in the
determination of planning applications for this site.

MEMBERSHIP

Councillors

Councillor Raymond Bartley (Chair) Councillor Win Mullen-James (Vice-
Chair)

lan Armstrong Bob Murray

Joan Butterfield Peter Owen

Jeanette Chamberlain-Jones Dewi Owens

Bill Cowie Merfyn Parry

Ann Davies Paul Penlington

Meirick Davies Arwel Roberts

Richard Davies David Simmons

Stuart Davies Bill Tasker

Peter Evans Julian Thompson-Hill

Huw Hilditch-Roberts Joe Welch

Rhys Hughes Cefyn Williams

Alice Jones Cheryl Williams

Pat Jones Huw Williams

Barry Mellor

COPIES TO:

All Councillors for information
Press and Libraries
Town and Community Councils



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 1

WELCOME TO DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL'S
PLANNING COMMITTEE

HOW THE MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED

Unless the Chair of the Committee advises to the contrary, the order in which the main items will be taken will follow the
agenda set out at the front of this report.

General introduction
The Chair will open the meeting at 9.30am and welcome everyone to the Planning Committee.
The Chair will ask if there are any apologies for absence and declarations of interest.

The Chair will invite Officers to make a brief introduction to matters relevant to the meeting.

Officers will outline as appropriate items which will be subject to public speaking, requests for deferral, withdrawals,
special reports, and any Part 2 items where the press and public may be excluded. Reference will be made to additional
information circulated in the Council Chamber prior to the start of the meeting, including the late
representations/amendments summary sheets (‘Blue Sheets’) and any supplementary or revised plans relating to items
for consideration.

The Blue Sheets'contain important information, including a summary of material received in relation to items on the
agenda between the completion of the main reports and the day before the meeting. The sheets also set out the
proposed running order on planning applications, to take account of public speaking requests.

In relation to the running order of items, any Members seeking to bring forward consideration of an item will be expected
to make such a request immediately following the Officer's introduction. Any such request must be made as a formal
proposal and will be subject to a vote.

The Planning Committee consists of 30 elected Members. In accordance with protocol, 15 Members must be present at
the start of a debate on an item to constitute quorum and to allow a vote to be taken.

County Council Members who are not elected onto Planning Committee may attend the meeting and speak on an item,
but are not able to make a proposal to grant or refuse, or to vote.

CONSIDERING PLANNING APPLICATIONS

The sequence to be followed

The Chair will announce the item which is to be dealt with next. In relation to planning applications, reference will be
made to the application number, the location and basis of the proposal, the relevant local Members for the area, and the
Officer recommendation.

If any Member is minded to propose deferral of an item, including to allow for the site to be visited by a Site Inspection
Panel, the request should be made, with the planning reason for deferral, before any public speaking or debate on that
item.

If there are public speakers on an item, the Chair will invite them to address the Committee. Where there are speakers
against and for a proposal, the speaker against will be asked to go first. The Chair will remind speakers they have a
maximum of 3 minutes to address the Committee. Public speaking is subject to a separate protocol.

Where relevant, the Chair will offer the opportunity for Members to read any late information on an item on the 'Blue
Sheets' before proceeding.

Page 5



Prior to any debate, the Chair mayinvite Officers to provide a brief introduction to an item where this is considered to be
worthwhile in view of the nature of the application.

There are display screens in the Council Chamber which are used to show photographs, or plans submitted with
applications. The photographs are taken by Officers to give Members a general impression of a site and its surroundings,
and are not intended to present a case for or against a proposal.

The Chair will announce that the item is open for debate and offer Members opportunity to speak and to make
propositions on the item.

If any application has been subject to a Site Inspection Panel prior to the Committee, the Chair will normally invite those
Members who attended, including the Local Member, to speak first.

On all other applications, the Chair will permit the Local Member(s) to speak first, should he/she/theywish to do so.

Members are normallylimited to a maximum of five minutes speaking time, and the Chair will conduct the debate in
accordance with Standing Orders.

Once a Member has spoken, he/she should not speak again unless seeking clarification of points arising in debate, and
then only once all other Members have had the opportunity to speak, and wih the agreement of the Chair.

At the conclusion of Members debate, the Chair will ask Officers to respond as appropriate to questions and points
raised, including advice on any resolution in conflict with the recommendation.

Prior to proceeding to the vote, the Chair will invite or seek clarification of propositions and seconders for propositions for
or against the Officer recommendation, or any other resolutions including amendments to propositions . Where a
proposition is made contrary to the Officer recommendation, the Chair will seek clarification of the planning reason (s) for
that proposition, in order that this may be recorded in the Minutes of the meeting. The Chair may request comment from

the Legal and Planning Officer on the validity of the stated reason(s).

The Chair will announce when the debate is closed, and that voting is to follow.

The voting procedure

Before requesting Members to vote, the Chair willannounce what resolutions have been made, and how the vote is to
proceed. If necessary, further clarification may be sought of amendments, new or additional conditions and reasons for
refusal, so there is no ambiguity over what the Committee is voting for or against.

If any Member requests a Recorded Vote, this must be dealt with first in accordance with Standing Orders. The Chair
and Officers will clarify the procedure to be followed. The names of each voting Member will be called out and each
Member will announce whether their vote is to grant, to refuse, or to abstain. Officers will announce the outcome of the
vote on the item.

If a vote is to proceed in the normal manner via the electronic voting system, the Chair will ask Officers to set up the
voting screen(s) in the Chamber, and when requested, Members mustrecord their votes by pressing the appropriate
button (see following sheet).

Members have 10 seconds to record their votes once the voting screen is displayed, unless advised otherwise by
Officers.

On failure of the electronic voting system, the vote may be conducted by a show of hands. The Chair and Officers will
clarify the procedure to be followed.

On conclusion of the vote, the Chair will announce the decision on the item.
Where the formal resolution of the Committee is contrary to Officer recommendation, the Chair will requestMembers to
agree the process through which planning conditions or reasons for refusal are to be drafted, in order to release the

Decision Certificate (e.g. delegating authority to the Planning Officer, to the Planning Officer in liaison with Local
Members, or by referral back to Planning Committee for ratification).

Page 6



PLANNING COMMITTEE

VOTING PROCEDURE

Members are reminded of the procedure when casting their vote.
The Chair or Officers will clarify the procedure to be followed as
necessary.

Once the display screens in the Chamber have been cleared in

preparation for the vote and the voting screen appears, Councillors
have 10 seconds to record their vote as follows:

On the voting keyboard press the

+ To GRANT Planning Permission
- To REFUSE Planning Permission
0) to ABSTAIN from voting

Or in the case of Enforcement items:

+ To AUTHORISE Enforcement Action
- To REFUSE TO AUTHORISE Enforcement Action
0 to ABSTAIN from voting

Page 9




This page is intentionally left blank



Ag genda Item 2
sir ddinbych t%

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 County Council

Code of Conduct for Members

DISCLOSURE AND REGISTRATION OF INTERESTS

I, (name)

a *member/co-opted member of Denbighshire County Council
(*please delete as appropriate)

CONFIRM that | have declared a *personal / personal and prejudicial
interest not previously declared in accordance with the provisions of Part
Il of the Council's Code of Conduct for Members, in respect of the

following:-
(*please delete as appropriate)

Date of Disclosure:

Committee (please specify):

Agenda ltem No.

Subject Matter:

Nature of Interest:

(See the note below)*

Signed

Date

*Note: Please provide sufficient detail e.g. ‘1 am the owner of land adjacent to the application for planning permission
made by Mr Jones', or 'My husband / wife is an employee of the company which has made an application for financial
assistance’.

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 4

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Minutes of a meeting of the Planning Committee held in Council Chamber, County Hall,
Ruthin on Wednesday, 21 January 2015 at 9.30 am.

PRESENT

Councillors lan Armstrong, Raymond Bartley (Chair), Joan Butterfield,
Jeanette Chamberlain-Jones, Bill Cowie, Meirick Davies, Richard Davies, Stuart Davies,
Peter Evans, Huw Hilditch-Roberts, Rhys Hughes, Alice Jones, Barry Mellor, Win Mullen-
James  (Vice-Chair), Bob Murray, Peter Owen, Dewi Owens, Merfyn Parry,
Paul Penlington, Arwel Roberts, David Simmons, Bill Tasker, Julian Thompson-Hill,
Joe Welch, Cefyn Williams and Huw Williams

Councillor Bobby Feeley attended on behalf of Local Member, Councillor Hugh Evans.
Lead Member, Councillor Dave Smith .

ALSO PRESENT

Head of Planning and Public Protection (GB); Principal Solicitor — Planning and Highways
(SC); Development Manager (PM); Principal Planning Officer (IW); Senior Engineer,
Traffic and Transportation (MP); Head of Legal, HR and Democratic Services (GW);
Development Planning and Policy Manager (AL) and Committee Administrator (SLW)

1 APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Ann Davies, Pat Jones and
Cheryl Williams

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Councillor Alice Jones — Personal Interest — Agenda Item 5
Councillor Dewi Owens — Personal Interest — Agenda ltem 5
Councillor Huw Hilditch-Roberts — Personal Interest — Agenda Item 7
3 URGENT MATTERS AS AGREED BY THE CHAIR
No urgent matters had been raised.

4 MINUTES

The minutes of the Planning Committee’s meeting held on 10 December 2014 were
submitted.

Councillor Meirick Lloyd Davies requested that when referring to a previous Agenda
item within the minutes, the Agenda item number be noted for ease of reference

RESOLVED that, subject to the above, the minutes of the meeting held on 10
December, 2014 be approved as a correct record.

Page 13



APPLICATIONS FOR PERMISSION FOR DEVELOPMENT (ITEMS 5 - 14)

Applications received requiring determination by the Committee were submitted together
with associated documentation. Reference was also made to late supplementary
information (blue sheets) received since publication of the agenda which related to
particular applications. In order to accommodate public speaking requests, it was agreed
to vary the agenda order of applications accordingly.

5

APPLICATION NO. 40/2013/1585/PO - LAND EAST OF BODELWYDDAN, RHYL

[Councillor Alice Jones declared a personal interest because she owns land
adjacent to the applicant site and is also a member of the Bodelwyddan
Development Action Group].

[Councillor Dewi Owens declared a personal interest because the owners of the
land highlighted for development are known to him].

An application was submitted for an outline planning application at land east of
Bodelwyddan, for the development of 1,715 dwellings, including affordable
dwellings, up to 80 bed care home and 50 close care flats (Class C2 use), up to
100 bedroom hotel (Class C1 use), new primary school, 2 local centres (including
Class Al, A2, A3, C3, D1 and D2 uses), 26 hectares of employment land
(comprising a mix of B1, B2 and B8 uses), new highway infrastructure including the
formation of a new access and a link between A55 Junction 26 and Sarn Road,
pedestrian and cycle routes, areas of formal and informal open space, green space
and structural landscaping and drainage infrastructure.

Public Speakers —

Reverend Andrew Miller (Against) — reiterated the basis of his objection and stated
the development was too large for the village location. The Reverend Miller also
stated he had submitted a formal complaint against Denbighshire County Council
alleging misconduct in public office by Planning Officers.

Mr John Hutchinson, Bodelwyddan Development Action Group (Against) — clarified
the Bodelwydan Development Action Group had no connection with the Reverend
Miller. Mr Hutchinson stated the development was based on outdated information
on population growth. The development would be too big for real housing needs for
local people. It would destroy agricultural land. Flood risk would also be a major
concern.

Mr Owen Jones, Boyer Planning (Agent), (For) — clarified that the LDP had been
adopted in 2013. There had been considerable work on this scheme for over 5
years. The submitted plans followed Policy and the development brief.

General Debate — In reply to issues raised in discussion, the Planning Officer
provided some background information and context to the application. The
Planning Officer explained the application was for Outline Planning
Permission. Therefore, the development would take place over a number of

Page 14



phases. Each phase would be brought back to Planning Committee at a later date
to work through reserved matters and detailed conditions. Planning Officers were
currently working with Solicitors to ensure all the elements within the scheme would
be delivered. The adopted LDP requires a number of detailed elements to be
provided as part of the scheme. These include a minimum of 10% affordable
housing, employment land, a primary school and others requirements. The key
Policy BSC 5 sets all this out and is included in the report. Flooding and drainage
issues have been addressed in the submitted documents and have been fully
assessed by the Council’s Senior Flood Risk Engineer and Natural Resources
Wales (NRW). None of the specialists had any concerns with regard to flood risks
on the land. A sustainable urban drainage system would be installed at the
development.

The outline planning permission would be subject to a Section 106
Agreement. Planning Officers had been liaising closely with the Betsi Cadwaladr
University Health Board (BCUHB) as to what health facilities should be provided on
site. This element amongst others will be dealt with in further planning submissions
which will be brought back to Committee.

Lead Member Dave Smith confirmed to the Committee his agreement to the
development. He raised the issue of economic opportunities which would be
brought into the area to boost the local economy.

Councillor Alice Jones (Local Member) explained she represented the
Bodelwyddan Development Action Group. Councillor Jones recommended refusal
of the development. A large number of Bodelwyddan residents were against the
proposed development because of concern about flooding issues and the
development was being proposed for the wrong area. Regarding affordable
housing, there would only be 173 affordable properties built. The population growth
had not been as prolific as expected as the 2011/2012 census proved. The actual
size of the development was too big for the village of Bodelwyddan. A referendum
had taken place in 2009 and the result had been a resounding “no” to the
development.

Proposal — Councillor Alice Jones proposed refusal of the application, against the
recommendation of officers, seconded by Councillor Arwel Roberts.

VOTE:

GRANT - 15
ABSTAIN -1
REFUSE -9

RESOLVED that permission be GRANTED in accordance with officer
recommendations as stipulated within the report.

APPLICATION NO. 16/2014/1020/PF - LLANBEDR HALL, LLANBEDR DC,
RUTHIN

An application was submitted for the demolition of Llanbedr Hall and erection of 9
no. three-storey dwellings, and associated works.

Page 15



Public Speakers —

Mr Guy Alford (Against) — explained Llanbedr Hall had been purchased in
2003 but since that time the building had become neglected and not viable for
letting. The development would not be fulfilling a local need. The proposed
development in an AONB contravened the Planning Policy and Llanbedr Hall was
of local interest.

General Debate — Councillor Huw Williams (Local Member) explained Llanbedr
Hall had an extensive planning history. The siting of the block of dwellings had been
revised. The properties to be built would not be for local people. A development of
80 houses was already earmarked for Llanbedr. Access would be an issue as the
road from the Hall to Lon Cae Glas had been closed for the last 12 months due to
slippage. There was no affordable housing included within in the development.

A viability report had been carried out and the building inspector had agreed both
the building and interior had been in such a bad state of repair that it could not be
saved. The Senior Engineer confirmed that with regards to the construction traffic,
the management plan would be approved prior to commencement of any
work. There were not sufficient passing areas and, therefore, access through the
council houses would be a preferred option. Additional parking areas could be
included as an additional condition within the planning application. The LDP policy
stated that if less residential units were to be built than were originally demolished
then affordable housing did not need to be included. Members could impose a
further condition that affordable housing be provided. There had been no provision
for a Section 106 Agreement. The Planning Officer confirmed additional conditions
could be included to the planning application to include the concerns raised.

Proposal — Councillor Dewi Owens proposed to refuse the recommendation
(contrary to Planning Officers recommendations), seconded by Councillor Huw
Williams.

Proposal — Councillor Dave Simmons proposed to grant subject to additional
planning conditions and/or Section 106 Agreement, to cover:

(a) Affordable Housing

(b) Additional parking spaces, and

(c) Passing places on access road

VOTE:

GRANT (with additional conditions) — 16
ABSTAIN - 0

REFUSE - 8

RESOLVED that permission be GRANTED in accordance with officer

recommendations as stipulated within the report subject to additional planning
conditions to be imposed.

Page 16



APPLICATION NO. 20/2014/0965/PF - OUTBUILDINGS AT BRYN COCH,
LLANFAIR DYFFRYN CLWYD, RUTHIN

[Councillor Huw Hilditch-Roberts declared a personal interest as he lives in
Pentrecelyn].

An application was submitted for the conversion of outbuildings into 1 no. dwelling
at Bryn Coch, Llanfair Dyffryn Clwyd, Ruthin.

Public Speakers —

Mr Owen Evans (For) — detailed the reasoning for the conversion of the outbuilding
into one dwelling.

General Debate — Councillor Bobby Feeley addressed the Committee on behalf of
the Local Member, Councillor Hugh Evans, who was unable to attend. Councillor
Feeley reiterated Councillor Evans’ reasons for the application to be granted. No
objections had been received from neighbours, Community Council, Highways, or
any other party. The applicants were a young, Welsh speaking couple with two
children who, after 15 years away from Ruthin, had returned to the area to bring up
their children. Pentrecelyn was in need of young Welsh speaking families to
preserve its schools, businesses and values.

The Planning Officer drew members’ attention back to the Policy. The principle of
the conversion was unacceptable, as the application failed to show how the
requirements of Policy PSE4 Re-use and Adaption of Rural Buildings in the Open
Countryside were met, in that it had not been demonstrated that an employment
use was not viable or that the dwelling was affordable to meet local needs, and
there was no material planning consideration to justify a departure from adopted
planning policy. A number of Members stated their support of the application
throughout the meeting.

Proposal - Councillor Stuart Davies proposed to grant the application, against the
Planning Officers recommendation to refuse, seconded by Councillor Huw Hilditch-
Roberts.

VOTE:

GRANT (contrary to Officer recommendation) - 20
ABSTAIN - 0

REFUSE - 3

RESOLVED that permission be granted, contrary to officer recommendation, for
conversion of outbuildings into 1 no. dwelling at Bryn Coch, Llanfair Dyffryn Clwyd,
Ruthin.

APPLICATION NO. 01/2013/1599/PF - THE FORUM, 27 - 29 HIGH STREET,
DENBIGH

Page 17



10

An application was submitted for conversion of first and second floors to form 2 no.
self-contained flats at The Forum, 27-29 High Street, Denbigh.

General discussion — Councillor Meirick Lloyd Davies addressed the Committee
on behalf of the Local Member, Councillor Gwyneth Kensler.

Proposed - Councillor Meirick Lloyd Davies proposed the granting of the
application to convert the first and second floors of “The Forum”, 27-29 High Street,
Denbigh, to form 2 no. self-contained flats. Seconded by Councillor Richard
Davies.

VOTE:

GRANT - 20
ABSTAIN -0
REFUSE - 0

RESOLVED that the application be GRANTED in accordance with officer
recommendations as stipulated within the report.

APPLICATION NO. 01/2013/1601/LB - THE FORUM, 27 - 29 HIGH STREET,
DENBIGH

A Listed Building application was submitted for conversion of first and second floors
to form 2 no. self-contained flats at The Forum, 27-29 High Street, Denbigh.

Proposed — Councillor Meirick Lloyd Davies proposed the granting of the Listed
Building application to convert the first and second floors of “The Forum”, 27-29
High Street, Denbigh, to form 2 no. self-contained flats seconded by Councillor Win
Mullen James..

VOTE:

GRANT - 20
ABSTAIN -0
REFUSE -0

RESOLVED that permission be GRANTED in accordance with officer
recommendations as stipulated within the report.

APPLICATION NO. 03/2014/1067/PO - LAND AT (PART GARDEN OF)
ADENHURST, ABBEY ROAD, LLANGOLLEN

An application was submitted (outline application — inc. access) for the development
of 0.06ha of land at (Part garden of) Adenhurst, Abbey Road, Llangollen, by the
erection of a dwelling.

Proposed - Councillor Stuart Davies proposed the granting of the outline
application and Councillor Meirick Lloyd Davies seconded.

Page 18



11

VOTE-

GRANT - 19
ABSTAIN -0
REFUSE -0

RESOLVED that permission be GRANTED in accordance with officer
recommendations as stipulated within the report.

APPLICATION NO. 24/2014/1246/PS - FIREARMS TRAINING COMPLEX, CRAIG
Y DDYWART QUARRY, RHEWL, RUTHIN

An application had been submitted for the variation of condition no. 3 of planning
permission code no. 24/2007/0694 (granted under appeal) to allow other
organisations as authorised by North Wales Police to be permitted to use the site at
the Firearms Training Complex, Craig y Ddywart Quarry, Rhewl, Ruthin

General Discussion - Councillor Merfyn Parry (Local Member) stated that local
residents had expressed concern regarding Condition 3. (i) The site entrance
would be considered too dangerous on the highway bend due to the additional
traffic. (ii) the additional noise pollution created by the additional shooting on site
would not be acceptable (iii) the hirers would not be supervised.

The Planning Officer clarified noise issues were covered within the report. The site
access had been accepted as adequate and the Local Authority had no control over
the intensity of use during permitted hours of operation.

Proposed by Councillor Merfyn Parry that the application for the variation of
condition 3 of the planning permission code no. 24/2007/0694 be refused, contrary
to the officer recommendation. The ground for refusal was indicated as concern
over (i) control of users on site and (ii) increase in crime locally and nationally from
who is training for firearms use. Seconded by Councillor Huw Williams.

Proposed by Councillor Meirick Lloyd Davies an additional condition be added for a
Supervisor be on site at all times when outside bodies are in attendance at the
site. Seconded by Councillor Dewi Owens.

Firstly a vote took place to agree the amendment proposed by Councillor Meirick
Lloyd Davies

VOTE:
Agree to amendment - 15
No to amendment - 5

Amendment carried.

Vote then took place whether to grant the application including the amendment to
the condition

Page 19



VOTE:
GRANT - 8
ABSTAIN -9
REFUSE - 12

RESOLVED that permission be REFUSED contrary to officer recommendation.

12  APPLICATION NO. 44/2014/0953/PF - 6 GROVE TERRACE, PRINCES ROAD,
RHUDDLAN, RHYL

The application had been withdrawn prior to the meeting.
13  APPLICATION NO. 45/2014/1125/PF - 20 MARINE DRIVE, RHYL

An application had been submitted for the change of use of dwelling and flat to self-
catering holiday let unit at 20 Marine Drive Rhyl.

Proposed - by Councillor Barry Mellor to grant the application and seconded by
Councillor Win Mullen James.

VOTE:

GRANT - 20
ABSTAIN -0
REFUSE -0

RESOLVED that permission be GRANTED in accordance with officer
recommendations as stipulated within the report.

14  APPLICATION NO. 45/2014/1202/PF - 47 HIGHFIELD PARK, RHYL

An application had been submitted for the erection of a 2m high timber fence
adjacent to the highway at 47 Highfield Park, Rhyl

General discussion — it had been agreed by members that the fencing be splayed
at the access point of the property and this condition to be added to the application.

Proposed by Councillor Barry Mellor that the erection of a 2m high timber fence be
granted but to include the additional condition that the fencing be splayed at the
access point of the property. Seconded by Councillor Jeanette Chamberlain-Jones

VOTE:

GRANT - 20
ABSTAIN -0
REFUSE -0

RESOLVED that permission be GRANTED but, as stated above, to include the
additional condition that the fencing be splayed at the access point of the property.

The meeting concluded at 1.00 p.m.

Page 20



WARD :

WARD MEMBER(S):

APPLICATION NO:

PROPOSAL:

LOCATION:

Agenda Iltem 5

Denbigh Lower

Clir Ray Bartley
ClIr Richard Davies

01/2014/0705/ PF
Construction of a multi-user active travel route

Land between St Davids Church, St Davids Lane and
Brookhouse Road Denbigh

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



CYNGOR

Sir Ddinb_ych
Denbighshire

o= g
COUNTY COUNCIT.

Graham Boase

Head of Planning & Public Protection
Denbighshire County Council
Caledfryn

Smithfield Road

Denbigh

Denbighshire LL16 3RJ

Tel: 01824 706800

Fax: 01824 706709

Heading:
REFERENCE 01/2014/0705/PF
LAND BETWEEN ST DAVIDS CHURCH,
ST DAVIDS LANE AND BROOKHOUSE RD, DENBIGH

Application Site N

Date 3/2/2015
Centre = 306202 E 365933 N

Scale 1/2500

This plan is intended solely to give an indiction of the LOCATION of

the application site which forms the subject of the accompanying report.
It does not form any part of the application documents, and should not
be taken as representative of the proposals to be considered, which are
available for inspection prior to the meeting.

@
L Cal

Playing

Pond

Goblin Farm

L Cal
L Cal

Field

o

o
L Col

|

ZF

e

1

mshd
y
L]

Meifod

¥
&/
&/ ¥
‘ : ésu
@’ §
LT

Liys Dedvnydd

Tre Ceiri
m Eligan

E Meadowside
A 7
h

)

OO OV LSA

Cricket  Ground

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Sun
© Crown copyright. Unauthorized reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to pro

behalf of ntroller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office.
Sg (o] ERil dings. Denbighshire County Council. 100023408. 2011.

Atgynhyrchir y map hwn o ddeunydd yr Ordnance Survey gyda chaniatad yr Ordnance Survey ar ran Rheolwr Llyfrfa Ei Mawrhydi
© Hawlfraint y Goron. Mae atgynhyrchu heb ganiatad yn torri hawlfraint y Goron a gall hyn arwain at erlyniad neu achos sifil. Cyngor Sir Ddinbych. 100023408. 2011.




Page 24




ROUTE OF CYCLEWAY

35

A61/0/200E1/1H_|

APRRSN ALYV VMENTY

ri1/9/c1

Asopunog Bujuupd
juewabuniiy |oisuag

YOVIVHUNYTT J8INId Ol ON3ISNMOL
AVMITIAD QAMTD 40 FTVA

TR AR VR ATYORTTHY L)

Shd/m Tt

P LMK LIVVATI® ASH EVRRLE

paubijear ealy]

Buprax) rudyo

3, v © oooriL =eos

FAF S ST I et ] S 0 it Pt ot e i i §
bn sl ooy ey

it e ey
Tl Nowt Plaliie. [Parid ) Sl dbelulislori]
Ay s oo

]

g

by

]

SAD[AYAS TVANANNOMIANI GNY SAVAHIIH A0 INIMLHVIAX
TCOTAWTTADNY NVHIAYNVSYAD V QQUALAIHd NYHAY
SADIAYAS TVINAANOUIANA GNY SAVAHDIH 40 aviH

TOUTIHYTAONY NYHLAYNVSVAD ¥ OOHALAHd HIIYNNAD

TIONADY ALNDOD
auysy Brquag

yafiquipg g

HOOALD

86¢/0/20151/1H]

- S,
<y
r L
F
i’
<
..h.__...,.___. F A P
.\_. i =
o
-
Fa s
1=
|
|

o BUBGE |
cu0gse L
= V34V ONINNYId V101

AN

£V @ 05211 2Eg




Page 26




DETAILS OF SECTIONS OF
cYCL

PRO

S3ADIAHAS TYLININNGHIANA ANY SAVAHOIH 40 INARLEVJET n
— JEE/0/c015) /M _ TS SEA P TERTY 1““”—“M\WIE!QZ_ZZ<|_&EEE§E .-l.ln“\u'l TOGIIHYIAONY NYHLAYNYSYAD ¥ QOHAAATHd NVHAY m
jesu| j|lereq SAMAHAS TVINANNOUIANA ONY SAVMHDIH 40 OVAH
B e TOCAAHITADAY (VHLLAYNVSVAMD ¥ GOHAJAIHd HISYNNId
SONINIYRAVOY A2 2 FEriey ebesp paseys vasy
% SNOIS Jldidvdl $990rs vy l\._ﬂ_-./% i
e Y [— ainey pauueld ..—__..ubsmu ALNONBDY %
P | 210 w5 Bwa s w0 | CY & NMOMHS SY e ALY EY0LqUa(g m
HOVIVHUNYT] JdINId 04 ONISNMOL HARL a0 o dasunary | 9 | TN Sl oM .._. 3 fi 1 _._w.n..__.”__.L_. (i
31N0Y¥ T3AVHL JALLIY GAMID 40O JVA |mive Aeeameia | V7 ) _ M—, ;
SALDL T | AR R (2 i)
90pe UALOQ} 'deB KAUS) "BuR ULLOOC 'EODL azﬁ va:_m__.._n_.mEmn 0051 || E ! 005tk ; oost
YORA GO ‘S Wy FO0L N 3 | | %, b 1
Spp U0} U9l wALDS ) oug UNIOOE ‘E00L 0N “Gen Ewmﬂhnu_um_” ] Hwp ydwog pajeaot-al | '
Sppe uagzp 'yBwy WS 8L EZ0L oH e 10) aumesy Aemojed | :
T Gyt peows LML S [apunas gg, pue {
(rouace} ybpg wgsE “uely Burgean Bupeuns; xagaun)xal - i , w0
PP UALODRS Theumpeon | UBsiop papejop PMS-IuY pay . K ¥
B waEOL ' LES0) O Beg oy uau0Gs Pov by ungi2e 2501 on e Buwmo)o) ~81 !
7 BopwEy) PRog & BUVRWERH | nen susnBuese L b A, =
- B . o : |
¥ Euer e TEoawny peeg o Bupepns ’ = || \ I B3
puie Buasimi . 3O * yuipuyduwgg pasesol-s - ]
- i 105 aunjea) Aemsieb ~1
—_— <11 - uw__ﬂ”wmw_ £y © /7 |_ seepunos o, pue “ J=
FO0) "OH B0 T a1, I ; | %
wwsn MO 1Sy = 119 G s o pos | D 2
~ u_<W_<_ 001 "0H "B SIS waugol ¥ 519} ubjg ke : | R |
Nendd LIH ; O
wvugl ‘w o e Apopd eaey g : |
— =k unugs) -
. b TS| mwgsezypon | (T 3
UALOOT T00} PN R0|  Guyaaes) oyes) - o
TowH BV peod e
sajoN n‘./ x.\
- L At
= ﬁ i uf 4
papsoid 6q 0) Bujubis .\m. e
pajerosse pue sbupyew f
Aem anb 'sjno p)inq pasodoud ———__ o : .. o
f- : . =N ) |
L . g Aemabelues ay; oyuo Bupsa| | _ - ;
N ~ ; SISHAAD 30} AQisin drosdw| gIm 1y N ", .
) . | 1825 WiBg VO SINO p|ing pasodoud| T - TG - s LY ™
. § 138N Nt R T 1ISNI .
“. Eil .... v.. s ool ... - 0 g ’
| e e v b oy . AT SOAPAER 8 i Sy 8 by y \\.. " T
[ £ IR L b - otr oo amnton v ojeb
| o T e Lo sy Guisspt spiemo) Bupnupuoo
R . - way 5)syoda abeinoas)p
nepiqiss solp R gt
Jjjsapiousug - g D . o} papaud Bq o) ou)) ebpa

SIYIA
Sujwosuo
Jana AJjaofad

e



Page 28




WARD :

WARD MEMBER(S):

APPLICATION NO:
PROPOSAL.:

LOCATION:

APPLICANT:
CONSTRAINTS:

PUBLICITY
UNDERTAKEN:

Denbigh Lower

Clir Ray Bartley
ClIr Richard Davies

01/2014/0705/ PF
Construction of a multi-user active travel route

Land between St Davids Church, St Davids Lane and
Brookhouse Road Denbigh

Traffic & Transportation, Denbighshire County Council
None
Site Notice — Yes

Press Notice — Yes
Neighbour letters - Yes

REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE:

Scheme of Delegation Part 2

e Recommendation to grant / approve — 4 or more objections received
¢ Recommendation to grant / approve — Town / Community Council objection

CONSULTATION RESPONSES:
DENBIGH TOWN COUNCIL:
Response to initial consultation:
“Following considerable deliberation and a recorded vote it was resolved that the council would
wish to object to the application. The objection is based on a report prepared by the council’s
planning sub-committee following the site visit on the 15" instant:

The sub committee has serious concerns with the proposed route.

Paul Griffin

1. The route picks up the track following a turning off Park Street into Cow’s Lane. On either
side of the lane there are very high walls. Visibility is very poor for any cyclist or any other
vehicle entering or exiting it also.

Further along the same problem occurs with St David’s Lane

2. The entrance to the Old Rectory would prove a further problem for any cyclist wishing to
join St David’s Lane from the field path as the entrance is long and unseen from the path.
3. The proposed ramps either side of the bridge would need to be gated in such a way as to

slow any cyclist down.

However we found the traffic to be busy, heavy vehicles at times and of great concern.
One side of the bridge the speed limit is 30mph while on the other it is 60mph. No amount
of trees and bushes removed will make it a lesser hazard.

There is no way that any vehicle coming from the cemetery (Brookhouse) road will have
slowed down sufficiently to be 30mph. Visibility will remain poor.
The further problem is the farm entrance close to the bridge. Large vehicles will be exiting
and turning to go over the bridge.

Page 29



As the gated ramps are on one side of the brow of the bridge we believe it will be an
accident waiting to happen — due to poor visibility for vehicles approaching from the Ruthin
Road side.

4. The path at the end of the cemetery would have fence railings. However we found the use
of this path to be inappropriate. Local residents had no knowledge of this proposal and
were greatly upset at this idea. We believe it is entirely unsuitable. Should a Service be
performed at a grave when cyclists are passing it would disturb mourners and any visitors.
As a result we would object strongly on the use of the cemetery path.

The cemetery path would lead to one further created through the field (owned by DCC).
This would then join Brookhouse Road via a gate. However this is another area of poor
visibility.

The sub committee concluded that it would object strongly against the cycle track proposal
due to the Health and Safety issues and the distress it would cause with the use of the
cemetery path.

(The Town Council has been re-consulted on revised plans and any further comments will be
reported in the late information sheets)

NATURAL RESOURCES WALES:

No objections subject to a precautionary planning condition relating to potential for unforeseen
ground contamination, and requiring further mitigation measures to be approved if such
unforeseen ground contamination is discovered during construction.

DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CONSULTEES —

Head of Highways and Infrastructure

- Highways Officer: responded with no objections to the initial consultation, subject to further
details of the junctions with Brookhouse Road and Ystrad Road being submitted and
approved in writing prior to that work commencing. At the time of writing the response to
the re-consultation is still awaited, and will be reported on the late representations sheets

- Footpaths Officer: the Public Rights of Way Unit fully supports the application.

Conservation Architect:
No objections

Archaeologist:
No objections subject to a watching brief being conditioned to ensure that any archaeology that
may be discovered during construction is recorded.

Ecologist:
No objections subject to conditions/advisory notes relating to the removal of hedgerows and
trees.

Development Plan and Policy Section:
No objections

Senior Flood Engineer:

No objections

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY:

In objection
Representations received from:

Mrs C Roberts, St Davids House, St Davids Lane, Denbigh

S. Price, 104, Crud y Castell, Denbigh
Mr Michael E. Lavers - Trem-y-Foel, St. David's Lane, Denbigh

Page 30



D. & P. Cairns, 24, Hilary Close, Myddleton Park, Denbigh

Elfed and Llinos Evans, 75 Crud y Castell, Denbigh

Mr & Mrs E Hughes - Hafod Y Parc, St. Davids Lane, Denbigh

R T Cronin - Cilgoed, St Davids Lane, Denbigh

Mr. J.P.Meakin & Miss R.E. Hughes - 83A Crud Y Castell, Denbigh
Mrs Mary E. Jones - Garreg Lwyd, St Davids Lane, Denbigh

R. Braund, 58, Park Street, Denbigh

Mr & Mrs W Williams - 22 Hilary Close, Denbigh

Mr D & Mrs S Garnsey - 52 Crud Y Castell, Denbigh

Avril & Aldham Roberts - Parciau, St Davids Lane, Denbigh

Kevin & Ruth Ringer - 24 Marcella's Court, Denbigh

Shan Yale - 90 Crud Y Castell, Denbigh

Leah Williams - 92 Crud Y Castell, Denbigh

Huw A Jones - 83B Crud Y Castell, Denbigh

Mr Michael Hughes - 100 Crud Y Castell, Denbigh

Shane & Cathy Price - 104 Crud Y Castell, Denbigh

E. Jones - 102 Crud Y Castell, Denbigh

R.M Barnett - 98 Crud Y Castell, Denbigh

Mr & Mrs Wynne, 83C Crud Y Castell, Denbigh

lan Evans, 26 Hilary Close Denbigh

P Ringer, 24 Marcella's Court, Denbigh )
Ann-Jones-AM N.B. Did not “personally object but passed
A. E. Robarts, Parciau, St. David's Lane, Denbigh from
M. E. Jones - Garreg Lwyd, St Davids Lane, Denbigh

D & P Cairns - 24 Hilary Close, Myddleton Park, Denbigh
Dwynwen Williams, 4 Llys Merddyn, Llanfairpwll

Ronald Jones, 82 Bishops Walk, St Asaph

Gwenda Jones, 18 Hilary Close, Denbigh,

Mrs. D. Roberts - Brookfields, Brookhouse Lane, Denbigh

Summary of planning based representations in objection:

on objections
constituents.

- Impact on highway safety due to poor visibility at Ystrad Road and Brookhouse Road,
narrowing of the highway at Brookhouse Road, and connecting to an existing highway

network which is too narrow to accommodate additional users.

- Impact upon residential amenity by way of loss of privacy and additional disturbance.

- Fear of crime and increase in anti social behaviour.

- Contaminated land resulting from the former use of elements of the route being a former

railway track bed.

- Impact upon visual amenity due to the path passing through open country side and the

engineering operations required to manage the levels.

- Impact on historic environment/archaeology with particular reference to the conservation

area in St Davids Lane, and potential remains of the Clwydian roman road.

Other matters:

Comments have also been received in relation the route option, the cost of the project, who
would be funding the project, and the morality of introducing a right of way into the cemetery. It
is Officers opinion that such matters are not material planning considerations and should not be

taken into account when determining this application

In support
Representations received from:

J. Jones, 19, Bishops Walk, St. Asaph

John Holiday, 7 Mold Road, Mynydd Isa, Mold
Guto Lloyd-Davies, Foel Gaer, Rhyl Rod, Denbigh
Peter Williams, Willaston, Neston, Cheshire

Page 31


jude5019
Cross-Out

jude5019_1
Typewritten Text
N.B. Did not personally object but passed on objections 
                                     from constituents.


Alun Pugh, Ty Coch, Brynrefail, Gwynedd

M. & C. Ringer, 38, Ffordd Colomendy, Denbigh

R. Spilsbury , 2 Lark Hill, Fernbrook Road, Penmaenmawr
A. Thompson, 27, Bryn Teg, Denbigh

J. Chapple, 17, Lon Ceiriog, Denbigh

K. Bailey, Red Hill, Mount Road, St. Asaph

A. Overson, Melyd Cycling Club, Homewood, 1, Cambrian Drive, Prestatyn
C. Wynne, 25, Accar y Forwyn, Denbigh

J. Mather, 11, Bro Madog, Llanelian, Colwyn Bay

Chris Ruane MP

Barbara Manley, 20 Park Street, Denbigh LL16 3DB

Mr Tony Crimes, 30 Love Lane, Denbigh

M. Roberts, 50 Ffordd Colomendy, Denbigh

G. Davies Edwards, Argraig, Tan y Gwalia, Dinbych

Summary of planning based representations in support:
General support of the principle of the development.

EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION: 13/8/14
REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION (where applicable):

timing of receipt of representations

delay in receipt of key consultation response(s)

additional information required from applicant

protracted negotiations resulting in amended plans

re-consultations / further publicity necessary on amended plans and / or additional
information

o awaiting consideration by Committee

PLANNING ASSESSMENT:
1. THE PROPOSAL:
1.1 Summary of proposals

1.1.1  Planning permission is sought for the construction of what is described as a ‘multi-
user active travel route’ to link St Davids Lane and Brookhouse Road, Denbigh.

1.1.2 The submitted Design and Access Statement states that the path would provide a
traffic free route for walkers, cyclists, and wheelchair users and would be the first
phase of the proposed Active Travel Route in the Denbigh area.

1.1.3 The path would vary in width between 2.5m and 3.0m, and would be formed by
clearing vegetation and topsoil, and the laying of a stone sub-base followed by a
sealed tarmac surface.

1.1.4 The route would start where an existing public footpath joins St Davids Lane. It would
then proceed for approximately 340 metres in an easterly direction, skirting the
southern edge of Middle Parc playing fields. At this point the existing public footpath
continues easterly whilst the proposed multi-user active travel route would turn
northwards for 300 metres and follow the eastern boundary of Middle Parc playing
fields. After crossing over a stream (using the proposed new bridge), the route would
again swing eastwards and continue for approximately 250 metres along the southern
limit of Denbigh High School playing fields. Upon the approach to Ystrad Road, the
route splits into two — to head north to form a junction with Ystrad road and provide
access to Crud Y Castell, and to head south towards Goblin Farm to provide a
crossing point over Ystrad Road into the cemetery, where it is proposed to continue
the route in an easterly direction along the northern boundary of Denbigh cemetery,
and along the disused railway line, until the route meets Brookhouse Road where it
would terminate.

1.1.5 The planning application proposes a range of fencing (1.8m close boarding and
1.2metre bow top in particular) in various locations along the route, a bridge to cross

Page 32



1.1.10

1.1.11

the stream mentioned above and landscaping. Retaining structures and
embankments are proposed to facilitate the changes in levels required to form the
junction with Ystrad Road. A highway ‘build out’ is proposed to achieve the junction
between the route and Brookhouse Road.

An independent road safety audit has been submitted as part of the application which
highlights possible safety issues with the route, and makes suggestions to deal with
these issues.

Prior to the submission of the application the applicants sought to ensure the
community was involved in the project.

The Design and Access Statement (DAS) highlights that since 2012 a Community
Travel Group (CTG) has been in place to help steer the project and lead the
consultation process. The CTG consists of all Denbigh Councillors, the member for
Llanrhaeadr, Denbighshire CC Countryside Officers, Denbighshire CC Highway
Officers, Sustrans, Cymdeithas Tai Clwyd (Community Development) and
Denbighshire Community Volunteers.

The DAS further informs that between February and April 2013 a community
consultation took place and details were posted to approximately 7300 addresses in
the LL16 postcode area. The consultation process included a questionnaire and a
community drop in session.

It is understood that the route now submitted for consideration was the result of the
community consultation exercise, which produced a 10% response (700 responses).
The route is shown on plans attached to the front of this report.

1.2 Description of site and surroundings

1.2.1

1.2.2

1.2.3

From the St Davids Lane end, the route would be accessed via a network of roads,
including Park Street, Cow Lane and St Davids Lane. The area here is characterised
by residential uses, the dwellings being a variety of designs and ages indicative of the
areas status as a conservation area.

As the route leaves the conservation area, it follows the edge of a playing field. To the
north of the route is open sports pitches, whilst the southern edge would be defined
by an existing mature hedgerow interspersed with mature trees. The character of the
area surrounding the route remains much like this until it arrives at Ystrad Road.
Once across Ystrad Road the route enters the cemetery and continues along the
northern boundary of the cemetery with two storey dwellings to the north. On exiting
the cemetery at its north east corner, the route enters a strip of grassland which again
has two storey dwellings to the north. The route remains like this until it terminates at
the junction with Brookhouse Road.

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations

1.3.1

1.3.2

1.3.3

1.3.4

In the main, the proposed route follows the edge of the Denbigh Development
boundary, the main exception being where the route crosses ‘open countryside’
between the existing footpath and where the route joins the southern edge of the
Denbigh High School playing field. In this location the route runs through an area
allocated for recreation and open space.

The western end of the route is located within the Denbigh Conservation Area, where
there is also the potential for archaeological artefacts to be present.

As the route proceeds along the boundary between Middle Parc fields and St Davids
House, there are a number of mature trees (limes) that are protected by tree
preservation orders. Along the route there are a number of other trees of merit,
although not protected by tree preservation orders.

The eastern element of the route follows part of the former Denbigh - Ruthin railway
line. Although the route has been disused for many years, and has long since been in
filled in places with inert material, there is still the potential for contamination to exist.

1.4 Relevant planning history

1.4.1

None of direct relevance to the particular proposals.

Page 33



1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission

1.5.1 The application was originally submitted in June 2014. Following the statutory
consultation process the applicants prepared additional material in support of the
application and provided additional detail in respect of the nature of the proposal and
how certain impacts would be managed. Particular attention was given to the impacts
upon the protected trees, and how the junctions with Ystrad Road and Brookhouse
Road may be managed.

1.5.2 Anindependent Safety Audit of the proposed route has been commissioned and
submitted in support of the application.

1.6 Other relevant background information
1.6.1 None

DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY:
2.1 None

RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE:

The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be:
Denbighshire Local Development Plan (adopted 4™ June 2013)
Policy RD1 — Sustainable development and good standard design
Policy RD2 — Green Barriers

Policy BSC11 — Recreation and open space

Policy VOE1 - Key areas of importance

Policy ASA1 — New transport infrastructure

3.1 Government Policy / Guidance
Planning Policy Wales Edition 7 July 2014
Technical Advice Note 10: Tree Preservation Orders
Technical Advice Note 18: Transport

Circular 60/96 — Planning and the Historic Environment: Archaeology
Circular 61/96 — Planning and the Historic Environment: Historic buildings and conservation
areas.

3.2 Other material considerations
North Wales Regional Transport Plan:
The plan highlights the concerns over carbon emissions from the existing transport network,
and makes recommendations regarding the positive measures of introducing a sustainable
transport network. It identifies the problems that there is a public perception of a lack of public
footpaths between key settlements. It also sets the Welsh Governments aim of providing a
better transport system for those households (currently a quarter of all Welsh households)
who rely on public transport, walking or cycling because they do not have a car. It further
states that to improve local transport cycle routes on an all Wales basis will be enhanced and
linked up.

MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS:

In terms of general guidance on matters relevant to the consideration of a planning application,
Planning Policy Wales Edition 7, July 2014 (PPW) confirms the requirement that planning
applications 'should be determined in accordance with the approved or adopted development plan
for the area, unless material considerations indicate otherwise' (Section 3.1.2). PPW advises that
material considerations must be relevant to the regulation of the development and use of land in
the public interest, and fairly and reasonably relate to the development concerned., and that these
can include the number, size, layout, design and appearance of buildings, the means of access,
landscaping, service availability and the impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment
(Sections 3.1.3 and 3.1.4).

Page 34



The following paragraphs in Section 4 of the report therefore refer to the policies of the
Denbighshire Local Development Plan, and to the material planning considerations which are
considered to be of relevance to the proposal.

4.1 The main land use planning issues in relation to the application are considered to be:

41.1 Principle
4.1.2 Visual amenity including conservation area impact

4.1.3 Conservation area

4.1.4 Residential amenity and amenity of neighbouring uses
4.1.5 Biodiversity (including trees)

4.1.6 Drainage (including flooding)

4.1.7 Highways
4.1.8 Archaeology

4.1.9 Open Space
4.1.10 Fear of crime

4.1.11 Contaminated land

4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations:
4.2.1 Principle

The proposal relates to the provision of new transport infrastructure. Policy ASA 1,
New Transport Infrastructure states new transport infrastructure will be supported
provided that there is an economic/social justification, there are no unacceptable
impacts upon the surrounding area or environment, provision is made for safe access
by all users including cyclists, pedestrians, and the mobility impaired. Policy ASA 1
specifically states that the Council will support projects, measures or actions identified
in the North Wales Regional Transport Plan, the use of suitable disused railway lines
as recreational routes, and the extension/improvement of cycle and walking networks
in the county. In addition the proposed route is wholly within the south Denbigh Green
Barrier. Policy RD 2 only permits development within the green barrier if the open
character and appearance of the land is not prejudiced.

The proposal has been submitted by the County Council Highway Section in
response to the requirements of the North Wales Regional Transport Agenda, the
Welsh Government’s aim to improve active travel routes, and to contribute to the
County Council’'s ambition to link rural communities to the rural service centre of
Denbigh and to reduce the need to travel. It is noted that the proposed route in part
utilises a disused railway line, and is to serve walkers, cyclists and the mobility
impaired. In relation to the Green Barrier, it is noted that its primary function is to
reinforce the separation of neighbouring settlements by protecting the open character
of the area. In this location and given the nature of the proposal it is not considered
that the open character and appearance of the land would be prejudiced.

It is considered that the proposal accords with the principles in Policy ASA1 and with
local, regional and national aims in respect of providing a sustainable, active travel
route which can contribute to the overarching aim of reducing Co2 emissions. The
proposal does not conflict with the intentions of Policy RD 2, Green Barriers. The
proposal is therefore considered acceptable in principle. Assessment of the
associated impacts follows.

4.2.2 Visual amenity:
Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (i) requires due regard to issues of siting,

layout, form, character, design, materials, aspect, microclimate and intensity of use of
land / buildings and spaces between buildings, which are matters relevant to the
visual impact of development; test (vi) requires that development does not
unacceptably affect prominent public views into, out of, or across any settlement or
area of open countryside; test (vi) requires the incorporation of existing landscape or
other features, takes account of site contours, and changes in levels and prominent

Page 35



4.2.3

skylines; and test (xiii) requires the incorporation of suitable landscaping measures to
protect and enhance development in its local context.

Comments have been received from residents that the proposal would have a
detrimental impact upon the character and appearance of the area. The proposal
would involve the laying a tarmac strip approximately 3 metres wide along established
boundaries.

In terms of detail, in order to set the context, the first section would be along the
southern boundary of Middle Parc playing field, and would involve the widening of an
existing tarmac right of way. The path would then follow a mature field boundary
along the eastern boundary of Middle Parc playing field before heading east along the
edge of Denbigh High School Playing fields. The character of the area for this section
of the route is open maintained recreational grass playing fields. As the route
approaches Ystrad Road the level of the land will have to be engineered to achieve
the change in levels to reach Ystrad Road. Trees along the route from St Davids Lane
to Ystrad Road are a noticeable feature, and the applicant proposes to retain the
trees and hedgerows where possible. Some trees and hedges will need to be
removed at the point where the route enters Denbigh High School playing field from
Middle Parc field so as to improve visibility for users of the route. Similarly, hedgerow
will need to be removed from the northern junction with Ystrad Road, and a number of
trees from the southern junction with Ystrad Road to improve visibility. Following the
junction with Ystrad Road the route would enter the cemetery where a number of
trees would need to be removed to allow it to follow the western boundary of the
cemetery before descending in and crossing open grass land and connecting with the
existing tarmac service road along the northern boundary of the cemetery. In this
location additional planting is proposed so as to offer some additional screening from
the dwellings to the north and cemetery to the south and to soften the appearance of
the existing palisade fencing in this location. After the route departs the cemetery at
its north eastern corner it enters a strip of grassland with no formal use. The route
would follow the southern boundary of this strip of land. A 1.8metre high close
boarded fence is proposed along the northern edge of the route in this location. The
route then terminates with its junction with Brookhouse Road.

The main visual impact of the proposal is the laying of a 3 metre wide strip of tarmac.
It is considered that as the route traverses well maintained ‘urbanised’ grass land
circumnavigating playing fields and utilising existing tracks in the cemetery in the main
the appearance of a 3metre path would not appear incongruous or excessively
intrusive into the character of the area. The loss of a limited amount of trees and
hedgerows is unfortunate but to an extent unavoidable in constructing a project of this
nature which is acceptable in principle. It is noted that additional planting is proposed
where possible and this would offset the impact that the losses would have. With
regard to the proposed 1.8m close boarded fence along the eastern section (to the
rear of Hilarys Close and Marcellas Court), it is considered that this may appear as a
harsh feature within its context. Whilst it is acknowledged that there may be other
reasons for erecting such a fence in this location, and its appearance may be
softened through landscaping, it is considered that further consideration of detailing is
required in this area.

It is considered that overall the proposal would be acceptable in terms of its impact
upon the visual amenity of the area, subject to suitably worded planning conditions
being imposed to secure the replacement planting/landscaping and further detailing of
boundary treatments to the eastern section of the route. With respect to the
comments of the objectors, the proposal is not considered to conflict with the
requirements of policy RD 1 in respect of its impact upon the visual amenity of the
area.

Conservation area:
Local Development Plan Policy VOE 1 seeks to protect sites of built heritage from
development that would adversely affect them. Planning Policy Wales (Section 6),

Page 36



424

stresses the importance of protecting the historic environment, and in relation to
Conservation Areas, to ensure they are protected or enhanced, while at the same
time remaining alive and prosperous, avoiding unnecessarily detailed controls. The
basic objective is therefore to preserve or enhance the character and appearance of a
Conservation Area, or its setting.

Concern has been raised by residents that the proposal to widen the existing footpath
at the St Davids Lane end of the route would have a detrimental impact upon the
character of the Conservation Area. The Conservation Architect has responded that
only the start of the route is within the Conservation Area, and in this location the
laying of additional tarmac would be acceptable provided it was neutral in
appearance.

Given the existing character of the area, the limited amount of pathway that is
proposed within the Conservation Area and the comments of the Conservation
Architect, it is not considered that there would be any unreasonable impact on this
area. It is considered that the proposal complies with the requirements of Policy VOE
1 and circular 61/96 and would not have a detrimental impact upon the character of
the conservation area.

Residential and other land users amenity

Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (i) requires due regard to issues of siting,
layout, form, character, design, materials, aspect, microclimate and intensity of use of
land / buildings and spaces between buildings, which touch on the potential for impact
on residential amenity; test (vi) sets the requirement to assess the impact of
development on the amenities of local residents, other land and property users, or
characteristics of the locality, in terms of increased activity, disturbance, noise, dust,
fumes, litter, drainage, light pollution, etc.

Concern has been raised by local residents that the proximity of the route to dwellings
would result in a loss of privacy for them and additional unacceptable disturbance
through increased noise and activity from users of the path. Concern has also been
expressed regarding users of the route not showing consideration those who may be
attending a funeral in the cemetery, or visiting graves and that the proposal would
therefore have a detrimental impact upon the amenity of the users of the cemetery.

In terms of detail, the proposed route runs close to properties on St Davids Lane,
where it goes between St Davids House and Garreg Llwyd. The eastern section of the
route runs approximately 16 to 25 metres (variable) from the rear of houses on Crud
Y Castell and utilises an existing road around the cemetery. Additional planting is
proposed along the boundary with the dwellings and the route. Further on the
proposed route is approximately 20 to 25 metres from the rear of dwellings on Hilary
Close and Marcellas Court. A 1.8 close boarded fence is proposed along the route in
this location.

In consideration of the impacts of a right of way in this location and its impact upon
the amenity of adjacent residents it is suggested regard should be given to the
‘normal’ relationship between footpaths/roads and dwellings. In Officers’ opinion it is
hard to draw a distinction between a footpath running to the front of a dwelling and a
path some 15 to 25 metres to the rear in terms of its likely use impacting upon the
amenity of a dwelling. It is noted that additional screening and planting is proposed in
these locations which would further mitigate against any potential impacts. Whilst it
cannot be absolutely guaranteed that there would never be any disturbance (as there
may always be a minority of individuals that act in an anti social manner), the vast
majority of users of a path such as what is proposed are likely to conduct their selves
in a reasonable manner. With regard to the dwellings on St Davids Lane (and further
away such as on Park Street), it should be noted that the area is already in use by the
members of the public as it is an existing part of the public high infrastructure.

Page 37



4.2.5

4.2.6

The issues are considered similar in relation to the impact upon the peacefulness of
the cemetery. The potential for a proposal such as this to have a quantifiable and
significantly detrimental impact upon the amenity of adjacent dwellings and land users
is so limited that in Officers opinion it would not be sufficient to sustain a refusal.

Biodiversity (including trees)

Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (iii) requires development to protect and
where possible to enhance the local natural and historic environment. Policy VOE 5
requires due assessment of potential impacts on protected species or designated
sites of nature conservation, including mitigation proposals, and suggests that
permission should not be granted where proposals are likely to cause significant harm
to such interests. This reflects policy and guidance in Planning Policy Wales (Section
5.2), current legislation and SPG 18 — Nature Conservation and Species Protection,
which stress the importance of the planning system in meeting biodiversity objectives
through promoting approaches to development which create new opportunities to
enhance biodiversity, prevent biodiversity losses, or compensate for losses where
damage is unavoidable.

The proposal has the potential to impact upon protected species through the removal
of trees and hedgerows and on the biodiversity of the area though the importation of
materials as part of any engineering works. The County Council Biodiversity Officer
has commented on the application and does not raise any objections. However,
precautionary conditions/advisory notes have bee suggested in relation to the timing
of the removal of any trees, and the importation of any materials. Similarly NRW have
not raised an objection in this regard. There are a number of trees adjacent to the St
Davids Lane section of the route that are subject to Tree Preservation Orders. The
applicant has commissioned an arboricultural report into the potential impacts of the
works on these trees, as well as the other non-protected trees. Construction methods
have been recommended which advise on how to implement the proposal without
impacting upon the health of the trees.

On the basis of the response from the County Council Biodiversity Officer it is not
considered that the proposal would have an adverse impact on the favourable
conservation status of any protected species, or the biodiversity of the area, subject to
conditions/advisory notes. Similarly the proposals relating to the construction methods
are considered acceptable in relation to the protection of trees within the area, and it
is not considered that the protected trees within the grounds of St Davids House
would be detrimentally affected by the works. In terms of biodiversity and impact upon
trees, the proposal is considered acceptable.

Drainage (including flooding)

Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (xi) requires that development satisfies
physical or natural environmental considerations relating to drainage and liability to
flooding. Planning Policy Wales Section 13.2 identifies flood risk as a material
consideration in planning and along with TAN 15 — Development and Flood Risk,
provides a detailed framework within which risks arising from different sources of
flooding should be assessed.

The proposal involves the creation of a hard surface where currently the ground is
permeable and involves the construction of a bridge across a small stream which is
understood to flow towards drainage pools for Denbigh. Accordingly the County
Council Flood Engineer has been consulted along with NRW. Neither has raised an
objection in this regard.

On the basis of the responses of the Senior Flood Engineer and NRW it is not

considered that the proposal would conflict with the aims of Policy RD 1 or TAN 15 in
respect of flooding/drainage.

Page 38



4.2.7

4.2.8

Highways
Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 tests (vii) and (viii) oblige provision of safe and

convenient access for a range of users and consideration of the impact of
development on the local highway network. This reflects general principles set out in
Planning Policy Wales (Section 8) and TAN 18 — Transport, in support of sustainable
development.

Concern has been raised locally regarding the safety of the route at the points where
it joins/crosses public highways. Particular reference has been made to the junction
with St Davids Lane and how the route interfaces with the driveway with St Davids
House, the junction and achievable visibility where the route crosses Ystrad Road,
and the achievable visibility and impact upon road width where the route joins
Brookhouse Road. Concern has also been raised in relation to the wider impacts of
the proposal on highway safety of the surrounding highway infrastructure on
Brookhouse Road, Park Street and Cow Lane.

An independent road safety audit has been commissioned by the applicants and
submitted as part of the application. This document identifies potential problems with
the route and makes recommendations to overcome the problems. These
recommendations have been incorporated in the revised plan and include a 3 metre
railing to separate vehicles exiting St Davids House and the path to allow increased
visibility, improved visibility at the Ystrad Road Junctions, bollards proposed at the
Ystrad Road junctions, build out at the Brookhouse Road junctions. These proposals
have been examined by the Highway Officers and no objection has been raised.

Where the problems fall outside the control of this planning application (i.e. on the
public highway where it is within the remit of the Highway Section to carry out works
without the need for planing permission) the proposed recommendations have been
shown nevertheless in order to demonstrate how potential problems would be dealt
with. Most notably this is the ‘build out’ into Park Street which seeks to slow traffic
down and improve visibility for cyclists exiting from Cow Lane onto Park Street.
Additional warning signage and alterations to speed limits are also proposed.
However, these elements fall outside the control of the Local Planning Authority and
are within the remit of the Highway Section.

Whilst the concerns of residents are duly noted, it is considered that significant weight
should be given to the views of the Highway Officers who are ultimately responsible
for ensuring that public highways are constructed to nationally adopted standards in
the interest of the safe and free flow of traffic. With regard to the details submitted,
including the road safety audit and in the absence of an objection from the Highway
Section, it is considered that the proposal is not unacceptable in terms of highway
safety, and the safety of users of the route. The proposal is considered to comply with
Policy RD 1 and TAN 18 in this respect.

Archaeology
Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (iii) requires development to protect and

where possible to enhance the local natural and historic environment. Planning Policy
Wales (Section 6.5) sets out a range of considerations to be given to the assessment
of archaeological issues, including approaches to recording and investigating
potential remains in conjunction with new development. Welsh Office Circular 60/96
provided earlier advice on the importance of archaeological matters in the planning
process, stressing the need for due assessment of the nature and importance of any
features and their setting.

The St Davids Lane element of the proposal is located within the Conservation Area
and is considered to be a historically important environment. Comments have been
received suggesting that the proposal would have a detrimental impact upon the
archaeology of the Clwydian Roman road. The proposal would involve the removal of
some top layers of soil and therefore has the potential to impact upon any
archaeology that may be present. The County Council Archaeologist has been

Page 39



4.2.9

4.2.10

consulted on this application and raises no objections subject to a condition requiring
an archaeological watching brief, should it be granted, such that any archaeology
discovered during construction works is preserved by record.

On the basis of the response from the County Council Archaeologist, it is considered
that any potential impact upon archaeology can be dealt with through a suitably
worded planning condition. The proposal therefore is acceptable in terms of its impact
upon archaeology.

Open Space
Policy BSC 11 seeks to protect existing recreation, public open space and amenity

green space. Development that would result in the loss of such land with recreational
and amenity value will only be permitted where alternative outdoor provision of
equivalent or greater community benefit is provided.

Comments have been received from local residents that the proposed track would
impinge upon the use of the school playing fields, resulting in the need to relocate the
running track and the loss of the discus throwing area. Comments have also been
received in relation to loss of the existing amenity value of the grassland to the rear of
Hilary Close and Marcellas Court which is currently used by residents as an informal
play area for children. The proposal would result in the loss of approximately a 3
metre wide strip of land along the edge of Middle Parc and Denbigh High School
playing fields as well as grassland at the eastern end of the proposed route.

In Officers opinion, it is not considered that the proposed development would result in
an unacceptable loss of existing recreational land. Whilst it is acknowledged that part
of the existing recreational open space would be used to create the track, the amount
is insignificant, and the proposed track would in itself provide a recreational facility.
Whilst noting that the land is in the ownership of the County Council and that its
current use by neighbours is through an agreement between the County Council
Property Services and the residents, respectfully, consideration of the planning
application should not be affected by a private agreement. It is not considered that the
proposal would result in a loss of recreation, public open space or amenity green
space. The proposal is considered to be in accordance with the aims of Policy BSC
11.

Fear of crime

Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (xii) requires account to be taken of
personal and community safety and security in the design and layout of development
and public and private spaces, and to have regard to implications for crime and
disorder. This reflects general advice in Planning Policy Wales (Section 3.1), the
Crime and Disorder Act 1998 and subsequent good practice guide that the effects of
a development on crime is a potential material consideration a planning authority
should consider when exercising its functions.

A number of residents are concerned that the introduction of a track for unrestricted
public access will result in an increase in crime within the area, with increased ease of
access for criminals to the rear of dwellings on Crud Y Castell, Hilary Close and
Marcella Court being cited along with the fear of anti social behaviour. Reference has
been made to anti social behaviour occurring elsewhere in the County on public rights
of way.

In addressing this issue, it is suggested due consideration should be given to the
extent of public access existing in this area. The land to the south of Crud Y Castell is
in use as a cemetery where there is a public right of access, the land to the south of
Hilary Close and Marcella Court is open land that can be accessed from Brookhouse
Road and the St Davids Lane part of the route is already a public right of way. It is not
unreasonable to assume that the typical user of the route would not have criminal
intentions and that by increasing public access along the route could actually increase
natural surveillance and reduce the potential for opportunistic crime.

Page 40



Officers are aware that the perception of crime may be a legitimate consideration in
the assessment of the planning application, but it is a very difficult matter to determine
that significant weight should be afforded to impacts likely to arise from the creation of
a public right of way, without a clear evidence base. In Officers opinion, to refuse this
application on fear of crime, would suggest quite clearly that it would be unreasonable
for the County Council to develop rights of way anywhere for similar reasons. It is
therefore considered that there is no sound basis to resist this application on fear of
crime.

4.2.11 Contaminated land
The need to consider the potential impact of contaminated land in relation to
development proposals is contained in Chapter 13 of Planning Policy Wales, which
requires planning decisions to take into account the potential hazard that
contamination presents to the development itself, its occupants and the local
environment; and assessment of investigation into contamination and remedial
measures to deal with any contamination. Where there may be contamination issues,
the Council must require details prior to determination of an application to enable the
beneficial use of land. Planning permission may be granted subject to conditions
where acceptable remedial measures can overcome such contamination. Otherwise,
if contamination can not be overcome satisfactorily, permission should be refused.

Sections of the proposed route would be on a former railway line and there is
therefore a potential for the ground to contain contaminants associated with its former
use. The applicants have undertaken and submitted a desk study and preliminary
ground contamination risk assessment. The report concludes that in the absence of
any evidence of the former railway track or any ground materials which could be a
source of contamination, ‘there can be no contamination risk and no risk to the
proposed development and its users’. Natural Resources Wales have been consulted
on the proposal and have responded that the risk of contamination, suggesting a
precautionary condition be attached to any permission to deal with any unforeseen
contamination being discovered.

On the basis of the information submitted and the comments of Natural Resources
Wales it is not considered likely that the proposal would be adversely affected by
contaminated land. However, there is the potential during earth movements for ash,
clinker or other potentially contaminated material to be encountered which would
need to be assessed. The suggested condition from Natural Resources Wales is
considered sufficient to deal with this issue and the proposal is therefore acceptable
in respect of contaminated land.

4.3 Other matters
With regard to comments received in relation the choice of route, the cost of the project, who
would be funding the project, and the morality of introducing a right of way into the cemetery,
it is Officers opinion that such matters are not material to the determination and should not be
accorded any weight when determining this application.

5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS:
5.1 Whilst respecting the comments of the Town Council and Local residents, it is considered that
the proposed development is acceptable in principle, and that the potential impacts are not
unacceptable in planning terms.

RECOMMENDATION: GRANT- subject to the following conditions:-

1. The development to which this permission relates shall be begun no later than the expiration
of five years beginning with the date of this permission.

Page 41



10.

PRE-COMMENCEMENT CONDITION

No development works of any kind shall begin until the presence of a contracted
archaeologist has been secured on-site according to the prescriptions set out in a curatorial
design brief and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Access, at any
reasonable time, shall be given to this archaeologist to enable the observations and recording
of any archaeological remains uncovered during the early stages of development. A report of
any archaeological records made must be deposited with the County Sites and Monuments
Record, Clwyd-Powys Archaeological Trust, 41 Broad Street, Welshpool, Powys, SY21 7RR
(01938-553670) within one month of the completion of this work with a summary of records
sent to the Local Planning Authority at the same time.

In the event that any areas of unexpected contamination become evident in the course of
development, all works in the vicinity of that contamination shall be suspended immediately,
and the Local Planning Authority shall be notified within 24 hours. No work shall be permitted
to continue in the affected area until the written agreement of the Local Planning Authority has
been obtained to details of the measures proposed to remove or contain any hazard
presented by the contaminants, and the method of rendering harmless such contamination.
The development shall only be permitted to proceed in accordance with the details approved.
All planting, seeding, turfing, fencing, walling or other treatment comprised in the approved
details of landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding seasons following
the commencement of the development and any trees or plants which, within a period of five
years of the development, die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall
be replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size and species.

None of the trees or hedgerows shown on the approved plans as being retained shall be
felled, lopped or topped without the prior written consent of the Local Planning Authority. Any
trees or hedgerow plants which die or are severely damaged or become seriously diseased
within five years of the completion of the development shall be replaced with trees or
hedgerow plants of such size and species to be agreed in writing with the Local Planning
Authority.

Notwithstanding the submitted details, further details of the boundary treatment(s) facing St
Marcellas Court and Hilary Close shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority and those details as approved shall be implemented in full prior to the multi
user active travel route being brought into use.

No removal of hedgerows, trees or shrubs shall take place between 1st March and 31st
August inclusive, unless a competent ecologist has undertaken a careful, detailed check of
vegetation for active birds' nests immediately before the vegetation is cleared and provided
written confirmation that no birds will be harmed and/or that there are appropriate measures
in place to protect nesting bird interest on site. Any such written confirmation should be
submitted to the local planning authority. Should any mature trees with features that can be
used by bats need to felled or trimmed, then a bat survey shall be undertaken by a competent
ecologist and a scheme of Reasonable Avoidance Measures shall be followed during the
works, which should be submitted to the local planning authority.

Prior to the importation of any material, a Biosecurity Risk Assessment shall be submitted to
and approved in writing by the local planning authority detailing measures to minimize or
remove the risk of introducing non-native plants during the construction of the project.

In relation to the carrying out of the works, no development shall be permitted to take place
until the written approval of the Local Planning Authority has been obtained in relation to the
site compound location and vehicular access including the design and construction of the
access, traffic management scheme, vehicle wheel washing facilities, hours and days of
operation and the management and operation of construction vehicles, the works shall be
carried out strictly in accordance with the approved details.

Full details of the highway works adjacent to Brookhouse Road and Ystrad Road as indicated
on the approved plans including the detailed design, layout, construction, street lighting,
visibility splays and drainage shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority before the commencement of any site works and the works shall be
completed in accordance with the approved plans before the path is bought into use.

Page 42



The reason(s) for the condition(s) is(are):-

To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

In the interests of archaeological investigation and recording.

3. To ensure that suitable measures are taken to deal with contaminated land in connection with
the development.

4., To ensure a satisfactory standard of development, in the interests of visual amenity.

5. To safeguard the existing trees and hedges on the site, in the interests of the visual amenities
of the locality.

6. In the interest of visual amenity

7. In the interest of ensuring the favourable conservation status of protected species.

8. In the interest of biodiversity.

9. In the interest of the free and safe movement of traffic on the adjacent highway and in the
interests of highway safety.

10. In the interest of the free and safe movement and traffic on the adjacent highway and to
ensure the formation of a safe and satisfactory access.

NOTES TO APPLICANT:

Your attention is drawn to the attached Highway Supplementary Notes Nos. 1, 3, 4, 5 & 10.
Your attention is drawn to the attached Part N form (New Road and Street Works Act 1991).

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



WARD :

WARD MEMBER(S):

APPLICATION NO:

PROPOSAL:

LOCATION:

Agenda Iltem 6

Denbigh Lower

Clir Ray Bartley
ClIr Richard Davies

01/2014/1390/ PF
Erection of extensions and alterations to dwelling

51 Mytton Park Denbigh

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



CYNGOR
Sir Ddinbych
Denbighshire

o= g
COUNTY COUNCIL

Graham Boase

Head of Planning & Public Protection
Denbighshire County Council
Caledfryn

Smithfield Road

Denbigh

Denbighshire LL16 3RJ

Tel: 01824 706800 Fax: 01824 706709

Heading:
REFERENCE NO. 01/2014/1390/PF
51 MYTTON PARK,

DENBIGH
Application Site N\
Date 29/1/2015 Scale 1/1250

Centre = 306492 E 366509 N

This plan is intended solely to give an indiction of the LOCATION of
the application site which forms the subject of the accompanying report.
It does not form any part of the application documents, and should not
be taken as representative of the proposals to be considered, which are
available for inspection prior to the meeting.

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Surv
© Crown copyright. Unauthorized reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to pro:

n behalf of m?ntroller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office.
cde

agen

dings. Denbighshire County Council. 100023408. 2011.

Atgynhyrchir y map hwn o ddeunydd yr Ordnance Survey gyda chaniatad yr Ordnance Survey ar ran Rheolwr Llyfrfa Ei Mawrhydi
© Hawlfraint y Goron. Mae atgynhyrchu heb ganiatad yn torri hawlfraint y Goron a gall hyn arwain at erlyniad neu achos sifil. Cyngor Sir Ddinbych. 100023408. 2011.




Page 48




—

ATH

LNIHd

e

AN

}

/

7/ x\v&:

Iivg

ON "9MHO

vasy:) o5/

IIvIS

/\&Q Na 1720 \ p ey

1L DNIMVHO

87z

"ON 1J3rOtd

r% NMViHQ H@IgNa \&w_:ﬁuﬁ. I VLW g

1J3roud

—
—

LEESLA (SpLL0) ‘xeq 00LZL8 (SvLLO) ‘(o1

HOIINAA LI94LS TTVA SAITIOH FHL
siofaAmmg paianrey)

SYIDO0T NNAM

H"‘&:{urg—'

B
£

PR
& ©ws
M@

OYd N3IM
s311y3d SvIva

00S¢:1

NVId NOJ1VIO]

Ay

~

NV 71d 2079

Page 49




Page 50




cyY UGN §OS P UYor S d.ha..
FioE By o
0L poasodoid SO SUGHDASH
—_i - WM it
OQ opu ] hﬁ.ﬂ:@ﬂ
ug 15
- Bz o UBMaI| O UOHAW

2

1919 Kraipd ey Koizinsving) Bt
Uyriig) (S94S B0A SOOH B)
SHOATANNS ONITTNG TIHILNVHD

2 SYTOOY NNAM
N@IAVYAZIE JaIS

<

dmy
@ wweg

NOISN3LX3 Wooua3e
N3HILIN 0350d0Hd

finun

ke

13048 D A3S040N¥d

a3 .

93y

N SNILAT

< AL NeILY A8 2als

Rullnlll

3>

=t 0! MOpUIA [3A3) ybiy

|pA0iddd o) JPpuay

NOISHNILXT wuvIy

i

|

130dYY D QIS040Ud /

> NOIYAITE avaa

_—————

i

kdouna pazo|n
ssp)b pasnasqo

- {a|qou3ado uou)
smopuim patolb (oang

NOILYAHTE AN©E

Page 51

==

- ._fl 1 ||m__

buisiva
yyjow 0 58|11 "auon

MUIEN M U DDl ae
) wied JTV)S LOw OO
SIerM RNV S0 SOV

N A

Luod dvD

e

— e —

e



Page 52




—_— =il i

aross ssanoom 1 | Lo
== | 4& -
i e
RPN | -
—— :'F_'_]{; - azvegon 3
Frlets
i;:l:l k

vz

—

MRET PLOOR PLAN hIOO

o

REAR

D71 2014 113904PF

PROPOSED FLOOR PLANS

@ WYNN ROGERS
rcs [

S
Ll S ] on

=_15R
T v =

EXTENSION BT |

GROUND FLOGR PLAN hilOQ

H
| & e H— COMIIYATORT
H
e Tl __ L |
J— | ey I
stoan [ X == —DIOAN
i vdgoN 5
oy
q

E!“‘ T i

H
H b
: :
J..BAzPORY 1

fL SR R i

@ WYNN ROGERS
RIS =

HEL Chmwmes
oo et L Miyay
Page 53 = E=-
.-l-—lﬂ‘-"" -




Page 54




1]

IMHMNNI 5

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

B

i

Ji
il

Il HNHMHWHH §=
H g

.




Page 56




BXISTING FLOOR PLANS

prasssonssns [ 1= I,
4] BEBROO
I R eERRGOM 3
mord LAHBING |
N 12 icrestt é
H
1]
H |
i 1
g BADROOM 1
= i ik
i
i I*
e Tt b €t T PP P L R e BT T Sy Srrs ey
S 14

FirsST FLoon- i 63 A WYNN ROGERS §
. W) Smmtese
?,’1‘ ldll'l:lllm fox BAey B1ESH
;-W'mmrrw-l -~ By
Dercion e
i hoce plan F.]
ALEOTNG =5 aug W14
M L Mt John & Sol Comenon L)

bk 1

%
Al
35

et

| LOUN®E

BaRARE

L

B

==
]@@Iﬁﬁ[ﬂ&'ﬂ".ﬁﬂﬁlif-
i

DI
) L1l
PERZH alal, aTUEY
T - B |




Page 58




Denise Shaw

WARD : Denbigh Lower
WARD MEMBER(S): Clir Ray Bartley
ClIr Richard Davies
APPLICATION NO: 01/2014/1390/ PF
PROPOSAL: Erection of extensions and alterations to dwelling
LOCATION: 51 Mytton Park Denbigh
APPLICANT: Mr John Cameron
CONSTRAINTS: None
PUBLICITY Site Notice — No
UNDERTAKEN: Press Notice — No

Neighbour letters - Yes

REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE:
Scheme of Delegation Part 2

e Member request for referral to Committee

CONSULTATION RESPONSES:
DENBIGH TOWN COUNCIL “The town council does not wish to raise any objection to the
application.”

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY:

In objection
Representations received from:

Freda Evans - 11 Dalar Wen, Denbigh (0)J. A. Lewis, 3, Dalar Wen, Denbigh (O)C. Jones,
Hafan Glyd, 9, Dalar Wen, Denbigh (O)

Summary of planning based representations in objection:
Residential amenity:

Adverse impact on privacy of neighbours garden due to overlooking from first floor
windows.

Adverse impact on privacy of neighbouring dwellings due to overlooking from first floor
windows.

Most properties are single storey and do not overlook neighbours — respectful, private
environment would be spoilt.

Changes to scheme do not previous overcome concerns.

Noise levels would be increased as property would be overlooking neighbours.

Visual amenity:

Scale of extension is out of character with surrounding properties.

EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION: 05/02/2015

PLANNING ASSESSMENT:
1. THE PROPOSAL:
1.1 Summary of proposals

1.1.1

1.1.2

The proposal is for a two storey side and rear extension, a single storey car port

extension to the front elevation and alterations to the existing dwelling.

The application is a re-submission of a previously refused scheme. The proposal

consists of:

e First floor pitched roof side extension above existing flat roof single storey side
extension. Windows are proposed at ground floor and first floor levels in the side

Page 59



2.

elevation and 4 no. roof lights are proposed in the pitched roof to serve first floor
rooms.

Two storey rear extension. The ridge height would be the same as the existing
dwelling at a height of 6.6m. It would project 4.5m from the existing rear elevation
and would be 8.1m wide.

Windows are proposed at ground and first floor levels. Specifically, at first floor
level, 2 no. slim vertical windows are proposed in the rear elevation, which the
plans show would be non opening and obscurely glazed. To the side elevation of
the extension, floor to ceiling bi-fold windows and a Juliet balcony are also
proposed. These windows would be angled slightly so the line of sight is directed
into the garden area of the dwelling.

Car port extension to the front of the existing dwelling. This would be 2.9m wide
and 5.2m long.

1.1.3 The internal floorspace would be reconfigured as a result of the development.

1.1.4 Members are referred to the plans at the front of the report.

1.2 Description of site and surroundings

1.2.1

The site is an existing detached dwelling within a housing estate and has neighbours
to both the side and rear, and shares a boundary with 6 neighbouring dwellings.
1.2.2 The neighbouring dwelling to the side is also a two storey detached dwelling,
properties to the rear are detached bungalows.

1.2.3 Windows already exist in the rear elevation at ground and first floor level.

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations

1.3.1

The site is within the Denbigh development boundary as defined by the Local
Development Plan.

1.4 Relevant planning history

1.41

1.4.2

A previous application was refused on grounds of an adverse impact on residential
amenity in November 2014 as it was considered to have an unacceptable adverse
impact on neighbouring properties creating a potential for overlooking and loss of
privacy.

The current proposal is an amended scheme and the amendments consist of
replacing 2 no. slim vertical windows with non-opening obscurely glazed windows,
and the bi-fold doors and Juliet balcony at first floor level have been repositioned so
they are set at an angle to the wall.

1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission

1.5.1

None.

1.6 Other relevant background information

1.6.1

None.

DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY:

2.1 01/2014/1169. Erection of extension and alterations to dwelling. Refused 28/11/2014. THe
reason for refusal was:

“It is the opinion of the Local Planning Authority that the proposed bedroom 1 windows at first
floor level in the two storey rear extension would have an unacceptable adverse impact on the
residential amenity of neighbouring properties creating a potential for overlooking and loss of
privacy. Therefore the proposal is considered to be in conflict with criteria vi) of Policy RD1 of
the Denbighshire County Council Local Development Plan, and advice contained in the
Extensions to Dwellings SPG, Householder Development Design Guide SPG and Planning
Policy Wales Edition 7.”

3. RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE:

3.1 Denbighshire Local Development Plan (adopted 4" June 2013)
Policy RD 1 - Sustainable Development and Good Standard Design
Policy RD 3 - Extensions and Alterations to Dwellings

3.2 Supplementary Planning Guidance

Page 60



Extensions to Dwellings SPG
Householder Development Design Guide SPG
Residential Space Standards SPG

3.3 Government Policy / Guidance
Planning Policy Wales Edition 7 July 2014

MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS:

In terms of general guidance on matters relevant to the consideration of a planning application,
Planning Policy Wales Edition 7, July 2014 (PPW) confirms the requirement that planning
applications 'should be determined in accordance with the approved or adopted development plan
for the area, unless material considerations indicate otherwise' (Section 3.1.2). PPW advises that
material considerations must be relevant to the regulation of the development and use of land in
the public interest, and fairly and reasonably relate to the development concerned., and that these
can include the number, size, layout, design and appearance of buildings, the means of access,
landscaping, service availability and the impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment
(Sections 3.1.3 and 3.1.4).

The following paragraphs in Section 4 of the report therefore refer to the policies of the
Denbighshire Local Development Plan, and to the material planning considerations which are
considered to be of relevance to the proposal.

4.1 The main land use planning issues in relation to the application are considered to be:

41.1 Principle

4.1.2 Visual Amenity
4.1.3 Residential Amenity

4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations:
4.2.1 Principle
Policy RD 3 advises that the extension or alterations to existing dwellings will be
supported subject to compliance with detailed criteria. Extensions and alterations to
existing dwellings are therefore considered acceptable in principle.

4.2.2 Visual Amenity
PPW paragraph 4.11.9 states that the visual appearance and scale of development

and its relationship to its surroundings and context are material planning
considerations when assessing planning applications. Criteria i) of Policy RD 1
requires that development respects the site and surroundings in terms of siting,
layout, scale, form, character, design, materials, aspect, micro-climate and intensity of
use of land/buildings and spaces around and between buildings. Criteria i) of Policy
RD 3 the scale and form of the proposed extension or alteration is subordinate to the
original dwelling, or the dwelling as it was 20 years before the planning application is
made. Criteria ii) of Policy RD 3 requires that a proposals are sympathetic in design,
scale, massing and materials to the character and appearance of the existing
building.

The neighbouring property to the west (No. 50 Mytton Park) is a similar house type to
No. 51 Mytton Park and a first floor side extension has already been built above the
garage. The proposed first floor extension above the garage of No. 51 would
therefore appear to mirror that of the neighbouring property and would not look out of
keeping. The proposed car port would be forward of the principal elevation, however
as the dwelling is in a corner plot at the end of a cul de sac, the proposed carport
would be parallel to the driveway and garage of 52 Mytton Park, and in Officers
opinion would therefore also not appear to be out-of-keeping with the area.

The existing dwelling is of brick construction, however the proposed extensions would
be rendered. No details of the render finish is provided, and therefore a condition
would need to be applied requiring the prior approval of the finish.

Having regard to the design, siting, scale, massing and materials of the proposed
extension, in relation to the character and appearance of the dwelling itself, the

Page 61



4.2.3

locality and landscape, it is considered that the proposals would comply with the
requirements of the policies listed above, and would therefore not have an
unacceptable impact on visual amenity.

Residential Amenity

Test vi) of Policy RD 1 requires that proposals do not unacceptably affect the amenity
of local residents and land users and provide satisfactory amenity standards itself.
Test iii) of Policy RD 3 requires that a proposal does not represent an
overdevelopment of the site, to ensure that sufficient external amenity space is
retained. The Extensions to Dwellings SPG states that no more than 75% of a
residential property should be covered by buildings. The Residential Space
Standards SPG specifies that 40m? of private external amenity space should be
provided as a minimum standard for residential dwellings.

As noted, the application is a revised scheme following a refusal of planning
permission.

Objections have been received from neighbours raising residential amenity concerns.

Having regard to the relevant standards, the proposal would ensure sufficient amenity
space remains to serve the property as more than 40m? of private external amenity
space would be retained and less than 75% of the site would be covered by buildings
as a result of the proposed development.

The Proposed first floor side extension and two storey rear extension would be
approximately 1.5m from the boundary with 50 Mytton Park (2-storey) to the side and
approximately 2.5m at it’s closest point from the boundary with 11 Dalar Wen (single
storey bungalow) to the rear. The proposed first floor balcony windows in the rear
extension would also look towards the rear boundary of 9 Dalar Wen (single storey
bungalow), with the rear extension being approximately 10m from the boundary with
that property. The rear boundary of No.51 is lined with a wooden fence, hedges and
shrubs.

In relation to No. 50 Mytton Park:

No. 50 has a two storey side extension with a high level window at first floor level.
Along the side elevation of the proposed rear extension there would be windows at
ground floor level in the same position as existing windows and a new high level
window is proposed to serve a utility area.

At first floor level, the side extension has been designed to mirror the sloping roof of
the existing dwelling and the eaves height in the proposed side elevation would be
2.9m. 5 no. roof lights are proposed in the newly formed roof pitch to serve rooms at
first floor level.

Officers consider there would be no unacceptable overlooking impact to No. 50
Mytton Park.

50 Mytton Park has a rear first floor window in its side extension. It is not considered
the proposed extension would not cause any unacceptable overshadowing of this
property.

It is considered the proposal would not have an unacceptable adverse impact on the
amenity of No. 50 Mytton Park.

In relation to Dalar Wen properties:

Objections have been received from No. 3, 9 and 11 Dalar Wen which raise concerns
relating to overlooking into windows of the dwellings and also overlooking of private
gardens.

No. 51 shares a rear boundary with 9 and 11 Dalar Wen.

In the context of these properties, it is important to note that there are already
windows at first floor level in the rear elevation of No. 51 Mytton Park, and there is

Page 62



already a degree of overlooking into the private gardens of neighbours to the rear.
The applicant has submitted photographs with the application showing the existing
view from these windows to demonstrate this point.

The site shares a rear boundary with 11 and 9 Dalar Wen with the garden of No. 51
being at an angle to the bottom of the gardens of these properties. The corner of the
rear extension would be approximately 2.5m from the rear boundary with 11 Dalar
Wen and 10m from the boundary with 9 Dalar Wen. Windows are proposed at first
floor level in the rear extension and the Householder Development Design Guide
SPG advises that 2-storey extensions with habitable windows should be at least 7.5m
from a boundary.

In the north facing elevation of the rear extension, slim vertical windows are proposed
at ground and first floor level which would serve habitable rooms. The plans now
show these 2 no. slim vertical windows at first floor level would be non-opening and
obscurely glazed, which Officers consider is sufficient mitigation to ensure there
would be no overlooking from these windows, and therefore the impact on the
neighbours privacy would be negligible.

In the east facing elevation of the proposed rear extension bi-fold doors and a Juliet
balcony are proposed at first floor level to serve a bedroom. The scheme has been
amended so the bi-fold doors and Juliet balcony are now oriented so they face into
the garden of No.51 in an effort to limit any impact on the privacy of neighbours.

The Householder Development Design Guide SPG suggests a distance of 21m
should be sought where windows of one property directly face windows in a
neighbouring property. The centre of the bi-fold window would be just over 20m from
the rear elevation of 9 Dalar Wen, which has main room windows facing towards No.
51. Due to the proposed orientation of the first floor bi-fold doors and Juliet balcony, it
is not considered there would be any direct overlooking into neighbours windows from
the extension.

The Householder Development Design Guide SPG states that, where direct
overlooking of a lounge, dining room, bedroom or kitchen can be avoided by the
positioning of the windows, then the distance can be a minimum of 18m, which
Officers consider is an appropriate minimum distance to apply in this instance as a
result of the re-orientation of the window.

At it's closest point, the proposed bi-fold windows would be approx. 19m from the rear
elevation of 9 Dalar Wen, and therefore the proposal would comply with the guidance
contained in the SPG above.

In relation to overlooking of private rear garden areas from the first floor bedroom
window in the proposed extension, it would be Officers opinion that, due to the
separation distances between the window and the garden boundaries and the
orientation of the bi-fold window, the extent of overlooking as a result of the
development would be no worse than that which occurs from existing first floor
windows in the rear elevation of No. 51.

In conclusion, Officers consider the amendments to the scheme would reduce the
impact on residential amenity of occupiers of neighbouring properties.

Having regard to the scale, location and design of the proposed development, it is
considered that the proposals would not have an unacceptable impact on residential
amenity. The proposals are therefore considered to be in basic compliance with the
policies and guidance listed above.

5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS:
5.1 The scheme was previously refused due to concerns regarding the adverse impact on the
residential amenity of neighbours, in particular the potential for overlooking.

Page 63



5.2 The current proposal has incorporated minor amendments to the previously refused scheme
to help address the reason for refusal.

5.3 The plans now show the 2 no. first floor slim vertical windows in bedroom 1 in the extended
rear elevation would be non-opening and obscurely glazed, which would limit the impact on
the residential amenity of 11 Dalar Wen.

5.4 The orientation of the first floor window serving bedroom 1 with bi-fold doors and Juliet
balcony has been amended so the window now faces more directly into the garden area of
No. 51 and no longer faces a rear window of 9 Dalar Wen. The proposed window, at it's
closest point, would be 19m from the rear elevation of 9 Dalar Wen, which is in accordance
with the guidance contained in the Householder Development Design Guide for windows in a
back to back situation where the direct overlooking can be avoided by the positioning of the
windows.

5.5 The proposal is therefore considered to be acceptable and is recommended for grant.

RECOMMENDATION: GRANT- subject to the following conditions:-

1. The development to which this permission relates shall be begun no later than the expiration
of five years beginning with the date of this permission.

2. The materials and finishes of the external surfaces of the roof of the development hereby
permitted shall be of the same texture, type and colour as those on the roof of the existing
buildings.

3. Prior to the commencement of the application of any render, a sample panel of the type of

render it is proposed to use on the external surfaces of the walls shall be constructed on the
site, and the development shall only proceed in accordance with such sample as may be
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority : and the render to be used on the
building(s) shall be strictly of the same type, texture and colour as the approved sample
panel.

4. The two first floor vertical windows shown on the proposed rear elevation plan which face the
residential curtilage of 11 Dalar Wen shall be non-opening windows fitted within obscure
glazing. The windows shall be retained as non opening and obscurely glazed windows unless
otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority.

The reason(s) for the condition(s) is(are):-

1. To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.
2. In the interests of visual amenity.

3. In the interests of visual amenity.

4., For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of protecting residential amenity.

NOTES TO APPLICANT:

WELSH WATER Note to Applicant:

Dwr Cymru Welsh Water have advised that some public sewers and lateral drains may not be
recorded on their maps of public sewers because they were originally privately owned and were
transferred into public ownership by nature of the Water Industry (Schemes of Adoption of Private
Sewers) Regulations 2011. The presence of such assets may affect the proposal. In order to assist
Dwr Cymru Welsh Water in dealing with the proposal they request you contact their Operations
Contact Centre on 0800 085 3968 to establish the location and status of the sewer. Under the Water
Industry Act 1991 Dwr Cymru Welsh Water has rights of access to its apparatus at all times.

Page 64



WARD NO:

WARD MEMBER:

APPLICATION NO:

PROPOSAL:

LOCATION:

Agenda Item 7

Llandyrnog
Clir Mervyn Parry
18/2014/0793/ PF

Change of use of outbuildings to form 2 no. self-contained
suites of hotel letting accommodation, demolition of steel
silo, steel framed agricultural building and stone wall;
installation of a package treatment plant and associated
works

Pentre Mawr Country House Hotel Llandyrnog Denbigh

Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank



I Heading:
CYNGOR eading
* » REFERENCE NO. 18/2014/0794/LB
Sir Ddinbych
g R b.}/ . & 18/2014/0793/PF
X/ Denbighshire PENTRE MAWR, LLANDYRNOG
COUNTY COUNCIL
Graham Boase Application Site N
Head of Planning & Public Protection l
Denbighshire County Council Date 3/2/2015 Scale 1/2500
Caledfryn Centre = 310321 E 366911 N
Smithfield Road This plan is intended solely to give an indiction of the LOCATION of
Denbigh the application site which forms the subject of the accompanying report.
Denbighshire LL16 3RJ It does not form any part of the application documents, and should not
Tel: 01824 706800 Fax: 01824 706709 be Faken as r'eprese.ntatlv'e of the propogals to be considered, which are
available for inspection prior to the meeting.

V7
[

Pentre-mawr

4

=

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Surve behalf of ntroller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office.
© Crown copyright. Unauthorized reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosm (o] ERil fedings. Denbighshire County Council. 100023408. 2011.

Atgynhyrchir y map hwn o ddeunydd yr Ordnance Survey gyda chaniatad yr Ordnance Survey ar ran Rheolwr Llyfrfa Ei Mawrhydi
© Hawlfraint y Goron. Mae atgynhyrchu heb ganiatad yn torri hawlfraint y Goron a gall hyn arwain at erlyniad neu achos sifil. Cyngor Sir Ddinbych. 100023408. 2011.




Page 68




Y 3y Siping epuan
SYYy Aq pnaoy o TISaMY
JORIIIN GUYSIND

IBTE ?9..33&

yonq asuad Gl LG Honmmann
- BT UG pOGUISTD FMGAICT) 10 JADVIDHD JONSH SO GHERE (006
o 58 170 SO GHNT) ITH [0 MGI] 17} GRISHT] SN Y Bi50f  API00 P
P ORI GUXSIP VT DY O EHIANI TIYIS Vit GG JO DPIS IS701 & RN A1y iy
57 gﬂ.‘a RGOS0 S0 Y Ghpang ﬁ—s.m
PMBLTS ITOM THAYS BRISND g&u
M2y JIRT ORI \ “UNSTY IR VDDI] Dpusuely
HOYRIUSHI] T3 , B0 QU5 WoHRY GRIPII TUSIIOLGY Hoalq
D wxqaw»wm ﬁww_ﬂq aps _ 1.\...\ X OMCY oG TRS GG AUOTILIVT PR 1IIpmD)
by SUR 4 0% 205 oIt Sm&e.w o SIEE b B \«.m..__B_R_ 1unnapbo
1Py 2oL yn ANLS ] \
BHPI 5 Al v . § 3¢ sprng @ rooreg M4 P04
S Ve__mcmcﬁ_aa S GWi) I +w,.,|1|s UL BTN TV TSR0 IBSIETIM CTN
Pojpenar suysing t ; = TIPINALS FETPINT 99 O

/r g ._Fd_...m w\\\\ wﬁﬁﬁasq 251 19N

R ilen R0 TN uIpIng

¥ EHpING 10 9P 4573 4 P wooys
1na) GLUEPOKS by ﬁu&?@u&ﬁﬁnwm\u

G Gy tuae_ﬁs

“BEHITY Eq: Ny ueiy Jo
SYDOH IO LA a QY pIORING : GHUSIAD SE 1Ay
Wl RYATD gﬁk«% 0N b 4/ . LG PHOIS O
CHYSIYD SO pawmog, (¥9]
HSIYD SU POmBIn) Spas — m__u_mm_% ﬁ_ﬁ
J i
mxe_ﬁ\ ﬂn%nﬁ%ﬂ& maﬁimw.wa
MRJO JOWEO SIS O GO R i
Y Wmopminy NS DTN * TININAY =
[ROYINLSHG M G L
‘GOMYLITID WXETHOL SPPV6 A0

S OMY JY PYIOISo] Aoy .
yJod Jp?

1S Jy6mEnng pssi] : o mayy T E%ﬁ i

7200 umoy
SZOLL J GWPIMG POISIT
SHGED 52 PEppR TR NS Spipa 1 47y SSDIADNTNA 6
VIFFD Moprwign JYRRYIPED hijois Y ary _....W

' | a3sodoyd 00s1 S90 NV aLis @ .

[ T3I0H 3SN0H AHLNMO) SAVIA J4INZd \.w N
3 a,.
3 o.\

S70 ¥ #4q W0 prgLISTp

X U0 YS ST U 2D SO0 305 O

Page 69



Page 70




JBpent dnp i PRI 9 Y
(47003 oy imyS } SYOENIR 770 Of FROSTIY Pt

S

Jouam oo i ey | M
™ q a_ﬁm,_- mﬂ__ﬁe% 153

!I| G
il ;l

VATIONS

—m)”

W | IO i T ==——
! GIAHE 0 YOS ﬁ "§ppoog WINMIHIN
\Ls : s PenjLIDY VR p]00]
e gz ooy s e, Sl
{ 9 SEHIOY ma = Z 1]
S ooy m gy o s < o e e | TR
EOUT fu TREHY EHipod TG JEPHRY WIXHTG
ﬁ ¥ ONIIE) HYOT PRNY] pHY SN :
QY mrizsvI STy 9 & STOPHIT AN =
Q)72 A0 0N UL Y o 157 .
DY TOITOH PR 29 S 52 170 100 P v .
37 SORP KN PiTD 9000 ’
Q. H1NOS

Page 71

= - W
Pam) Y 410} PHD
73 Wuq eys?
Lk s
MU 7
Gl .
RS PP yeaviNgg Arpmy HLHON WeEXTIHUS _wvut»&.u‘iw
w E AR oG et I =
HIVH PRI OB —— el
amasomm A : = v T
A0 O IPA YD ‘ =7 PRGN SAEATD T
| | = WITyYy PHINTIP GHYSIKD
s == u(._aa.gﬁ MpASTY MO 7RG, I
J008 0y SUIID LU 3] Uy
| prpvenua Guax VIO @) EYRO% U 1 &
| ymg punTy SPTYIS AP [H1H0N m L m_ AP MNTS MO pRGUISTY ‘
TRV S PRIV 0 TGP 7Y M A WL‘ 0 970 §00 TJV]S CON
= ] LAGKY DI W g Wi Ja pmnIsep
S J0 TS IAYTR .u.A Fakly “poog PHYM Qﬁ:é% sm*ew G X%
HIF S0 SENHESS ONPIM (e il = i = 0 1 NS _|I
VORIGLIC ofVT VPITTY nll_H==1 | ) s o/ 39 yoewopig 1SVA  ypwpmg aj smopiit p 1000
BT HIRGONKN MM ST E=—=x| PO TR ) 0 _
B SISO I 12 e WIOrY2L0 D - EE 3 :
W g prokesp §uisu? ‘ m o7 ity g — = =
I plice Zm— | RIS AL M :
FURHON ===t T o 1 4 A P
Yl f oa:ﬁ\w.uiaw_w e o L S i e
S OEPU BNG S Iﬁ@Wﬁwﬂ

IO SIS FYS
14 TP PAMTON
£O IRy J02 PO

. & onigine

==l

|I||||I|||I.I.||

fg e | oo s =—— ———
BIsIYs SO yone

Y ONIOUNE pugs jonw 3 415p) W9G et




Page 72




\

—ETITR) B SfED S

Wi S oo M0
T ity 9 4 SOH
“ysihy oS ot
IR TN P 008
OB IR NPT

{77017 DU
i g

txsi uqenﬁum%&

GHysINB TR 2240

/A 00 GHXD :mE_
apnsud

"HORRS &

© gHipHo|
Ty

w00 30

e

g1146L0

ineg 84

WOCTHOWLTH PHIS I

D o407 HIS ORI
Nyl (IS

crpH 3pHaid 4

”.s_% E%i.\ﬁzqea.
Wi 240fS. GOJJIAC Jo0) TONOYP

WO WAN [ID Sy GRS
sy

wioW2 TVIGID Wy O SUNIIYS 400 PRUTTROA VIO U

[ oot

790 0350408\ 1310H -

[ 3SNOH

~
T

=3

pjsom TN 1V 5
poR Ve MOS b

“HiS WO D

Yuq o Seeg gy sningap
PIMDLIY SHIUG WYY GG M) 40
STV TOMIGLO 25 HITY 0f NOXOPIND]
VIOLINTIOP JO YIS ¥ W 51 8 WOg)

| MNP TONGLIOISHIDED i RSN
SR O S UNYINS of WeR] WG \

AYINNDD MV _dm_m._.zu.n_

FHOpR). Xrom

\
# B
|

\
\
\

A
2
: gy PRE MIS0; U STOGYN TOVIIGLIO0 BIISITR
. . . M2 130 % ¥ u 1 iy &swqﬂxﬁ MSN 72 VM, %ﬂ
: , : Soq W o7 ,ﬁi :
SPHETHHA IS HOTIDSI) WK IS\ Do, . T _ x@%ﬁ%« o PITIY VITEG DD | DS 5200
& %) XA BTG “GY Y STUPIIE O KOS M TR NS %ssmﬁ@&:ﬂg | = =y 0y 010 0 HoydDTED T M 7
. ; Srisiinl q Fios fomen . [ Nwhd 20013 Vv SNIgung TI - S ey PN 4 RS
[ 80014 ONNO¥I i U N e
. gﬁ@?@&@ﬁﬁ : &._ (s GHITID 40 SO af [US BT | - w;IY ?ﬂ&.&%ﬁﬁ&q 1425 SHTS
H . i sy § WS S BTV viagas = ph oy @M sy s | I gl o L1
A 51 OISRl T JAYTYS G T 47 GHTUN Y 4 o gy ga_.u Te WGP 40 o “ - i) St GHINIHY %Sraeﬁ“a
|y LR o o . "l oo to o 0y VY1 | w5y s pora g | |
i oy BS HOMOONSSH 57 ﬁéwdmmw%ﬁw H&Hﬁ P sy | | GISEXD IS PRI T4 - i
| . . . ﬁsyw.qmw ﬂﬁc cHn G0 e i) | §.3§§.%.escea, N N e #
) _:qumu N Wa_amnmqnmaaﬁ R == / / _ l . :
a. . # T S ~\5 v&u ﬂe_.._a.-s AICHILTSO [~ _
”f. ) 8 O PO Yers 4052 i w0 é&u—aﬂg ! W IR GLE W ADIIGCSIIID Y { : {
m o \ e yamyons | . 1yi0q Jie e i om|sip
L_ 2bung) ||4 Eﬂw\tﬁhw&aaﬁ ypnd BT s Ypans ....._.4_.” = F [ § I . H
Q. o) O] || popmrouars puo 2 ] T Gy S _ ) i abunoy .
e — §§§§§ %ma o vip 0OF =1 — _ ] Vi . ,|
ODO 0 I opsHiY i .—J_ _ i dl _
: FRSOR W r/02)— RS- DR Pl $
o vy mﬁ&ﬁ% wnanhmswE i M AR PO St - lmv o0
E %ﬁ:@ﬁﬂgaa_iﬁ o roq G - N~
IR S HOn ISTI VA PRASHO) SO0 DoEIT: i N il
] : ey Lo g uanig 3 1S Fo TR iy o
Lﬁn&ﬁa e..gem%uﬂﬁﬁ_wasa r M._.N ..& m@ M awmm_uezn 35@ %wwﬁua ; nnav
~ ; oy TS, pomdsany e d _ ' 3PS 7Y Iy __ 4 ~=
| iy AT S s —— 52
i e ﬁaﬁﬁa\q P M K bmiias oo e == —EPRUGP[7 HO WTOYS SO EMIMRIO JONIGI0 Of
N S ol YT CHISTE, S 40405 0 =X ngon i o g et sy
o GHIS2) 'y HO7 0 1 arman SAFT i oY 4 P YT AL o 74, Py
. DTLTY GRINPHS GHYSIX0 PRHTE S YRS TONTIN 9 & PP pANg TR0 £ SSTu] PR0G O PrD PRIop
C " Gy mRoRY RMRL WETHS HGW @1 YUddD SYDmyonsagl GrSD 2 army
: _ g 9NIguNg . Tﬁs \%53“_ emz : . : SEMAdNT
R . . " sﬂgﬂ%&a YIS TUNIOH IO POHSINY DOIT b
oo g OTH 1Y L - | T JIOTTIIN YEAG0I077
TS 3 000 10 ﬁl\‘mﬂ ) . w&sa% - T T . TGS Of P TINTIORIIT DPOIPNY].
PHHOS GYISTYD TSHRY dooid 1S G]HO ARONAHI « POUIOPEUYIM G ~GRMT ST wroys v ey TG 4} WOHS 5B PTXRA T0m F13Y  pvD

10N} AT VUGH{CTYY PIXVH JO CRY TEPDY {HOL

POTLL N JOf JO BV RIS S GHONR
N, APV 1ok prD 5o Hilon oMY oyg eou nuy

‘U7 SISB} RISUGY GHICIOJIT) SESHYIIRIS R} POMBISTD
\ PQISHS HOUD@M! Gf HOHNC " TINQIdT (QIHGT BNiFng

aj Py SPOTIYIZBIT STUNITUTIMTTIN W THITAIO
12US W OIS~V FIP0I5 ~ D)4 JIYEERY Wi
JHSDRN0 YOTIIEISHI DEDHRAND JTTO e THa ey

‘YD GHPIIRIMG PYNAL MeSPRT]| Ve Jo

FHSUATHOND TONIGLIG DRSHID) O PIoY J0 Yy
YASHIR) PAD QOIS J0G MOwpY P06 THYM PHD
[PRROP MOI0HS GUIEING YORUTYIRED  JIOCNo o

TY QY DS GYISTAD RDMOY) PIT HOWPTNGY



Page 74




EXISTING ELEVATIONS

| SNILSIH-00IT-Z50 - V210H 35N0M AXINN0D BMYA IR

s 1S3M
i e E e

UL

’ mﬁul.,..@..mm\wwm S5 e i
2, e 2" 28 R "

TR TS g

%y
b rpe e Y e
_ T
asreec Vil HLH0! aarrpes __..n!_..!::

é
i

3, F s _w 28 B
i e o[} =

g .
13y Dk vy -

El

EGERTZ)
Lo e
ERVELE )

NiH

E T e e
SHEFITEY arYRg
X af Y LN
LRES TEVETEEIFIN

8 smaing
EFLk FEFE IR

f
Ls

Page 75




Page 76




EXISTING FLOOR PLANS

[¢]

o B m

2y s NG ——
3 3 NYY HON4 ¥ SNIOING
i FRER) IR SR JO T

T2pen reve BF gt g

RV e
B FTGE G ST S@E o e
] N A
yrorezs ey g — T 1 ..\ﬁlh—l'
: , g
3 EN e |

‘N
\& 5
(w00 1584

~ Ky
. e

~  [RORAT rRiLS)
yZ

4 akoy
7

Iy
(e bt [Tov 190
0 _._uum-ﬂ_ ISAOH AMINADD HAMYH JHIN3d

Fyilng g
u&zhs.__m_m.e

bumng jorpraudo

[

Page 77




Page 78




EXISTING SITE PLAN

IWET GUT c
FMpTY PRI g ?ﬂ:a,

ol

" ‘Fm’“.— v bepr

TN MTRUIT  raine

RN o msT

UG ATy
FTEY XTI i g

why
auﬂp..u.t*imnﬂﬂ
FERICTRES o) b
| 9NiIsSa oSt €90 Nww as _.E \
| T304 3500 XHIRND) B Jaifiad g E g N =
y 2l
t::a:::_ 2 ¥ i

sy
TG Pl Sy

YT A A
PG rem)
FhFpgRren

Page 79




Page 80




lan Weaver
WARD NO: Llandyrnog
WARD MEMBER: Clir Mervyn Parry
APPLICATION NO: 18/2014/0793/ PF
PROPOSAL: Change of use of outbuildings to form 2 no. self-contained
suites of hotel letting accommodation, demolition of steel

silo, steel framed agricultural building and stone wall;
installation of a package treatment plant and associated

LOCATION: \Igvgs:rse Mawr Country House Hotel Llandyrnog Denbigh
APPLICANT: Mrs Bre Carrington-Sykes

CONSTRAINTS: Listed Building

PUBLICITY Site Notice — No

UNDERTAKEN: Press Notice — No

Neighbour letters - Yes

REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE:
Scheme of Delegation Part 2

e Recommendation to grant / approve — Town / Community Council objection

e Referral by Head of Planning / Development Control Manager

CONSULTATION RESPONSES:
LLANDYRNOG COMMUNITY COUNCIL

“Whilst the Community Council have no particular objection to the application as it stands there
are concerns about the cumulative impact of the recent developments in Pentre Mawr - in terms
of additional traffic generated and the impact thereof on the residents and regular users of this

narrow and dangerous single track lane.

We are led to believe that the venue now has a licence to hold weddings and other functions -

however couple this with the tented units and now possibly another two units and the increase

in traffic along this narrow and dangerous lane has had a severe impact on the
residents and regular users of this road - this is the message that has been relayed to
community councillors and therefore must be relayed to DCC as the planning authority.

Whether this is a material consideration or not is a matter for DCC however the applicants have
it within their powers improve the visibility and provide passing places along that stretch of lane

and maybe DCC could encourage this to happen.”

NATURAL RESOURCES WALES

No objections to the proposal. Do not consider it will affect the features, ecological
integrity or functionality or any statutory sites of ecological, geological, and / or
geomorphologic interest; or the character or integrity of any statutory protected or
nationally important landscapes. Consider the ecological survey and assessment in

Page 81



respect of statutory species to be satisfactory for the purposes of informing the
decision making process, and that the proposal is not likely to be detrimental to the
maintenance of the favourable conservation status of any populations of protected
species which may be present.

DWR CYMRU / WELSH WATER
No comments, as the proposals involve a private treatment works, which should be
considered by Natural Resources Wales.

DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CONSULTEES —

Head of Highways and Infrastructure

- Highways Officer
No objection. Proposals will not cause any significant highway related problems.
Future development will require full assessment of impact on the highway network

Conservation Officer

Has been in dialogue with the agent over the detailing of the scheme, including the
treatment of the buildings and the layout of the courtyard.

Supports the principle of new uses for buildings, albeit that the proposals are for part of
the buildings. No objections to the removal of the wall or proposals in general, as these
will prolong the life of the buildings. Suggests conditions be imposed to control details
of boundary treatment, internal repairs, reconstructed sections of building, means of
escape and insulation. Wishes to see the weather vane and cupola on the main range
repaired or protected as part of the works.

Biodiversity Officer.
No objection, but requested additional information regarding mitigation for nesting
birds. Suggests conditions be attached to address bat and nesting birds issues.

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY:
Susan Edwards, Pentre Bach, Llandyrnog
G Edwards & Son, c/o M E Roberts (NFU), 28 Well St, Ruthin
Philip Meade - Consultants - 103 Baeatrice Street, Oswestry (on behalf of G Edwards)

Summary of planning based representations in objection:

Residential amenity

Overlooking of private garden and loss of privacy from one of the proposed units /
noise and disturbance from occupiers of units/ fears over safety and security /
ambiguity of the proposed use of the extended garden and yard area between the
units and Pentre Mawr house

Drainage

Developments may require redesign of land drainage systems disturbed by
development / proposals will put extra pressure on existing foul drainage systems at
Pentre Mawr which is already failing

Conflict with policy and guidance

Assessment of the impact on the value in planning terms of the existing agricultural
use is a requirement in TAN 6/ conflict with SPG16 in relation to conversions —
unacceptable amenity impacts / buildings not suitable for the uses proposed and there

Page 82



does not seem to be a good business case to support the use; and the loss of the
buildings will result in the need for replacements elsewhere as the objector’s business
will be unviable otherwise.

Other matters
Relevant Notice served on the tenant is incomplete and invalid.

Impact on existing agricultural use

Proposals would have adverse effect on operation, efficiency and upkeep of tenanted
farm at Pentre Mawr and on farming practice at Plas Ashpool / grant of planning
permission would enable the applicant to serve a notice to quit on the agricultural
tenant and if this can not be defended, the farming of 190 acres will become untenable
/ buildings are used for handling and accommodating livestock, storage of agricultural
materials, tools and machinery which form an important part of the farming business
and remainder of the holding and other land farmed / responsibilities need to be
resolved for costs, compensation, relocation of farmyard and livestock handling
facilities and accommodation / question over legality of removing property owned by
the tenant / questions over the safety and viability of using land owned by tenant
farmer to accommodate the handling and loading of stock onto lorries/ potential impact
of movement of animals along new routes, including past Pentre Mawr and neighbours
to Plas Ashpool land / who meets compensation claims for loss or depletion of
business or income

Concerns over impact of wedding party use / marquee in garden area (noise and
disturbance, provision for parking)

EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION:

REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION (where applicable):

J protracted negotiations resulting in amended plans

o re-consultations / further publicity necessary on amended plans and / or
additional information

J awaiting consideration by Committee

PLANNING ASSESSMENT:
1. THE PROPOSAL.:
1.1 Summary of proposals
1.1.1 The application proposes the conversion of a detached single storey

outbuilding and a section of a larger range of outbuildings at Pentre Mawr, to
two self contained units of visitor accommodation in connection with the
enterprise at Pentre Mawr Country House Hotel. It involves the removal of
existing agricultural buildings and land which forms part of an agricultural
tenancy .

Page 83



1.1.2 The plans at the front of the report show the location of the proposed units

relative to the building complex at Pentre Mawr and to the nearest dwelling at
Pentre Bach, to the south.

The supporting documents refer to the 5 star hotel and the quality dining
facilities run from the main building at Pentre Mawr and recent authorisation to
hold weddings at the venue. They indicate the bedroom facilities available for
guests wishing to stay overnight are limited and that there are no facilities
available for disabled visitors. The proposals have been developed to expand
the facilities, and in part to cater for the needs of disabled guests.

The main elements of the development are:

The conversion of a detached single storey stone walled building to provide a
two bedroom accommodation unit, with a small patio area. This unit is
indicated as a ‘disability friendly unit’, with two disability compliant parking
spaces adjacent. The building has been in use for housing livestock, as a
barn and for storage purposes in connection with an agricultural enterprise
run on a tenancy separate to the business at Pentre Mawr..

The conversion of the end section of the brick walled range of buildings to a
one bedroom accommodation unit, with a single parking space shown on the
courtyard side of the building. The building would be re-roofed with slate as
part of the scheme. The building has been in use as a barn and hayloft in
connection with the aforementioned agricultural enterprise.

The removal of a portal frame agricultural building immediately to the south
west of the single storey building, also used in connection with the agricultural
enterprise.

The removal of a metal silo close to the boundary with Pentre Bach

The demolition of an existing stone wall which runs east-west across the
courtyard at the rear of Pentre Mawr, and currently separates the lawned area
serving Pentre Mawr and a yard area used in connection with the agricultural
enterprise.

The use of all the land within the courtyard formed by the outbuildings in
connection with Pentre Mawr, as an additional lawned area, and as an area
which is proposed to be surfaced in slate chippings around the new
accommodation units

The use of the existing main entrance to Pentre Mawr as the vehicular access
to serve the two accommodation units

The application is accompanied by a Design and Access Statement,
incorporating a Listed Building Justification Statement, a Structural Condition
Report, a Protected Species Survey, and a Site History Assessment.

1.1.6 As part of the application process, notice has been served on Mr Gordon

Edwards of Y Fferm, Llanfwrog, as an agricultural tenant. The issues relating

Page 84



to the agricultural use of land and buildings involved in the application are
covered later in the report.

In relation to the existing agricultural use of the area around the proposed
accommodation units and the remainder of the two storey outbuildings, a site
plan note states ‘No agricultural activity from courtyard to avoid conflict with
needs of high quality hotel business’, and ‘Cart sheds retained as existing’ .
The site plan is reproduced at the front of the report.

Pentre Mawr and its main outbuildings are Grade Il Listed Buildings, and the
single storey building proposed for conversion is a curtilage structure and
therefore deemed listed for the purposes of planning legislation. The
proposals are therefore the subject of a separate listed building consent
application, being dealt with under Code no. 18/2014/0794/LB

1.2Description of site and surroundings

1.2.1

1.2.2

1.2.3

1.2.4

1.2.5

The Pentre Mawr complex of buildings is located approximately 2km north of
Llandyrnog village.

It is accessed off minor roads from the B5429. The vehicular access serving
the Country House is a driveway off the minor road which runs past the front
of the main house to a parking area to the west.

The building complex consists of an historic Manor House (as noted, a Grade
I listed building) and a range of outbuildings, most of which are also listed
buildings. There are also more modern, but long established agricultural
buildings near to the single storey building proposed for conversion, in the
form of a portal frame building and a silo.

The main building is in use as a bed and breakfast business with dining
facilities and there are a number of ‘tented bedrooms’ on land immediately to
the west of the main house. The parking area for visitors is located 40 metres
to the north west of the main house at Pentre Mawr.

A lawn area to the south of the main house is in use in connection with the
bed and breakfast business and owners private accommodation. lts extent is
defined by a substantial stone wall which divides the courtyard enclosed by
the range of outbuildings. The area to the south side of the wall, including the
buildings and land has been in use in connection with an agricultural
business.

1.3Relevant planning constraints/considerations

1.3.1

The site is located in the open countryside.

1.4Relevant planning history

1.4.1

1.4.2

The bed and breakfast use at Pentre Mawr has developed gradually over time
from an incidental use to the dwelling. The owners obtained planning consent
to use the ‘Manor’ house as a bed and breakfast facility / Country House Hotel
in October 2013, involving use of 3 out of 5 bedrooms as guest
accommodation. Planning permission was eventually granted for the retention
of 6 tented bedrooms’ used in connection with the facilities in the main house,
in June 2014.

The Council has been made aware during 2014 of the introduction of a
marquee in the garden area of the property, used in connection with the

Page 85



staging of weddings. This has been the subject of separate enforcement
investigation and is not a consideration in relation to the current application.

1.5Developments/changes since the original submission
1.5.1 The applicant and agent have provided additional background information in
response to representations on the impact on the agricultural use, and have
revised the plans to clarify points of detail in relation to the layout and works
on the outbuildings.

1.60Other relevant background information
1.6.1 The application involves land and buildings which it is understood are used in
connection with a farm business run on an agricultural tenancy, which has
raised a volume of correspondence. The following paragraphs provide an
outline of the main issues raised by and on behalf of the affected party and
the owners of Pentre Mawr.

1.6.2 The basic points raised on behalf of the objectors is:

- The Edwards family have farmed at Pentre Mawr since 1969 with a tenancy
agreement.

- Robert Edwards, who is the owner / occupier of Pentre Bach, is a partner in
the business

- The proposals would have a detrimental effect on farming practice at Pentre
Mawr, as the buildings involved are of fundamental importance to the running
of the business and safe handling of livestock.

- Without the facilities, the alternative would be to reduce the farm business and
the production / profitability would likewise reduce. This may result in the loss of
the farming business altogether

- If planning permission is granted, under the terms of the tenancy agreement,
the applicants can serve a notice to quit the buildings which the tenant would
be forced to defend. If this fails, the farming of the 190 acres will become
untenable

- Reference is made to a High Court case in 2000 where it was determined that
the impact of a planning application on the personal circumstances of a tenant,
where the landlord was making the application, was a material consideration in
the planning process.

- Supplementary Guidance and Technical Advice Notes require consideration
to be given to the impacts on neighbouring occupiers and in respect of
tenanted agricultural buildings, the value in planning terms of the existing use

1.6.3 The applicants and their representatives have responded to issues raised in
the following fashion:

- A Certificate B has been re-issued to reflect the date of service of the notice
(this is the formal process of notification to the Council that there is an
agricultural tenant with an interest in land involved in the application).

- The tenancy has limited longevity and will expire in time, and the tenants will
then have to make alternative arrangements. The hotel business has
permanence, provides support to the local economy and sustains local
employment

- The use of the land and buildings in the manner experienced is damaging to
the hotel business with unsightly stored plant and machinery, slurry causing
smells and an environmental hazard

Page 86



- In respecting concerns from Pentre Bach at residential amenity impacts,
separation distances are more than adequate. The proposals will reduce noise
and disturbance and enhance security and crime prevention

- The proposals to remove existing agricultural buildings will enhance the built
environment

- Under the terms of the tenancy agreement, the landlord has the ability to serve
a notice to quit on any part of the holding not being more than 25% the holding
for a non agricultural use. This is not considered to be a planning matter.

- The buildings and yard are not crucial to the operation of the rest of the tenant’s
agricultural business and their current use is infrequent (part of the cattle shed
is used for cattle in winter months, the stone building is used for occasional
loading and sorting of stock which can be transferred to any part of the holding)

- The application seeks to ensure the future sustainability of Pentre Mawr,
providing additional income to ensure it is successful and to provide
employment to the local community

1.6.4 As referred to in paragraph 1.4.2, there has been separate investigation into the
siting of a marquee in the garden area of Pentre Mawr, which has been used in
connection with wedding events, following complaints over associated noise,
disturbance, and traffic issues. This is not a matter for consideration as part of
the current application as it seeks only a permission to convert the two
buildings and to carry out related access, parking, hard and soft landscaping
works.

2. DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY:
2.118/2008/0289 Construction of 6 no. chalets, landscaping and pedestrian access
routes. GRANTED - Decision issued 18/06/2014

2.218/2013/0981 Mixed use of premises as dwelling and bed and breakfast facility
(retrospective application). Granted 16/10/2013

3. RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE:
3.1The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be:
Denbighshire Local Development Plan (adopted 4" June 2013)
Policy PSE5 — Rural economy
Policy VOE1 - Key areas of importancePolicy ASA3 — Parking standards

3.2Supplementary Planning Guidance
Re-use and adaptation of Rural Buildings

3.3Government Policy / Guidance
Planning Policy Wales Edition 7 July 2014

Technical Advice Notes — TAN 6 Planning for sustainable rural communities July
2010

3.40ther material considerations
4. MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS:
In terms of general guidance on matters relevant to the consideration of a planning
application, Planning Policy Wales Edition 7, July 2014 (PPW) confirms the requirement

that planning applications 'should be determined in accordance with the approved or
adopted development plan for the area, unless material considerations indicate

Page 87



otherwise' (Section 3.1.2). PPW advises that material considerations must be relevant to

the regul

ation of the development and use of land in the public interest, and fairly and

reasonably relate to the development concerned., and that these can include the

number,

size, layout, design and appearance of buildings, the means of access,

landscaping, service availability and the impact on the neighbourhood and on the
environment (Sections 3.1.3 and 3.1.4).

The following paragraphs in Section 4 of the report therefore refer to the policies of the
Denbighshire Local Development Plan, and to the material planning considerations
which are considered to be of relevance to the proposal.

4.1The main land use planning issues in relation to the application are considered to

be:

411
41.2
41.3
41.4
41.5
4.1.6
41.7
4.1.8
4.1.9
411
411

Principle

Visual amenity
Residential amenity
Landscape

Ecology
Drainage (including flooding)

Highways (including access and parking)
Inclusive design
Impact on Listed Building

0 Other matters

1 Impact on Agricultural Holding

4.21In relation to the main planning considerations:

4.21

Principle

The main policy in the Local Development Plan which is relevant to tourism
related development is PSE5, which offers general support for proposals
which make a contribution to sustainable development. The policy contains
four tests relating to employment proposals for conversions and new build
which require that the proposal is appropriate in scale and nature to its
location; that any suitable buildings are converted or reused in preference to
new build; proposals for new build are supported by a business case ; and full
account is taken of impacts where proposals are in the AONB, AOB or World
Heritage site.

PSES reflects the general support in the Local Development Plan to develop
the local economy and businesses. Section 11 of Planning Policy Wales 7
emphasises the importance of tourism to economic prosperity and job
creation, supporting the objectives to encourage community well-being, whilst
protecting and giving value to natural heritage and culture, all in the context of
minimising environmental impact.

In terms of detail, the last two tests of PSE5 are not relevant to the
application. The proposals meet the second test, as this expresses a
preference for conversion in preference to new build development. In Officers’
opinion, the use of two existing buildings within a larger complex of buildings
is appropriate in scale and nature to the location. It is suggested therefore that
the general principle of the conversions to units of accommodation is
acceptable in relation to the policy. The key issues are considered to be the
localised impact of the proposals, which are reviewed in the following sections

Page 88



422

4.2.3

of the report.

Visual amenity / design

In referring to what may be regarded as material considerations, Planning
Policy Wales 3.1.4 refers to the number, size, layout, design and appearance
of buildings, the means of access, landscaping, service availability and the
impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment. The impact of a
development on visual amenity is therefore a relevant test on planning
applications. This is emphasised in Paragraph 3.1.7, which states that
proposals should be considered in terms of their effect on the amenity and
existing use of land and buildings in the public interest. As the Courts have
ruled that the individual interest is an aspect of the public interest, it is
therefore valid to consider the visual amenity implications of a proposal as a
material consideration.

There are no adverse representations raised in relation to the visual impact of
the proposals. The Conservation Officer has no objections to the removal of
the stone wall which subdivides the courtyard, and has sought improvements
to detailed design elements of the scheme. She is suggesting the imposition
of conditions if permission is granted, to ensure controls over specific
features.

In Officers’ opinion, in terms purely of design detailing, the plans submitted to
show the works on the buildings proposed for conversion demonstrate a
sensitive approach to the task of adaptation to a new use. The plans do need
additional detailing, in particular in relation to the proposed reconstructed
sections and in respect of fenestration, the hard and soft landscaping,
including boundary fencing / walls, but they are considered acceptable as a
way forward here. It is suggested that any permission would need to oblige
the submission of further plans with the aforementioned details to ensure
these respect the quality of the environment and the listed status of the
building complex. The removal of the portal framed agricultural building and
the steel silo are considered to be recognisable visual improvements
associated with the development.

Landscape impact

Policy VOE 1 relating to key areas of importance seeks to protect areas
designated of natural landscape value and Historic Landscapes from
development which may adversely affect them. Due consideration has
therefore to be given to the impact of proposals on the Vale of Clwyd Historic
Landscape, which the site lies within. The requirement to take account of
landscape impact is reflected in general advice in Planning Policy Wales 7
and Technical Advice Note 12: Design.

There are no representations raising issues relating to the landscape impact
of the proposals, including from Natural Resources Wales.

Officers’ view is that the development would not have unacceptable impacts
on the Vale of Clwyd Historic Landscape Area. The physical effects of the
conversion of existing buildings would be negligible in wider landscape terms,
and the removal of the steel framed agricultural building and the silo would if
anything have a beneficial impact on the landscape, these being relatively
nondescript modern features.

Page 89



4.2.4 Residential amenity
Planning Policy Wales 3.1.4 refers to the number, size, layout, design and
appearance of buildings, the means of access, landscaping, service
availability and the impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment as
potentially material considerations. The impact of a development on
residential amenity is therefore a relevant test on planning applications. This
is emphasised in Paragraph 3.1.7, which states that proposals should be
considered in terms of their effect on the amenity and existing use of land and
buildings in the public interest. As the Courts have ruled that the individual
interest is an aspect of the public interest, it is therefore valid to consider the
residential amenity implications of a development as a material consideration.

Objections have been received from the owner / occupiers of Pentre Bach
expressing concerns at the potential impact of the proposals in respect of
overlooking of the private garden and loss of privacy from one of the proposed
units, from noise and disturbance, at the ambiguity of the proposed use of the
area between the units and Pentre Mawr, and over issues of safety and
security. The applicant’s agent has suggested separation distances are more
than adequate and that the proposals will reduce noise and disturbance and
enhance security and crime prevention. It is also noted that there is already
an agricultural use of the area to the north of Pentre Bach which gives rise to
levels of noise and disturbance.

In offering comment first on the issues of overlooking and loss of privacy,
factually, the dwellinghouse at Pentre Bach itself is some 30 metres from the
walls of the proposed accommodation units, and its rear garden boundary is
some 10 metres from the two units. This relationship is best appreciated by
referring to the plans at the front of the report. The detailing of the proposed
single storey unit shows an entrance door and window serving a WC on the
gable end facing towards Pentre Bach at a distance of 10 metres from the
property boundary. With additional boundary screening in this location,
Officers would conclude there are no overlooking or privacy issues likely to
arise in relation to Pentre Bach from this unit. The plans of the two storey unit
show a ground floor WC window and a window at first floor level providing
light for a stairwell in the gable end facing west, and there would be a
ground floor door and rooflight window on the reconstructed single storey
section facing south. Having due regard to the detailing, Officers would not
consider there would be any unacceptable overlooking or loss of privacy for
the occupiers of Pentre Bach from this unit.

Given the relative distances between the properties, Officers would not
consider the level of noise and disturbance from activity associated with the
two units of accommodation used in connection with Pentre Mawr would be
likely to be such that there would be unreasonable impacts on the occupiers
of Pentre Bach, sufficient to merit a recommendation of refusal. However, the
Conservation Officer has requested in connection with the Listed Building
Consent application that a condition be imposed requiring approval of internal
details relating to mitigation of noise, fire, and insulation, which would
introduce measures for limiting transfer of noise. There is also scope here to
oblige the provision of a more substantial boundary wall along the southern
boundary between the site and Pentre Bach, which could act as a visual and
noise barrier to mitigate impacts of activity associated with the
accommodation units.

It is not considered with due respect to the concerns of the objectors, that

Page 90



4.2.5

4.2.6

safety and security fears from the use of buildings as accommodation units
can be accorded significant weight in the consideration of the application.

Officers acknowledge the concerns over the future use of the extended
lawn/yard area between the proposed accommodation units and Pentre
Mawr. It is suggested that consideration should be given to restricting the use
to occupiers of the new accommodation units, guest accommodation at
Pentre Mawr Country House, and the owner/occupiers of Pentre Mawr and
staff involved in the running of the business.

Ecology
Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (iii) requires development to protect

and where possible to enhance the local natural and historic environment.
Policy VOE 5 requires due assessment of potential impacts on protected
species or designated sites of nature conservation, including mitigation
proposals, and suggests that permission should not be granted where
proposals are likely to cause significant harm to such interests. This reflects
policy and guidance in Planning Policy Wales (Section 5.2), current legislation
and SPG 18 — Nature Conservation and Species Protection, which stress the
importance of the planning system in meeting biodiversity objectives through
promoting approaches to development which create new opportunities to
enhance biodiversity, prevent biodiversity losses, or compensate for losses
where damage is unavoidable.

There are no objections to the proposals in respect of ecological impacts from
Natural Resources Wales or the Council’s Biodiversity Officer. The latter has
sought provision for swallow mitigation and suggests conditions be attached
to cover bat and nesting birds issues.

Officers’ conclusion on ecological matters is that adequate mitigation for
impacts can be secured through planning conditions if a permission were to
be granted.

Drainage (including flooding)

Drainage issues are a normal consideration on planning applications.
Planning Policy Wales Section 13.2 identifies flood risk as a material
consideration in planning and along with TAN 15 — Development and Flood
Risk, provides a detailed framework within which risks arising from different
sources of flooding should be assessed, where this is relevant to a
development.

Comments from / on behalf of the neighbours raise concerns over potential
impact on land drainage systems disturbed by development, and that
proposals will put extra pressure on existing foul drainage systems at Pentre
Mawr which is already failing. Natural Resources Wales and Dwr Cymru
Welsh Water have raised no objections on drainage grounds. The proposals
are to introduce a new mini treatment plant to serve both units, separate from
any system serving Pentre Mawr. The site is not in a flood zone.

In respecting the comments on drainage impacts, there are no grounds of
concern expressed in the responses of the key statutory consultees. The foul
drainage system proposed to serve the accommodation units would be
entirely separate fro the system serving Pentre Mawr. Appropriate details of
the reinstatement of land in the area of the buildings to be removed would
need to be submitted for further approval, to include indications of land

Page 91



427

4.2.8

drainage proposals. Surface water drainage associated with the
accommodation units is indicated by way of soakaways, which is likely to be
the current means of disposal. There are no flood risk issues to consider
here.

Highways (including access and parking)

Planning Policy Wales 3.1.4 refers to what may be regarded as material
considerations and that these can include the number, size, layout, design
and appearance of buildings, the means of access, landscaping, service
availability and the impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment. The
acceptability of means of access is therefore a standard test on most planning
applications. Policy ASA 3 requires adequate parking spaces in connection
with development proposals, and outlines considerations to be given to
factors relevant to the application of standards. These policies reflect general
principles set out in Planning Policy Wales (Section 8) and TAN 18 —
Transport, in support of sustainable development.

Llandyrnog Community Council have raised the matter of cumulative impact
of recent developments in Pentre Mawr, including the licence to hold
weddings - in terms of additional traffic generated and the impact on the
residents and regular users of the narrow lane. The Highway Officer has no
objection, as it is considered the proposals will not cause any significant
highway related problems.

It is not considered in the context of the Highway Officer's comments, and
with respect to the comments of the Community Council that there are strong
highway grounds to refuse permission here, given all that is under
consideration in the application is the potential impact of traffic generated by
the two accommodation units. The wedding function use is not a matter for
deliberation here. Officers view is that the highway implications of the
proposals before the Council would be limited, having regard to the likely
traffic movements which would be generated, and the fact that the
implementation of the permission would displace the agricultural use of the
courtyard at Pentre Mawr, which in itself is capable of generating a volume of
traffic when in active use.

Impact on listed buildings and the historic environment

Local Development Plan Policy VOE 1 seeks to protect sites of built heritage
from development that would adversely affect them, which requires
assessment, where relevant, of impacts on archaeological, landscape and
listed building interests. The context for assessment of applications involving
alterations, extensions, and demolition of listed buildings which require
planning permission is set by Welsh Office Circular 61/ 96 and Planning
Policy Wales (Section 6), which also stress the importance of protecting the
historic environment. PPW 6.1 refers specifically to the need to ensure the
character of historic buildings is safeguarded from alterations, extensions, or
demolition that would compromise their special architectural and historic
interest.; and 6.5.9 indicates that where a development proposal affects a
listed building or its setting, the primary material consideration is the statutory
requirement to have special regard to the desirability of preserving the
building or its setting, and any features of special architectural or historic
interest which it possesses. These are matters dealt with in detail in the
following report on the agenda, in respect of the listed building consent
application.

Page 92



4.2.9

There are no representations on the application which express specific
comment on the impact of the proposals on the listed buildings. The
Conservation Officer is a key consultee on this aspect of the application and
has no objections to the proposals subject to imposition of conditions to
control the detailing of the development.

Officers would suggest the proposals to renovate and to introduce a positive
new use into listed buildings showing clear signs of deteriorating physical
condition is worthy of support in principle, as a means of securing their future.
In terms of the detailing of the scheme, it is considered that subject to controls
over work on the buildings and the treatment of the courtyard and boundary
fencing / walls, there would be no adverse impact on the character or
appearance of the listed buildings or their setting.

Inclusive design

The requirement to address issues of safe and convenient access for disabled
persons is set out in TAN 12 Design, TAN 18 Transport, and Policy RD1 test
(vii), which sets out the need for mandatory Access Statements with planning
applications.

The details with the submission indicate the single storey building would be
fully accessible for persons with disability.

4.2.10 Other matters

Impact on agricultural business / agricultural tenancy

Members will appreciate from the summaries of representations on the
application and the contents of Section 1.6.2 of the report that there are
specific comments made on the impact of the proposed conversions of the
buildings and the expansion of the lawn area of Pentre Mawr into the
remainder of the courtyard, on the operation of a farm business operated from
the premises on an agricultural tenancy. The substance of responses from
and on behalf of the applicants are included in Section 1.6.3, and are
available for inspection on the application files.

In respecting the position of the landlord and tenant and the obviously difficult
issues the submission has given rise to, Members will understand that there
are limits on the role of the Council as a Planning Authority in its consideration
of matters relevant to the determination of a planning application. Simply, the
Council cannot act as an arbitrator in disputes between parties in relation to
civil law issues associated with tenancy agreements, including a landlord’s
decision to seek termination of a tenancy, which involves legislation such as
the Agricultural Holdings Act, and separate arbitration processes.

The land use planning considerations which have been drawn to the Council’s
attention, which are relevant to proposals for the re-use and adaptation of
rural buildings are in Welsh Government’s Technical Advice Note 6, and
include the following-

Paragraph 3.2.1 suggests the primary consideration should be whether the
nature and extent of the new use proposed is acceptable in planning terms,
and that it should not normally be necessary to consider whether a building is
no longer needed for its present agricultural purposes ; however it states
“...although in the case of a tenanted agricultural building, the value in
planning terms of the existing use should be taken into consideration”.

Page 93



There is further advice in Paras 6.2.5 — 6.2.9:

The relevant sections are —

6.2.5 — farms with development close to them tend to suffer from trespass and
other forms of disturbance which may affect the efficiency and upkeep of
holdings.

6.2.6 — farms vary in size, type of business and layout, the loss of part of a
holding can have important impacts for the remainder; the effect of severance
and fragmentation on the farm and its structure may be relevant.

6.2.7 — efficiency of farms can be affected by the condition and extent of
buildings and other fixed equipment; the full use of these assets could be
impaired by the loss of specific sites to development.

6.2.9 — developments may have further consequences for agriculture; for
example it may be necessary to redesign land drainage systems disturbed by
development.

In order to inform this section of the report, Officers have sought advice from
colleagues involved in the Agricultural and Estates Section.

In terms of the value in planning terms of the existing use, it is only possible to
offer basic comment from the information in front of the Council.

It is understood that factually the agricultural business involves dealing in
cattle and that stock are moved on and off the land at Pentre Mawr ; the large
shed being used to house stock during the winter and to store machinery; the
single storey building being used to sort stock (including sheep) prior to
loading and transportation; and along with the section of the brick building, is
used for general storage.

From observation, and photographs submitted by the applicants, there is
evidence that the buildings and yard area are in use in connection with the
agricultural business and have a value for that business, but it is difficult to
conclude whether they are so critical to its operation that their loss would
necessarily lead to the loss of the business. The older buildings are clearly
dated and in poor repair, and like the yard area are being used for the storage
of arange of material.

Given the nature of the use and the extent of the holding, it does not seem
unreasonable to suggest that there is scope to reorganise the arrangements
for moving stock and associated machinery / materials to allow the business
to continue.

In respect of the other issues referred to in TANSG, it is not considered likely
that the nature of the uses proposed would lead to unacceptable risks from
trespass and disturbance to the efficiency and upkeep of the holding. There is
no issue of severance or fragmentation here as the proposals involve the loss
of a small yard area and buildings associated with it. The impact of loss of
buildings and the yard area are addressed above. Land drainage issues are
addressed in section 4.2.6 of the report.

In concluding on this matter, Officers acknowledge that the potential impact
on the agricultural business requires consideration, but having regard to the
above, it is not concluded that the effects would be so significant to merit a
recommendation for refusal of permission, when put into the balance against
other matters relevant to the merits of the proposals.

Page 94



The issues of responsibilities for costs / compensation , relocation of
farmyard and livestock handling facilities and accommodation for livestock,
machinery, tools, materials, the legality of removing roofing materials on the
brick building which were put there by the tenant, the safety and viability of
using land to move livestock and access for livestock vehicles, and the onus
for submitting a planning application for a new farmyard and livestock
handling facilities are respectfully not ones for consideration by the County
Council in the determination of the planning application.

5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS:

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

The application proposes the conversion of two agricultural buildings within the
complex at Pentre Mawr for use as accommodation units in connection with the
existing Country House Hotel. It involves the removal of a portal frame agricultural
building and a silo, and the extension of the garden into an area used in
connection with the operation of an agricultural business which is run on a tenancy
agreement.

The applicant’s case is that the proposals are an essential development of an
existing business and are in accord with local and national policy encouraging
suitable tourist related schemes. They argue the existing agricultural uses of the
buildings and land is detrimental to the business aims of the hotel and to the
setting of the listed buildings. They consider the proposals are sympathetic to the
character and appearance of the buildings and the setting of the listed buildings at
Pentre Mawr, and are a first step in the regeneration of the remainder of the
historic buildings in the complex.

The Community Council have raised comments over the highway implications of
additional development at the property, and there are concerns expressed over
the impact of use of the buildings and land on the adjacent dwelling and on the
operation of the farm business on an agricultural tenancy. Consultation responses
are supportive of the proposals subject to suitable conditions being imposed to
control detailed elements of the scheme.

Officers’ conclusions are that the principle of developing an existing business is
encouraged in current planning policy and guidance. There are good conservation
grounds for supporting proposals which secure the long term future of listed
buildings. Elements of detailing are capable of control through conditions if
permission is granted. The highway implications of an additional two
accommodation units are not considered to be significant. Amenity impacts on
Pentre Bach can be mitigated by suitable screening, and through internal detailing
which can be controlled through conditions on the planning and listed building
consents.

There are difficult issues relating to the impact on the agricultural tenant. The
report notes that the Council cannot act as arbiter in any dispute between a
landlord and tenant and should deal with the proposals solely in terms of land use
planning impacts. Regard has to be given to the value of the facilities to the
agricultural business, but it is concluded that this is not a matter which would merit
a recommendation for refusal of permission, considered alongside the factors
weighing in support of the proposals. Responsibility for resolving claims for
compensation for impacts on the business, provision of alternative facilities, etc is
a matter between landlord and tenant.

Page 95



5.6 Having regard to the above, Officers suggest the proposals are acceptable
subject to conditions, and justify support as they are a relatively small scale
development of an existing tourist enterprise and present an opportunity to secure
the long term future of the buildings. Physically the development would have a
positive impact on the character and appearance of the buildings involved, and on
the setting of the Pentre Mawr complex.

RECOMMENDATION: GRANT- subject to the following conditions:-

RECOMMENDATION: GRANT- for the following reasons:-

1. The development to which this permission relates shall be begun no later than the expiration
of five years beginning with the date of this permission.
2. Notwithstanding the details shown on the submitted plans, no works on the conversion of the

outbuildings shall be permitted to commence until the written approval of the Local Planning Authority
has been obtained to the detailing of all of all hard and soft landscaping details, including boundary
walls and fencing, the surfacing of access ways and the treatment of the courtyard area, proposed
planting including species and numbers; and the maintenance thereof. The development shall be
carried out strictly in accordance with the approved details.

3. Notwithstanding the details shown on the submitted plans of the area around the proposed
accommodation units and the boundary with Pentre Bach, no works shall be permitted to be carried
out on the buildings or the layout of that area until the written approval of the Local Planning Authority
has been obtained to the detailing of the boundary treatment and means of preventing vehicular
access by visitors to the accommodation units and Pentre Mawr via the track running along the
eastern boundary with Pentre Bach. The accommodation units shall not be occupied until the
development has been completed in accordance with the approved details, and the arrangements
shall be retained at all times thereafter.

4. All planting, seeding, turfing, fencing, walling or other treatment approved under the
conditions of this permission shall be carried out prior to the bringing into use of the accommodation
units, and any trees or plants which, within a period of five years from being planted, die, are removed
or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of
similar size and species.

5. Before the accommodation unit in Building A is first brought into use, all measures to secure
its accessibility as a disabled friendly unit shall be completed. The measures shall be retained at all
times thereafter.

6. None of the accommodation units shall be brought into use until the foul drainage system and
associated soakaway system has been completed.
7. The portal framed agricultural building shall not be demolished until the written approval of the

Local Planning Authority has been obtained to details of the reinstatement of the land exposed by the
removal of the slab and frame, including the proposed land drainage system, the proposed levels,
materials to be used in reinstatement, and the planting of the surface layer.

8. In relation to the carrying out of the development, no site works shall be permitted to take
place until the written approval of the Local Planning Authority has been obtained to a Construction
Stage Plan indicating demolition methodology, site compound locations, construction traffic routes
within the site, and hours and days of operation. The works shall be carried out strictly in accordance
with the approved details.

9. None of the accommodation units hereby approved shall be occupied until the respective
access and parking arrangements have been completed in accordance with the plans approved in
accordance with this permission and conditions. The access and parking arrangements shall be
maintained as approved at all times.

10. Vehicular access to the accommodation units shall be obtained solely from the existing main
access serving Pentre Mawr off the public highway, and there shall be no vehicular access from the
track running alongside the eastern boundary with Pentre Bach at any time.

11. The development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the recommendations in the
Section 9 of the submitted Protected Species Survey.
12. The use of the courtyard area between the accommodation units and Pentre Mawr indicated

on the approved site plan as a lawn, yard and slate chippings, shall be limited to occupiers of the new
accommodation units, guest accommodation at Pentre Mawr Country House , and the

Page 96



owner/occupiers of Pentre Mawr, their family and friends, and staff involved in the running of the
business.

The reason(s) for the condition(s) is(are):-

To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

In the interests of visual amenity and to protect the character and appearance of the listed
U|Id|ngs

In the interests of visual and residential amenity.

In the interests of visual amenity.

To ensure adequate provision for accessibility for persons with disability.

To ensure the development is served by a suitable drainage system.

In the interests of visual amenity and to ensure the area is properly drained.

In the interests of the amenities of occupiers of nearby residential property.

To ensure there is no long term vehicular use of the unsurfaced track running to the south of
the courtyard, in the interest of the highway safety and the residential amenities of occupiers of Pentre
Bach.

10. To ensure there is no long term vehicular use of the unsurfaced track running to the south of
the courtyard, in the interest of the highway safety and the residential amenities of occupiers of Pentre
Bach.

11. To ensure that adequate mitigation is undertaken in relation to protected species.

12. In the interests of the residential amenities of occupiers of Pentre Bach.

OWN@@PWUNT‘

NOTES TO APPLICANT:

You are hereby reminded that the works to which this permission relates also require Listed Building
Consent and that it does not necessarily follow that such Consent will be granted. It is a criminal
offence to carry out works affecting a listed building without listed building Consent, and you are
therefore strongly recommended to ensure that no such works are carried out until the appropriate
Consent has also been granted.

The Council's attention has been drawn to the use of land and buildings affected by the application,
by an agricultural tenant. You should be aware that the grant of planning permission does not override
any civil law restrictions which may prevent the implementation of the planning consent.

You are advised to contact the Development Management Section Case Officer to discuss the
requirements of the conditions of this permission in advance of the submission of the relevant details.
In respect of condition 3 Officers consider it necessary to erect a more substantial screen wall along
the boundary with Pentre Bach in order to provide an effective visual and noise barrier to mitigate
impacts of the use of the courtyard.

Your attention is drawn to the attached Highway Supplementary Notes Nos. 1, 3, 4, 5 & 10.
Your attention is drawn to the attached Part N form (New Road and Street Works Act 1991).

Your attention is drawn to the attached notes relating to applications for consent to construct a
vehicular crossing over a footway / verge under Section 184 of the Highways Act 1980.

Page 97



This page is intentionally left blank



WARD NO:

WARD MEMBER(S):

APPLICATION NO:

PROPOSAL:

LOCATION:

Agenda Iltem 8

Llandyrnog
Clir Mervyn Parry
18/2014/0794/ LB

Change of use of outbuildings to form 2 no. self-contained
suites of hotel letting accommodation, demolition of steel
silo, steel framed agricultural building and stone wall;
installation of a package treatment plant and associated
works (Listed Building application)

Pentre Mawr Country House Hotel, Llandyrnog, Denbigh

Page 99



This page is intentionally left blank



I Heading:
CYNGOR eading
* » REFERENCE NO. 18/2014/0794/LB
Sir Ddinbych
g R b.}/ . & 18/2014/0793/PF
X/ Denbighshire PENTRE MAWR, LLANDYRNOG
COUNTY COUNCIL
Graham Boase Application Site N
Head of Planning & Public Protection l
Denbighshire County Council Date 3/2/2015 Scale 1/2500
Caledfryn Centre = 310321 E 366911 N
Smithfield Road This plan is intended solely to give an indiction of the LOCATION of
Denbigh the application site which forms the subject of the accompanying report.
Denbighshire LL16 3RJ It does not form any part of the application documents, and should not
Tel: 01824 706800 Fax: 01824 706709 be Faken as r'eprese.ntatlv'e of the propogals to be considered, which are
available for inspection prior to the meeting.

V7
[

Pentre-mawr

4

=

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Surve behalf of t] oller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office.
© Crown copyright. Unauthorized reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosm (o] €l pi dihgs. Denbighshire County Council. 100023408. 2011.

Atgynhyrchir y map hwn o ddeunydd yr Ordnance Survey gyda chaniatad yr Ordnance Survey ar ran Rheolwr Llyfrfa Ei Mawrhydi
© Hawlfraint y Goron. Mae atgynhyrchu heb ganiatad yn torri hawlfraint y Goron a gall hyn arwain at erlyniad neu achos sifil. Cyngor Sir Ddinbych. 100023408. 2011.




Page 102




Y 3y Siping epuan
SYYy Aq pnaoy o TISaMY
JORIIIN GUYSIND

TP S B

2P JOUOLT D
A
yo0q asuad o HIIMTIANT
- BT UG pOGUISTD FMGAICT) 10 JADVIDHD JONSH SO GHERE (006
o 58 170 SO GHNT) ITH [0 MGI] 17} GRISHT] SN Y Bi50f  API00 P
P ORI GUXSIP VT DY O EHIANI TIYIS Vit GG JO DPIS IS701 & RN A1y iy
57 gﬂ.‘a RGOS0 S0 Y Ghpang ﬁ—s.m
PMBLTS ITOM THAYS BRISND g&u
M2y JIRT ORI \ “UNSTY IR VDDI] Dpusuely
HOYRIUSHI] T3 , B0 QU5 WoHRY GRIPII TUSIIOLGY Hoalq
D wxqaw»wm ﬁww_ﬂq aps _ 1.\...\ X OMCY oG TRS GG AUOTILIVT PR 1IIpmD)
by SUR 4 0% 205 oIt Sm&e.w o SIEE b B \«.m..__B_R_ 1unnapbo
1Py 2oL yn ANLS ] \
BHPI 5 Al v . § 3¢ sprng @ rooreg M4 P04
S Ve__mcmcﬁ_aa S GWi) I +w,.,|1|s UL BTN TV TSR0 IBSIETIM CTN
Pojpenar suysing t ; = TIPINALS FETPINT 99 O

/r g ._Fd_...m w\\\\ wﬁﬁﬁasq 251 19N

R ilen R0 TN uIpIng

¥ EHpING 10 9P 4573 4 P wooys
1na) GLUEPOKS by ﬁu&?@u&ﬁﬁnwm\u

G Gy tuae_ﬁs

“BEHITY Eq: Ny ueiy Jo
SYDOH IO LA a QY pIORING : GHUSIAD SE 1Ay
Wl RYATD gﬁk«% 0N b 4/ . LG PHOIS O
CHYSIYD SO pawmog, (¥9]
HSIYD SU POmBIn) Spas — m__u_mm_% ﬁ_ﬁ
J i
mxe_ﬁ\ ﬂn%nﬁ%ﬂ& maﬁimw.wa
MRJO JOWEO SIS O GO R i
Y Wmopminy NS DTN * TININAY =
[ROYINLSHG M G L
‘GOMYLITID WXETHOL SPPV6 A0

S OMY JY PYIOISo] Aoy .
yJod Jp?

1S Jy6mEnng pssi] : o mayy T E%ﬁ i

7200 umoy
SZOLL J GWPIMG POISIT
SHGED 52 PEppR TR NS Spipa 1 47y SSDIADNTNA 6
VIFFD Moprwign JYRRYIPED hijois Y ary _....W

' | a3sodoyd 00s1 S90 NV aLis @ .

[ T3I0H 3SN0H AHLNMO) SAVIA J4INZd \.w N
3 a,.
3 o.\

S70 ¥ #4q W0 prgLISTp

X U0 YS ST U 2D SO0 305 O

Page 103



Page 104




JBpent dnp i PRI 9 Y
(47003 oy imyS } SYOENIR 770 Of FROSTIY Pt

S

Jouam oo i ey | M
™ q a_ﬁm,_- mﬂ__ﬁe% 153

!I| G
il ;l

VATIONS

—m)”

Ww _ spuoogaaw o w ==——|
oy gD 9 YIS "§poog WD
s (D

€ Joinar 2 oy o e e S

1 0K} SEHNG! ma S 7 q
B T o sy ~ g s TS
“RO0T /04 "R EHIpS] G SRR WrXg
ﬁ ¥ NI YT ey pRY Spn :
QY mrizsvI STy 9 & STOPHIT AN =
Q) TYG A1P00 F 014 SHPHTS Y o 57 :
DAY TN PR 2 O s 10 0 Py P
77 SORP VKT P G0 ,

Q. HLNDS

Page 105

x| - ARG
P V1 JHG] PHO
ey A
Lk s
g 7
f .
RIS PN p— sopry H1HO0N WermoHass _Wutﬁa\iw
w E AR oG et I =
B V00! PRI WO —— el
amasomm A : = v T
A0 O IPA YD ‘ = PRGN SINAITD T
| | = WITE PHINDIE IS
s == u(._aa.gﬁ MpASTY MO 7RG, I
J008 0y SUIID LU 3] Uy
| prpvenua Guax VIO @) EYRO% U ! o
| ymg punTy SPTYIS AP [H150N AU m_ AP HNTS U0 LRAUISRY ’
TRV S [PPTUH] IO 2601 ) 7k .unb‘ §7 70§ Y]S5 N
= 4 LAGKY DI W g Wi Ja pmnIsep
S J0 TS IAYTR = Fakly “poog PHYM Qﬁ:é% sm*ew G X%
e el —— =T z 0 1 Y (Ev3
YOMIGLIT oNE VPIOTY myl ==L LIt paytmys S0 iy 39 yaoOpIy .smaﬁsme_ SmIPHIN P SHO00
ST PITGONWRN MM e e == N [ ey _ - .
R STIUSIO T (2 = WAL FIYTIND immiE 33
W g prokesp §uisu? ‘ m o7 ity g — = =
l. Pk == r FICSOH LT | M =
U =i i ot 0
“SIY DEPLI GHE =

IO SIS FYS
14 TP PAMTON
£O IRy J02 PO

. & onigine

==l

|I||||I|||I.I.||

fg e | oo s =—— ———
BIsIYs SO yone

Y ONIOUNE pugs jonw 3 415p) W9G et




Page 106




e

g1pe6iuimez 9

‘ - e
; VGO Wagyf Of SUNDTAS J03) FRITTIOA VIZHO
2 %_m jpny ,“%mi% AMOT STOQINY JOVIIGLI0 GHISITR
. “v5ivy QS ominnd O TN iy mu:&owsh
. ! . oo MOz L0 Ak V 11 oy TNGRILS] 0 TS IS0 mxs% GHYTIVS
; : . Tl _ 1OTLeTUIc) Yo PITTIRY VOO VK TTY 1| DI0IS S0
SPHETHOU TIRIS HOPITDSHO) WK g N\, S b L ey 001 4011) JO WOYIPTED T 7
& e e e L LR SR EP 0 o . : i s @0 oSy of M 2
| [90074 annoEg a9 oA o N [ NG 800 V SNIGING f—— O ) pitot 1 5 105
ST PRINTINI O} T YIS ) ] - #5778 (i,
! oo GHITND 40 R0} of Y5 YIS STy o7 DS NG PEYITITE
m : sl au‘,stﬂa &:%ﬁ.ﬂ@ﬂwu oy v mops ~ ki o7 wma) S ST “ g %ﬁe@&:ﬁs&.gi_a_ D
n y - PR A A0 G onn el gmw T o W Y p - w0 STLA] GHINIRY BIPYTRY RIS
gy 51 oISl — SIS 000 40 MOYTISTE IS g . _ J
. O BT G W0OKS 419 ) . ‘Q&.M‘uw\um“\va 3.%“*3 PR —= ._s.q.mm ) 15 .m_m | WS ST SEHIPAC PV Jouq _ : i 4
it . NS sy 57 ﬁﬁﬁwﬂe&w H&ﬂﬁ A0 o gy ) _~ e I |
) o v, ;
. ’ wguuﬁwmﬁ g mhﬂe PRGUIGHIAJC Faers0 agon) =) L. @ . 8 8 A _,,\f_,«; _ . |
. . _ 5TYP DSIRY WP e : n.w_ : :
9 T dnmﬂ i SKag 3 O 7 = : % _.._\a.s__,.a_,_zaa [~ _
a. : l #\bn.cﬁksaawmaﬁﬁ oo Q“ - N b 8 I GLE W RDYNCSIIDY T |
= .\\H o Ay DA T M) e tu,1yfoq I 2 “1m p
— oo 1 [ [ ammumpenry el {_ ] e 2N
o[ Jo Jond 1y 10, ! 5 I rl__||L
00 L - “Buop "Tra) 1 RTINS o | s H N~
— ‘ PIYPR FUSOM W 32 ST M S . Vit 4 O
am LAy %aﬁé&%:ﬁ: B PR i e O — o
il § e ! gﬂ%@ﬁ;@%.‘ SFI] : yppomsion o Q
. ‘ WS G . 5 ._
~ Lﬁn&ﬁa ST J° PImGUPE M_&m@i% 5170 UL S37] {Aans 4% __ E: m.m
: Yy WS P oy g o — T
A AR agent) = o
. : TR TN JEIHTOH YD APYRE THAELD g - EE tnﬁu_i..,ﬂ\.. VRIGIIO
: AVqemy JOQTN7 PRI M.x thﬂﬁ o &%& ©f 0 SO — n....mi_.q §&N§ﬂﬂt&“ﬂ§ﬁﬂ.@ﬁwm§ 3423@
JoU GHIp) RH DS Jupon SEHY JAOLIIS SO J20 EIPH ™~ 1 so Hoyymay DS @
‘N pawed pvo Pl NN PO S o o PRI 2 PO YT RN S| 21 FomDy)
o G Yo #om fo Jo B K : s 20 4 PYD pirigs 51 7ar0 £1 SS114] P0G INTNH P PROP
M DGTYTP GRMEIS GHYSIST PG i T WCOHS HETH MG XUAJD SPTORTTI/BHN GHySIID oAaroy
T . 4 ot . . SEHIddT
_ 8 9Nigung " Tﬁ&e iauﬂas.f_.a_ _mhﬁ_a vys gﬂﬁx wiie? poysing \MNM. M%u
- ’ " Ao praf) FTITTIHINR a8
Hoqom g %ﬂ% Emﬁqﬁﬁrwﬁ Pl . b 1 ﬁs&m m__. @w& Nwswﬁ__uﬁ Nw%ﬂﬁﬂ.
PRV mﬂi . ¥ B WIoE Y ATY ey
wxﬁwu mwaﬁﬁsa.ﬁw [ETVERETE o UM i i . aaswsa WIOH{CTOY PN JO CRYY TGPDY {4014
\ . I ﬁ.ﬁu uﬂw_._ { 004 v90 0350d0O¥d\ 1310H miaz| puy \e.ﬁﬁﬁﬂx Lﬁw@aﬁﬂﬁum
. ELok 4 . ; . ST 1O PO 4504
. . oM t
t sﬂhﬁhhﬁ% | 3SN0H AMINNDD YAV [3HINSS .wu 35y 509 G ST e
: -, : s
; g7 sgewg_a\ﬁ;a uﬂ&% TR , @m@g%&wwﬁ?gi Wit TTEIoNo
~ T F iy i o ) { , APUS W DIDISHI ~8 FSIP0IG " YDl JIVVHTTY W
. _ g B | A do o] 5_ 25 0 2 ﬁ@ﬁﬂ x . JHSODYN-f0 YOTTEISHI DETNMIP STTuen ng
R~ s : XY Pve SREg gy gy Guim . —
—— L 1 BINSUD . . : , UT0LJY Shaug iy GG P40 | u ﬁuﬁkawmﬁwwq 3:%%% %ﬂwm@:ﬂ @@E&m
crnp g |y /. | g O o 53 . o STV TOMIGLO 25 HITY 0f NOXOPIND] HSYRTWD TONIGLIO DR :
e = oo P Wi i g o VOUIIEIOP 0 0TS v 3] ¢ WD) | QAT PHD qUIS Jogy Mawpy V06 T i
e WD ooy YISO MIT) ynm el g&u_u%uesﬂazﬁ | WHTUS EAGOIHIDED i) RIS | D B T
wion J0 - o M,@E.__ & sy G VI S OIS of WoR] HioeHIUY \ TG TOHY TR GVHSTXD ROCIOV) D KOG
Z,Ql__ﬂ. amsmm e“_uamux_ug pIoR Yo WO b . —



Page 108




18 telnidrazirs

EXISTING ELEVATIONS

m?@m

%féé W 5

3'?; Eé%% ;l
§

ik EEE
MORTH |

. i ; ‘ '.‘t o=
‘I' R L I L
i Lo e
SEUTERETY

e [EE,

S
%=
=A.:E
=N
iSasast
&7
3
(£

i

-
A
2=

G s

l

=
i
&

- LA P el
s
[

A
= 4 G
Lo &

Lengatad test e oF
s, 2a G
e -
o

NTRE_MAWR COUNTRY HOUSE HOTEL - D52 -1.100 - EXISTING

Page 109




Page 110




EXISTING FLOOR PLANS

[¢]

o B m

2y s Mgy | e
M m. NYY HON4 ¥ SNIOING
f PRI PRt Jo

T2pen reve BF gt g

RV e
B FTGE G ST S o b
] Y .
yrere ey — r 1 ..\ﬁlh—l'
: , R
2 T4 i 3

‘N
\& 5
(w00 1584

~ Ky

. e

~  [RORAT rRiLS)
>

bumeq jorprido

4 akoy

oy
e [ocr 190
0 _._Em-u_ ISA0H AHINAODD WAMYH JHIN3d

Fyilng g
u&zhs.__m_m.e

[

Page 111




Page 112




EXISTING SITE PLAN

W5 1T C

EFTIPRIT g ?23,.
| N e
" 9 ‘. ¥ g
2 <E-

aol
1 Wruy
TG P S
SRS Feer
~ . Y A
HOy MY Pugiad

i Licaald
TR R0

TN MTRI  WnY
JHTPNED s

UG ATy
FTEY XTI i g

Loy umny
St WP BIpS
fio eyt ! %
z

| 9NiIsBa " St €90 Nvd A5 .3
m

m_mm_m‘_ho..n._..w.m_m.ﬁ.. AHLNNDD A 3UIN3d _.n._..u: ;

f
L
umz:_::-:_ _..A

Page 113




Page 114




WARD NO:
WARD MEMBER(S):
APPLICATION NO:

PROPOSAL:

LOCATION:
APPLICANT:
CONSTRAINTS:

PUBLICITY
UNDERTAKEN:

lan Weaver
Llandyrnog

Clir Mervyn Parry
18/2014/0794/ LB

Change of use of outbuildings to form 2 no. self-contained
suites of hotel letting accommodation, demolition of steel
silo, steel framed agricultural building and stone wall;
installation of a package treatment plant and associated
works (Listed Building application)

Pentre Mawr Country House Hotel, Llandyrnog, Denbigh

Mrs Bre Carrington-Sykes
Listed Building
Site Notice — Yes

Press Notice — Yes
Neighbour letters - Yes

REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE:
Scheme of Delegation Part 2

e Referral by Head of Pl

anning / Development Control Manager

CONSULTATION RESPONSES:
LLANDYRNOG COMMUNITY COUNCIL

No response received s

pecifically in relation to the listed building consent application.

CLWYD POWYS ARCHAEOLOGICAL TRUST

Records suggest the development appears to have limited archaeological implications,
but affect a listed building of national importance and a barn structure of local
architectural interest. Recommend inclusion of a condition requiring a photographic
survey prior to development commencing.

DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CONSULTEES —

Conservation Architect

Has been in dialogue with the agent over the detailing of the scheme, including the

treatment of the buildings and the layout of the courtyard.

Supports the principle of new uses for buildings, albeit that the proposals are for part of
the buildings. No objections to the removal of the wall or proposals in general, as these
will prolong the life of the buildings. Suggests conditions be imposed to control details
of boundary treatment, internal repairs, reconstructed sections of building, means of
escape and insulation. Wishes to see the weather vane and cupola on the main range
repaired or protected as part of the works.

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY:

None

Page 115



The representations received in relation to the proposals have been lodged in relation
to the planning application and to the implications of the conversions and uses of land
in terms of impacts on the operation of the farm business, and do not raise issues
relevant to the listed building consent application.

EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION:

REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION (where applicable):

additional information required from applicant
protracted negotiations resulting in amended plans

re-consultations / further publicity necessary on amended plans and / or
additional information

awaiting consideration by Committee

PLANNING ASSESSMENT:
1. THE PROPOSAL:
1.1 Summary of proposals

1.1.1

The application is for listed building consent for works associated with the
conversion of a detached outbuilding and a section of a larger range of
outbuildings at Pentre Mawr, to two self contained units of accommodation in
connection with the enterprise at Pentre Mawr Country House Hotel.

The plans at the front of the report show the details of the proposals and the
location of the proposed units relative to the building complex at Pentre Mawr
and to the nearest dwelling at Pentre Bach, to the south.

The supporting documents refer to the 5 star hotel and the quality dining
facilities run from the main building at Pentre Mawr and recent authorisation to
hold weddings at the venue. They indicate the bedroom facilities available for
guests wishing to stay overnight are limited and that there are no facilities
available for disabled visitors. The proposals have been developed to expand
the facilities, and in part to cater for the needs of disabled guests.

The main elements of the development of relevance to the listed building
application are:

The conversion of a detached single storey stone walled building to provide a
two bedroom accommodation unit, with a small patio area. This unit is
indicated as a ‘disability friendly unit’, with two disability compliant parking
spaces adjacent. The building has been in use previously for housing
livestock, a barn and for storage purposes in connection with an agricultural
enterprise.

The conversion of the end section of the two storey range of buildings to a
one bedroom accommodation unit, with a single parking space shown on the
courtyard side of the building. The building would be re-roofed with slate as
part of the scheme. The building has been used previously as a barn and
hayloft in connection with the agricultural enterprise.

The other parts of the scheme involve:

Page 116



The removal of a portal frame agricultural building immediately to the south
west of the single storey building.

The removal of a metal silo close to the boundary with Pentre Bach

The demolition of an existing stone wall which runs east-west across the
courtyard at the rear of Pentre Mawr, and currently separates the lawned area
serving Pentre Mawr and a yard area in agricultural use.

The extension of the courtyard area for use in connection with Pentre Mawr,
as an additional lawned area and an area surfaced in slate chippings around
the new accommodation units

The use of the existing main entrance to Pentre Mawr as the vehicular access
to serve the two accommodation units

The application is accompanied by a Design and Access Statement,
incorporating a Listed Building Justification Statement, a Structural Condition
Report, a Protected Species Survey, and a Site History Assessment.

Pentre Mawr and its main outbuildings are Grade Il Listed Buildings, and the
single storey building proposed for conversion is a curtilage structure and
therefore deemed listed for the purposes of planning legislation. The
proposals are the subject of a separate planning application, being dealt with
under Code no. 18/2014/0793/PF.

1.2Description of site and surroundings

1.2.1

1.2.2

1.2.3

1.2.4

1.2.5

The Pentre Mawr complex of buildings is located approximately 2km north of
Llandyrnog village.

It is accessed off minor roads from the B5429. The vehicular access serving
the Country House is a driveway off the minor road which runs past the front
of the main house to a parking area to the west.

The building complex consists of an historic Manor House (a Grade Il listed
building) and a range of outbuildings, most of which are also listed buildings.
There are also more modern, but long established agricultural buildings near
to the single storey building proposed for conversion, in the form of a portal
frame building and a silo.

The main building is in use as a bed and breakfast business with dining
facilities and there are a number of ‘tented bedrooms’ on land immediately to
the west of the main house. The parking area for visitors is located 40 metres
to the north west of the main house at Pentre Mawr.

A lawn area to the south of the main house is in use in connection with the
bed and breakfast business and owners private accommodation. Its extent is
defined by a substantial stone wall which divides the courtyard enclosed by
the range of outbuildings. The area to the south side of the wall, including the
buildings and land has been in use in connection with an agricultural
business.

1.3Relevant planning constraints/considerations

Page 117



1.3.1 The site is located in the open countryside.

1.4Relevant planning history

1.4.1 The bed and breakfast use at Pentre Mawr has developed gradually over time
from an incidental use to the dwelling. The owners obtained planning consent
to use the ‘Manor’ house as a bed and breakfast facility / Country House Hotel
in October 2013, involving use of 3 out of 5 bedrooms as guest
accommodation. Planning permission was eventually granted for the retention
of 6 ‘tented bedrooms’ used in connection with the facilities in the main
house, in June 2014.

1.4.2 The Council has been made aware during 2014 of the introduction of a
marquee in the garden area of the property, used in connection with the
staging of weddings. This has been the subject of separate enforcement
investigation and is not a consideration in relation to the current application.

1.5Developments/changes since the original submission

1.5.1 The applicant and agent have provided additional background information in
response to representations on the impact on the agricultural use, and have
revised the plans to clarify points of detail in relation to the layout and works
on the outbuildings.

1.60ther relevant background information

1.6.1 The application involves land and buildings which it is understood are used in
connection with a farm business and by an agricultural tenant, which has
raised a volume of correspondence. These are matters dealt with separately
in relation to the planning application as they do not relate directly to matters
of consequence to the merits of the listed building application.

2. DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY:

2.1

No history of direct relevance to the listed building application.

3. RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE:

Government Policy / Guidance
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990

Planning Policy Wales 7 2014.

Welsh Office Circular 61/96 - Planning and the Historic Environment: Historic
Buildings and Conservation Areas.

4. MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS:

4.1.

Section 7 of the 1990 Act sets out the requirement for listed building consent for
works for the demolition, alteration or extension of a listed building in any manner
which would affect its character as a building of special architectural or historic
interest; and it outlines the requirements for the making and processing of

Page 118



4.2.

4.3.

4.4.

4.5.

4.6.

4.7.

4.8.

applications for consent.

Planning Policy Wales 7, 2014 Section 6.5.7 — 6.5.15 refers to general principles to
be applied in considering applications for listed building consent. It confirms that
there is no statutory requirement to have regard to the provisions of the
Development Plan in making a decision on listed building consent applications. It
reaffirms the general presumption in favour of preservation, whilst recognising the
need for flexibility where new uses have to be considered to secure a building’s
survival. It sets out the primary material consideration is the statutory requirement to
have special regard to the desirability of preserving the building, or its setting, or any
features of special architectural or historic interest which it possesses. Applicants
are expected to justify their proposals to show why alteration or demolition is
desirable or necessary.

Welsh Office Circular 61/96, Paragraphs 93-99 provide specific advice on the
considerations to be applied by Local Planning Authorities when dealing with
proposals to alter or extend listed buildings.

The main issues to address in relation to the application are therefore considered to
be:

The acceptability of the proposals having regard to the tests of PPW 2014 and
Welsh Office Circular 61/96

The report outlines the case advanced in the application documents in support of
the grant of listed building consent setting out arguments that the proposals would
assist in securing the future of the buildings, without adversely affecting the
character and appearance of the listed buildings or materially harming their setting.

The Conservation Officer is supportive of the proposals, subject to suitable
conditions being imposed to control matters of detail.

Taking all the background information into account, in addressing the issues in the
context of PPW advice, and in particular the tests of Welsh Office Circular 61/96,
Officers’ comments are as follows:-

In relation to the alterations and extensions to the buildings — Paragraphs 93 — 99
of Circular 61/96 —

Due regard has been given to the viability and impacts of the new use proposed for
the buildings in formulating the proposals, in terms of effects on the special interest
of the listed buildings, and it is not considered a tourist use is in any respects a
potentially damaging use;

Page 119



Due regard has been taken of the physical impacts of the proposals on the
character and appearance of the listed buildings;

It is suggested the buildings have a capacity for accommodating change without
loss of special interest;

The Grade Il listing is recognised as a significant consideration but the proposals
are considered to show a sensitivity to the special interest of the buildings;

The proposals are considered to show due respect for the character and
appearance of the listed buildings and strike a proper balance between the need to
respect the special interest of the listed buildings and the need to adapt them to a
viable 21% century use;

Much of the internal detailing has been lost as a consequence of the deterioration in
the physical condition of the buildings over time, hence the proposals are
unavoidably designed around fagade retention;

In relation to the general requirements in Planning Policy Wales, Officers would
suggest that the proposals are compliant with the general presumption in favour of
preservation, and embrace the need for flexibility where new uses have to be
considered to secure a building’s survival. The proposals are considered to have
full regard to the tests for preserving these buildings, their setting, and features of
special architectural or historic interest which they possess. It is suggested that the
applicants have justified their proposals and show why alteration and a degree of
demolition is desirable and necessary.

5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

The report provides details of the proposals to convert two buildings intended
as accommodation units in connection with the Pentre Mawr Country House
Hotel.

The applicants argue the existing agricultural uses of the buildings and land is
detrimental to the business aims of the hotel and to the setting of the listed
buildings. They consider the proposals are sympathetic to the character and
appearance of the buildings and the setting of the listed buildings at Pentre
Mawr, and are seen as a first step in the regeneration of the remainder of the
historic buildings in the complex.

The Conservation Officer is supportive of the proposals subject to suitable
conditions being imposed to control detailed elements of the scheme. CPAT
require a photographic survey.

Page 120



5.4.

5.5.

Officers’ conclusions are that there is a justifiable case to support the proposals,
subject to conditions, as they present an opportunity to secure the long term
future of the buildings, will have a positive impact on the character and
appearance of the buildings involved, and on the setting of the Pentre Mawr
complex.

The recommendation following is subject to the imposition of a number of
conditions requiring further approval of detailed plans and referral of the listed
building consent application to CADW for consideration, and authorisation from
CADW that consent can be issued by local planning authority.

RECOMMENDATION: GRANT- subject to the following conditions:-

oo

The works hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of five years from the date of
this consent.

PRE-COMMENCEMENT CONDITION

Development shall not begin until an appropriate photographic survey of the existing buildings
on the site has been carried out in accordance with details to be submitted to, and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The resulting photographs should be forwarded on
a CD or DVD to the Local Planning Authority and the Development Control Archaeologist,
Clwyd-Powys Archaeological Trust, 41 Broad Street, Welshpool, Powys, SY21 7RR. Tel.
01938 553670.

Notwithstanding the details shown on the submitted plans, no works on the conversion of the
outbuildings shall be permitted to commence until the written approval of the Local Planning
Authority has been obtained to all of the following:

a. A drawn and measured survey of all existing internal features, including cross sections and
joinery repair schedule, to include external frames to doors and windows (including doors,
windows, beams, trusses, stalls, hay feeders etc) of the existing buildings.

b. Detailed section drawings at a scale of 1:10 of all new internal and external joinery details

c. Detailed section at a scale of 1:10 of all measures proposed for attenuation of noise, fire
and insulation

d. The specification, colour, and sample of any external materials to be used in conjunction
with the development including stonework, slates, coping stones, render, pointing, painting
and paving works and fencing details

e. All hard and soft landscaping details, including boundary walls and fencing, the surfacing of
access ways and the treatment of the courtyard area, proposed planting including species
and numbers; and the maintenance thereof.

The development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the approved details.

Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority, all rainwater goods shall be
in cast iron, the profile of which shall be submitted to and agreed by the Local Planning
Authority in writing and painted to an agreed colour.

There shall be no visible roof or window vents.

Any existing openings to be blocked up and / or existing walls / stonework to be restored in
accordance with the approved plans shall be carried out with materials that match those used
in the existing walls of which they form part, in texture, type, colour, mortar and pointing.

Page 121



The reason(s) for the condition(s) is(are):-

1. To comply with the provisions of the 1990 Listed Buildings Act.

2. In the interests of investigation and recording of historic/listed buildings.

3. To ensure the detailing of works on the buildings are appropriate to the character and
appearance of the listed buildings

4. To ensure the detailing of works on the buildings are appropriate to the character and
appearance of the listed buildings.

5. To ensure the detailing of works on the buildings are appropriate to the character and
appearance of the listed buildings.

6. To ensure the detailing of works on the buildings are appropriate to the character and

appearance of the listed buildings.

NOTES TO APPLICANT:

In connection with Condition 2 of the consent, you are referred to the attached CPAT Photographic
Guidance Note for Applicants

Page 122



WARD :

WARD MEMBER(S):

APPLICATION NO:

PROPOSAL:

LOCATION:

Agenda Item 9

Llanarmon Yn lal / Llandegla

Clir Martyn Holland

21/2014/0032/ PC

Erection of wooden tool store and shelter for managing the

woodland (retrospective application)
Big Covert, Clwyd Forest, Maeshafn, Mold

Page 123



This page is intentionally left blank



CYNGOR Heading:

. » REFERENCE NO. 21/2014/0096/PF & 21/2014/0032/PC
Sir Dc?'lnb {Eh BIG COVERT
Denbi gh shire MAESHAFN
v COUNTY COUNCIL
Graham Boase Application Site 1’\]
Head of Planning & Public Protection ’l
Denbighshire County Council Date 29/1/2015 Scale 1/10000
Caledfryn Centre = 320073 E 360006 N
Smithfield Road This plan is intended solely to give an indiction of the LOCATION of
Denbigh

the application site which forms the subject of the accompanying report.
It does not form any part of the application documents, and should not

Tel: 01824 706800 Fax: 01824 706709 be t.aken as r.eprese‘ntatlv.e of the propos.als to be considered, which are
available for inspection prior to the meeting.

Denbighshire LL16 3RJ

y

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survi behalf of 1| ller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office.
© Crown copyright. Unauthorized reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to pro: th(c] €Ril ppc; s. Denbighshire County Council. 100023408. 2011.

Atgynhyrchir y map hwn o ddeunydd yr Ordnance Survey gyda chaniatad yr Ordnance Survey ar ran Rheolwr Llyfrfa Ei Mawrhydi
© Hawlfraint y Goron. Mae atgynhyrchu heb ganiatad yn torri hawlfraint y Goron a gall hyn arwain at erlyniad neu achos sifil. Cyngor Sir Ddinbych. 100023408. 2011.




Page 126




1k Buy A Plan [ ok

UK's Fastest and Easiest Planning Site

Licensad Partner

Middiewood Tool Store & Shelter
A

4
i
]
i

TEM A5 Nemssr

Foresr “Trach

AooL Stoke v Syermie §
LeBm x Qodp 5

i
oL | atoer|
Block Plan shows area bounded by: 319848.06054688,359620,75976563 315938.06054686,359718.75976563 (at a scale of 1:500) The represeniation of 8 oad, track or path is no evidence of a right
of way, The reprassntation of leatures as tines Is no evidence of a property boundary, RS
Produced on 13th Jan 2014 from the Ordnance Survey Mational Geographic Database and Incorporating surveyed revision available at Ihis date. Reproduction In whole or parl is prohibited without the —_
prior permiasian of Ordnance Survay, © Crown copyright 2014. Supplied by buyaplan.co.uk a licensed Ordnance Survey pariner (100053143). Uniqua plan refprence: #00024625-FEB0OT -
Omdnance Survoy and the OS Symbol ere reg! d trad ks of Ordnance Survey, the national mapping agency of Great Britaln. Buy A Plan logo, pdf design am?_yge buyaplan.co.ukwebsile are o
Copyright © Pass Inc Ltd 2014 =t =]
o
e —~—G
A LWt i
67 ks -

Page 127

41



Page 128




. LR T

— Jﬂuﬂ........ o
k et 5 L R TR L

...!.tﬂ.. - .1:4].__ —

oY __=..=!.u /3 9i0|2od) Uopoapy

T

A0E 3ECQ (9108 /17 93

(IS AT DI

|

e Rt

. .1"" —

00K
'oj4 24} jo vlnjoli Us noun o} 10§ 1105 of I8pFo:
. Eaﬂmop dn wWwgg|] |4Bi{eY Bujlioa Jo sio
$100(q 0dy| ®oe|q1epuo Aqibuneis ol yio
P19l 8] Joy) U 4o|Ym oI SUId illgy » kg
Do peoddns sielojsdo]iepoopy, -.Er_n

r |

M D0 L1Dp ouiDt oy} UipeuiRd "Heiny:
P Kiino s 5o 510 pub BAGUS Lo d PEBUY
.fic._cfou.I_u..-...ooa..v:u.-.#om..ﬁ,a?. ]
THIB{0)|0innonsD 68U # BURD|B [v:C

+36 | o q[BU|d[Ulli 6 to B ACHIA[pUD

snduoj owd eib UclfonijaeD ...o&:vﬁo.m_oo.x..w
: ‘sio}ipq ould lwns
uo ‘doyiBof Eiéﬁmo 1 a._ i*xhiw_i_oa ‘g
4 (Y | GOR P
‘uinjs.pook joé ﬂ...vfﬁm uu_,_ﬂ poys u_

0052

= i gl Y o ¢ gy




Page 130




Emer O'Connor

WARD : Llanarmon Yn lal / Llandegla

WARD MEMBER(S): Clir Martyn Holland

APPLICATION NO: 21/2014/0032/ PC

PROPOSAL: Erection of wooden tool store and shelter for managing the
woodland (retrospective application)

LOCATION: Big Covert, Clwyd Forest, Maeshafn, Mold

APPLICANT: Mr Jonathan Edwards

CONSTRAINTS: AONB

PUBLICITY Site Notice — Yes

UNDERTAKEN: Press Notice — No

Neighbour letters - No

REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE:
Scheme of Delegation Part 2

e Recommendation to grant / approve — 4 or more objections received

¢ Recommendation to grant / approve — Town / Community Council objection
e Member request for referral to Committee

CONSULTATION RESPONSES:

LLANFERRES COMMUNITY COUNCIL:

“The Community Council strongly opposes this application due to the detraction it has from the
essential nature of the woodland. The amount of work to be carried out does not warrant the
erection of a shed or store.

There were grave concerns with regard to the proliferation of such buildings if a precedent was set;
it is within the AONB, such a structure would not be allowed in open country within green belt land.
The area is also covered by a National Trust covenant have they been approached for their
opinion”.

AONB JAC:

“Whilst the proposed woodland management plan and minor changes to the design of the building
are an improvement over the original scheme, the JAC maintains its in principle objection to the
incremental and piecemeal introduction of a variety of sheds and other structures into Big Covert
following the break-up and sale of much of the woodland into a number of separate plots. This
application, when taken together with other similar applications in the area and other developments
for which no applications have yet been submitted, is changing the previously unspoilt woodland
character and associated tranquillity of Big Covert as well as undermining opportunities for informal
countryside access and recreation which have been enjoyed by local people for many years.

The JAC is also concerned that, if approved, this application would set a precedent for a
proliferation of similar developments on the other plots which would result in further harm to the
character of the woodland and would be difficult to resist. It is accepted that there may be a forestry
case for an appropriately sited and designed new storage/rest-room building to facilitate proper
management of the woodland, but the JAC would prefer a single development to service the entire

Page 131



woodland rather than the piecemeal approach which has emerged.” (AONB Management Plan
Policies: PSQ1, PSQ2, PCP1 and PCP2)

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY:
In objection:
C Marhsall, 12 Bryn Eithin, Gwernymynydd, Mold.
Mary Low, (no address received by email)
Alan Morgans, Maesawelon, Village Road, Maeshafn
Keith Lowery, 29 Llys Ambrose, Mold
Lee Matthews, Bushley, Village Road, Maeshafn
John Pearson, National Trust, Erddig, Wrexham

Summary of representations:

Visual impact - concerns over scale and nature of the development, impact on AONB.

Principle - Concerns over proliferation of structures in woodland should additional units be sold off.
Access - Public access limited by plot owners.

Other matters:
Covenant - National Trust are the beneficiaries of a Covenant on the land.

EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION: 01/06/2014

REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION (where applicable):

o additional information required from applicant
. awaiting consideration by Committee

PLANNING ASSESSMENT:
1. THE PROPOSAL:
1.1 Summary of proposals
1.1.1  Retrospective planning permission is sought for the erection of a wooden tool store at

Middlewood, a parcel of land at the Big Covert, Maeshafn.

1.1.2 The stained timber shed measures 4.85 metres in length by 2.46 metres in width with a
shallow pitched roof with an overall height of 2.6 metres. It has a side door and windows
on all sides.

1.1.3 The building is sited on a clearing in the eastern side of a 4.61 hectare forestry plot
owned by the Applicant within Big Covert.

1.1.4 The plot is accessed from an existing forestry track which is some 75 metres to the north.

1.1.5 The applicant indicates the store is required to facilitate woodland management by
allowing for storage for tools and equipment, shelter in inclement weather and as a store
for cut timber.

1.2 Description of site and surroundings
1.2.1  The site is within the Big Covert, an 82.5 hectare plantation to the south of the village of
Maeshafn. Planted in the 1950’s the woodland comprises of Scots Pine and Beech.

1.2.2 The plot is located approximately 1km south of the Maeshafn Village access to the
woodland.

Page 132



2.

3.

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations
1.3.1 The site is in open countryside outside of any development boundary. It is also within the
Clwydian Range and Dee Valley AONB.

1.4 Relevant planning history
1.4.1  The planning application was submitted following the refusal of a Prior Approval
Application in 2013.

1.4.2 A Prior Approval Application was submitted as the General Permitted Development Order
allows land owners to carry out certain forestry related developments on their land without
planning permission. However land owners are required to submit the details of the
development to the Council in the form of a Prior Approval Application. The level of
information required in this application is limited, therefore in this instance the prior
approval was refused and a full planning application was requested.

1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission
1.5.1  Amended plans and additional information was submitted in support of the application
following the initial assessment; these details include plans showing the removal of a
decking area originally abutting the building, and a copy of a Woodland Management
Plan for the site which has been developed with support from Mike Hughes, the
Councils Coed Cymru/Woodland Officer.

1.5.2 The Woodland Management Plan sets out the Applicants intentions for the site. The
objectives of this plan are to; reduce the softwood component with the stand, to preserve
the number of mature Beech trees, to increase opportunities for natural regeneration, to
increase habitat for bats and to increase nesting opportunities for birds.

1.6 Other relevant background information
1.6.1 This application is one of two on the Agenda involving woodland sheds at Big Covert.
Officers have delayed the consideration of this application to ensure the applications are
considered together.

DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY:
2.1 21/2014/1453 Erection of wooden tool store and shelter for managing the woodland (Prior
Notification)21/2013/1453. Prior Approval refused to allow consideration of impact on AONB.

RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE:
The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be:
3.1 Denbighshire Local Development Plan (adopted 4" June 2013)
Policy VOE 2 - Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty and Area of Outstanding Beauty

3.2 Government Policy / Guidance
Planning Policy Wales Edition 7 2014
Technical Advice Notes TAN 6 — Planning for Sustainable Rural Communities

MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS:

In terms of general guidance on matters relevant to the consideration of a planning application,
Planning Policy Wales Edition 7, 2014 (PPW) confirms the requirement that planning applications
'should be determined in accordance with the approved or adopted development plan for the area,
unless material considerations indicate otherwise' (Section 3.1.2). PPW advises that material
considerations must be relevant to the regulation of the development and use of land in the public

Page 133



interest, and fairly and reasonably relate to the development concerned., and that these can include
the number, size, layout, design and appearance of buildings, the means of access, landscaping,
service availability and the impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment (Sections 3.1.3 and
3.1.4).

The following paragraphs in Section 4 of the report therefore refer to the policies of the Denbighshire
Local Development Plan, and to the material planning considerations which are considered to be of
relevance to the proposal.

4.1 The main land use planning issues in relation to the application are considered to be:

4.1.1 Principle
4.1.2 Visual amenity/ Landscape impact/ AONB Considerations

4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations:
4.2.1 Principle
Given the nature of the proposal for forestry developments outside any development
boundary, the main issue is considered to be whether there is sufficient justification for a
building and whether the siting and visual impacts are appropriate.

The national planning system accepts there will be a need for agricultural and forestry
development in the open countryside. There are a range of ‘permitted
development‘outlined in the GDPO which can be undertaken without the need for
planning permission. The Order introduced the Prior Approval system requiring the details
of certain proposals to be submitted to the local planning authority to allow assessment of
the need for further detailing of siting, design, and external appearance.

Paragraph A14 of TAN 6 provides advice to local planning authorities when dealing with
Prior Approval submissions. The guidance on siting and design set out in Paragraph 14
is considered useful and relevant for the subject application as it states that “The siting of
a new agricultural or forestry building, road, excavation or waste deposit, or fish tank can
have a considerable impact on the surrounding landscape. Developments should be
assimilated into the landscape without compromising the functions they are intended to
serve. New buildings should normally form part of a group rather than stand in isolation,
and relate to existing buildings in size and colour. However, new buildings of modern
design may sometimes best be separated from a group of traditional buildings to avoid
visual conflict. Sites on skylines should be avoided. To reduce visual impact, buildings
should be blended into the landscape or, on sloping sites, set into the slope if that can be
achieved without disproportionate cost.”

Considering this is an existing well established woodland, the nature of the development
proposed and the amount of land owned, it is Officers opinion that the need for a small
storage building can be justified, to house equipment etc necessary to carry out relevant
maintenance work on the woodland. Furthermore the Applicants intentions have been
demonstrated in the supporting Woodland Management Plan. The existing building is of
relatively small scale, not dissimilar to a ‘garden shed’. The building would be removable
should the use cease therefore Officers would suggest a condition requiring removal on
cessation of the use, if permission is granted.

With regard to the above guidance it is considered that the proposal is acceptable in
principle. Assessment of the localised impacts follows.

4.2.2 Visual amenity/ Landscape impact/ AONB Considerations
In referring to what may be regarded as material considerations, Planning Policy Wales
3.1.4 refers to the number, size, layout, design and appearance of buildings, the means
of access, landscaping, service availability and the impact on the neighbourhood and on

Page 134



the environment. The impact of a development on visual amenity is therefore a relevant
test on planning applications. Policy VOE 2 requires assessment of the impact of
development within or affecting the AONB and AOB, and indicates that this should be
resisted where it would cause unacceptable harm to the character and appearance of the
landscape and the reasons for designation.

The site is located in the open countryside in substantial woodland close to the village of
Maeshafn. The site is visible from nearby public rights of way, albeit from a distance.
Concerns have been raised by the AONB JAC over the impact of the on the woodland
character and on the principle of such developments generally in the woodland, including
the precedent that may be established if permission is granted for this type of
development. Private individuals also express concerns over these impacts.

In Officers opinion, there are issues to address in terms of impact on the character of the
woodland, but given the scale and detailing of the building, its siting within a significant
area of woodland and the topography of the land it is not considered that its presence
would have such a detrimental visual amenity impact of the area or the AONB
designation to warrant refusal of planning permission. It is considered therefore the
proposal is acceptable in terms of visual, landscape, and AONB considerations.

4.2.3 Other matters
The AONB JAC and objectors have raised concerns over the subdivision of the Big
Covert into smaller plots, the restriction of public access in the Big Covert and a National
Trust legal covenant on the land. These issues are not material planning considerations
or issues that the Local Planning Authority can get involved in. The subdivision of the Big
Covert into smaller plots is the prerogative of the landowner. How subsequent
landowners secure their plots is also a matter for them. Officers are aware that the
Councils Rights of Way Officer has been investigating whether rights of way are being
limited by plot owners, however the proposed development does not directly affect any
right of way therefore this issue is not relevant to the decision on this application. Finally
the issue of any restrictive covenant is a civil law issue, which would have to be pursued
by the National Trust via the Courts rather than the planning process. All the Local
Planning Authority can do in relation to this matter is to bring it to the attention of the
Applicants via a ‘Note to Applicant’.

5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS:

5.1 Whilst this application raises some difficult issues, the material planning considerations are
limited. The application only proposes to retain a building for forestry purposes and it appears that
a genuine case has been made for the need.

5.2 To alleviate fears of inappropriate or unlawful uses it is suggested that a planning condition is
attached to control the use and a condition is also suggested for the removal of the building
should the need for it cease.

5.3 Taking into account the details and policies relating to the case it is considered that the impacts
would not be unacceptable, and it is therefore recommended that permission be granted.

RECOMMENDATION: GRANT- subject to the following conditions:-

1.

The use of the building shall be for the purposes described in the application documents only,
namely for the storage of tools and shelter. The building hereby permitted shall not be used for
any residential purpose including overnight accommodation.

Should the use of the buildings for forestry cease the structures shall be removed from the land
within 6 months of the date of the cessation of the use and the land shall be restored to grassland

Page 135



no later than 3 months from the date of removal of the building unless otherwise agreed in writing
by the Local Planning Authority.

The reason(s) for the condition(s) is (are):-

1. In the interests of rural restraints policies.
2. In the interest of landscape and visual amenity.
NOTES TO APPLICANT:

Civil Law Issue

The LPA have been advised that the site may be subject to a Legal Covenant involving the National
Trust. You are advised to contact John Pearson, Land Use Planning Advisor, on 01978 340 800 or 07770
496701 to discuss this matter.

Page 136



WARD :

WARD MEMBER(S):

APPLICATION NO:

PROPOSAL:

LOCATION:

Agenda Item 10

Llanarmon Yn lal / Llandegla
Clir Martyn Holland
21/2014/0096/ PF

Retention of existing shed and erection of wood store (partly in
retrospect)

Clwyd Forest Big Covert Maeshafn Mold

Page 137



This page is intentionally left blank



CYNGOR Heading:

. » REFERENCE NO. 21/2014/0096/PF & 21/2014/0032/PC
Sir Dc?'lnb {Eh BIG COVERT
Denbi gh shire MAESHAFN
v COUNTY COUNCIL
Graham Boase Application Site 1’\]
Head of Planning & Public Protection ’l
Denbighshire County Council Date 29/1/2015 Scale 1/10000
Caledfryn Centre = 320073 E 360006 N
Smithfield Road This plan is intended solely to give an indiction of the LOCATION of
Denbigh

the application site which forms the subject of the accompanying report.
It does not form any part of the application documents, and should not

Tel: 01824 706800 Fax: 01824 706709 be t.aken as r.eprese‘ntatlv.e of the propos.als to be considered, which are
available for inspection prior to the meeting.

Denbighshire LL16 3RJ

y

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survi behalf of 1| ller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office.
© Crown copyright. Unauthorized reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to pro: teh(c] €Xil p s. Denbighshire County Council. 100023408. 2011.

Atgynhyrchir y map hwn o ddeunydd yr Ordnance Survey gyda chaniatad yr Ordnance Survey ar ran Rheolwr Llyfrfa Ei Mawrhydi
© Hawlfraint y Goron. Mae atgynhyrchu heb ganiatad yn torri hawlfraint y Goron a gall hyn arwain at erlyniad neu achos sifil. Cyngor Sir Ddinbych. 100023408. 2011.




Page 140




-

T | Land Regist
| —{ Olficial cop| of

I i
|/ | ..
Fitle peite
'] - -
I
DT o s iR 217 g Baiver IO =
anmunmmhm.mmmuuﬂmdhmwnmmnqm
¥ N T
X 5 H il
] i
H e
[y [
| i
[}
5 B,
1t ) {‘..
o ?.
LX)
44 '
e
K] i
()
1B
'3
s
’
\
1)
1
t
1
1
3
]
)
b
13
I
I
[
]
|
[}
1
[]
f
1
1
'
1]
)
/ =
i
1
i
1
i
¥
\
STORE ;
. 3
€H$hn‘3 §
1
fecc™ ' :
L] 1
SHELTER Cacte ! :
g \ '
1 1]
L]
1
L]
LY
LY 1
LY e
L)
Y
LY ‘\
“
\\ \‘
NN
‘\J‘\\ L
LG
NS
# RGN
- \\
hd -
~ TN
Y e
YRR
e,
e Tl
- 5

Title numbar CYMS78458

Ordnance Survey map referance SJ1859NE
Scale 111250 enlarged from 1:2500
Adminlsirative area Denbighshire / Sir Ddinbych

¥
i
|' o
8 aMficial copy iasued on 15 March 2013 shaws the stale of this iille

(s.67 Land Ragistration Act 2002). A
This titie plan shows tha goneral position, nat tha exact line, of ths
maich moaasurements between the same points on tho ground. See Land

This title is dealt with by Land Reglstry, Wales Office.

Page 141

S e

i~
—
S
~
o
—
s
—
(=]
on 28 January 2013 at 12:10:51. ltis admissitia In avidencs 10 the sama extent as the onginal 2
ies. Il may be subject to distortions (n scale. Measuremants scated from this plan may not (=]
Hegisiry Public Guide 19 - Tille Plans and Boundaries. —
-
n
+



Page 142




5000 ’"‘fmﬂ V?-MN['{ 7 . ARNNNG, PORVSE ONW]

TRMWON SRR PRGNFER THBRINNG TS, BB
b [-Y-1-TX-1-T-F-1-1] 0 AADAS0EBABSSMO BAS 00BO, - *mwz nﬂ%
STORE PLLANS
q E 2 drying store
F?\ d |
L J
PLAN i
!f |
|
|
]
I _—
'Ifnom ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATIONS

ot e Y 2R

o ]
- -
' 5
L e Y PROPOSED DRYING SDRE
g . ° ' {0£0 CERRYG o
= i E \ MAES ATHEN - 2
ar - z - + - - i e
% T | SCALE 1:50 w
"""% 2 DATE DEC 208 =
3 ~
-
Page 143




Page 144




SHELTER.

{ Photographs of Existing Welfare Shelter at Coed Cerrig, Maeshafn

The above shows the shed in situ, and the proposed wood store will lie at 90" to the existing shed, in an
area already cleared, thus there will be no unnecessary tree felling to accommodate this store.

W
A} -

pe T
. . 3,"1

L3 LT

4
A

Page 145



Page 146




Emer O'Connor

WARD : Llanarmon Yn lal / Llandegla

WARD MEMBER(S): Clir Martyn Holland

APPLICATION NO: 21/2014/0096/ PF

PROPOSAL: Retention of existing shed and erection of wood store (partly in
retrospect)

LOCATION: Clwyd Forest Big Covert Maeshafn Mold

APPLICANT: Mr Robert Payne

CONSTRAINTS: AONB

PUBLICITY Site Notice — Yes

UNDERTAKEN: Press Notice — No

Neighbour letters - No

REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE:

Scheme of Delegation Part 2
e Recommendation to grant / approve — Town / Community Council objection
e Member request for referral to Committee

CONSULTATION RESPONSES:
LLANFERRES COMMUNITY COUNCIL:
“The Community Council strongly opposes this application due to the detraction it has from the
essential nature of the woodland. The amount of work to be carried out does not warrant the
erection of a shed or store.
Under the Planning Development Act Part 5 it may allow a forestry worker to live in a caravan if
the property exceeded five acres for up to twenty-eight days.
There were grave concerns with regard to the proliferation of such buildings if a precedent was
set; it is within the AONB, such a structure would not be allowed in open country within green
belt land. The area is also covered by a National Trust covenant have they been approached
for their opinion”.

AONB JAC:

“The JAC deplores the retrospective nature of this application and objects to the incremental
and piecemeal introduction of a variety of sheds and other structures into Big Covert following
the break-up and sale of much of the woodland into a number of separate plots. This
application, when taken together with other similar applications in the area and other
developments for which no applications have yet been submitted, is changing the previously
unspoilt woodland character and associated tranquillity of Big Covert as well as undermining
opportunities for informal countryside access and recreation which have been enjoyed by local
people for many years.

The committee supports the preparation of a woodland management plan which has submitted
with the application, but is very disappointed that the Design and Access Statement
accompanying the application fails to take account of the implications for the AONB.

The JAC is also concerned that, if approved, this application would set a precedent for a
proliferation of similar developments on the other plots which would result in further harm to the
character of the woodland and would be difficult to resist. It is accepted that there may be a
forestry case for an appropriately sited and designed new storage/rest-room building to
facilitate proper management of the woodland, but the JAC would prefer a single development
to service the entire woodland rather than the piecemeal approach which has emerged.

Page 147



The JAC also notes that the site is on land subject to a National Trust Covenant and would
recommend that they be consulted on the application. (AONB Management Plan Policies:
PSQ1, PSQ2, PCP1 and PCP2)”

DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CONSULTEES -
Biodiversity Officer
No objection.

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY:
In objection:
C. Marshall, 12 Bryn Eithin, Gwernmynydd, Mold, Flintshire, CH7 5NG
Lee Matthews, Bushley, Village Road, Maeshafn, Mold.
John Pearson, National Trust, Erddig, Wrexham

Summary of representations:
Visual impact - concerns over scale and nature of the development, impact on AONB.
Principle - Concerns over proliferation of structures in woodland should additional units be sold

off.

Covenant - National Trust own a Covenant on the land.

Other matters:
Covenant - National Trust are the beneficiaries of a Covenant on the land.

EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION: 25/05/14

REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION (where applicable):

additional information required from applicant
awaiting consideration by Committee

PLANNING ASSESSMENT:
1. THE PROPOSAL:
1.1 Summary of proposals

1.1.1

Retrospective planning permission is sought for the erection of a wooden tool store
and the erection of shelter for managing the woodland at Coed Cerrig, a parcel of
land at the Big Covert, Maeshafn.

The stained timber shed measures 4.8 metres in length by 2.4 metres in width with a
shallow pitched roof with an overall height of 2.9 metres. The wood drying shelter
would comprise of a timber open fronted structure measuring 5 metres in length by
2.5 metres in width with an overall height of 3.2 metres.

The buildings would be sited on a clearing in the western side of the 2.14 hectare
forestry plot within Big Covert owned by the Applicant.

The plot is accessed from an existing forestry track.
The applicant indicates that the building is required to facilitate woodland

management by allowing for storage for tools and equipment and shelter in inclement
weather. The store would be for drying cut timber.

1.2 Description of site and surroundings

1.2.1

The site is within the Big Covert, an 82.5 hectare plantation to the south of the village
of Maeshafn. Planted in the 1950’s the woodland comprises of Scots Pine and Beech.

Page 148



2.

1.2.2 The plot is located approximately 1km south of the Maeshafn Village access to the
woodland.

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations
1.3.1  The site is in open countryside outside any development boundary. It is also within
the Clwydian Range and Dee Valley AONB.

1.4 Relevant planning history
1.4.1 The planning application was submitted following an enforcement investigation in
2013.

1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission
1.5.1  Additional information was submitted in support of the application following the initial
assessment; these details include a copy of a ‘Thinning Licence’ issued by NRW, a
Protected Species Assessment made in support of the Licence and a letter of support
from Mike Hughes, the Councils Coed Cymru/Woodland Officer.

1.6 Other relevant background information
1.6.1 This application is one of two on the Agenda involving woodland sheds at Big Covert.
Officers have delayed the consideration of this application to ensure the applications
are considered together.

DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY:
2.1 None

RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE:
The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be:
3.1 Denbighshire Local Development Plan (adopted 4" June 2013)
Policy VOE 2 - Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty and Area of Outstanding Beauty

3.2 Government Policy / Guidance
Planning Policy Wales Edition 7 2014
Technical Advice Notes TAN 6 — Planning for Sustainable Rural Communities

MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS:

In terms of general guidance on matters relevant to the consideration of a planning application,
Planning Policy Wales Edition 7, 2014 (PPW) confirms the requirement that planning applications
'should be determined in accordance with the approved or adopted development plan for the
area, unless material considerations indicate otherwise' (Section 3.1.2). PPW advises that
material considerations must be relevant to the regulation of the development and use of land in
the public interest, and fairly and reasonably relate to the development concerned., and that these
can include the number, size, layout, design and appearance of buildings, the means of access,
landscaping, service availability and the impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment
(Sections 3.1.3 and 3.1.4).

The following paragraphs in Section 4 of the report therefore refer to the policies of the
Denbighshire Local Development Plan, and to the material planning considerations which are
considered to be of relevance to the proposal.
4.1 The main land use planning issues in relation to the application are considered to be:
4.1.1  Principle
4.1.2 Visual amenity/ Landscape impact/ AONB Considerations

4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations:
4.2.1 Principle

Page 149



4.2.2

Given the nature of the proposal for forestry developments outside any development
boundary, the main issue is considered to be whether there is sufficient justification
for a building and whether the siting and visual impacts are appropriate.

The national planning system accepts there will be a need for agricultural and forestry
development in the open countryside. There are a range of ‘permitted development’
outlined in the GDPO which can be undertaken without the need for planning
permission. The Order introduced the Prior Approval system requiring the details of
certain proposals to be submitted to the local planning authority to allow assessment
of the need for further detailing of siting, design, and external appearance.

Paragraph A14 of TAN 6 provides advice to local planning authorities when dealing
with Prior Approval submissions. The guidance on siting and design set out in
Paragraph 14 is considered useful and relevant for the subject application as it states
that “The siting of a new agricultural or forestry building, road, excavation or waste
deposit, or fish tank can have a considerable impact on the surrounding landscape.
Developments should be assimilated into the landscape without compromising the
functions they are intended to serve. New buildings should normally form part of a
group rather than stand in isolation, and relate to existing buildings in size and colour.
However, new buildings of modern design may sometimes best be separated from a
group of traditional buildings to avoid visual conflict. Sites on skylines should be
avoided. To reduce visual impact, buildings should be blended into the landscape or,
on sloping sites, set into the slope if that can be achieved without disproportionate
cost.”

Considering this is an existing well established woodland, the nature of the
development proposed and the amount of land owned, it is Officers opinion that the
need for the small storage building and store can be justified, to house equipment etc
necessary to carry out relevant maintenance work on the woodland. Furthermore the
Applicants intentions have been demonstrated in the supporting Woodland
Management Plan. The existing building is of relatively small scale, not dissimilar to a
‘garden shed’. The building would be removable should the use cease therefore
Officers would suggest a condition requiring removal on cessation of the use, if
permission is granted.

With regard to the above guidance it is considered that the proposal is acceptable in
principle. Assessment of the localised impacts follows.

Visual amenity/ Landscape impact/ AONB Considerations

In referring to what may be regarded as material considerations, Planning Policy
Wales 3.1.4 refers to the number, size, layout, design and appearance of buildings,
the means of access, landscaping, service availability and the impact on the
neighbourhood and on the environment. The impact of a development on visual
amenity is therefore a relevant test on planning applications. Policy VOE 2 requires
assessment of the impact of development within or affecting the AONB and AOB, and
indicates that this should be resisted where it would cause unacceptable harm to the
character and appearance of the landscape and the reasons for designation.

The site is located in the open countryside in substantial woodland close to the village
of Maeshafn. The site is visible from nearby public rights of way. Concerns have been
raided by the AONB JAC over the retrospective nature of the development, the impact
on woodland character, the principle of such developments generally in the woodland,
and the precedent that may be established if permission is granted for this type of
development.

In Officers opinion, there are issues to address in terms of impact on the character of
the woodland, but given the scale and detailing of the buildings, their siting within a
significant area of woodland and the topography of the land it is not considered that
its presence would have such a detrimental visual amenity impact of the area or the

Page 150



AONB designation to warrant refusal of planning permission. It is considered
therefore the proposal is acceptable in terms of visual, landscape, and AONB
considerations.

4.2.3 Other matters
The AONB JAC and objectors have raised concerns over the subdivision of the Big
Covert into smaller plots, the restriction of public access in the Big Covert and a
National Trust legal covenant on the land. These issues are not material planning
considerations or issues that the Local Planning Authority can get involved in. The
subdivision of the Big Covert into smaller plots is the prerogative of the landowner.
How subsequent landowners secure their plots is also a matter for them. Officers are
aware that the Councils Rights of Way Officer has been investigating whether rights
of way are being limited by plot owners, however the proposed development does not
directly affect any right of way therefore this issue is not relevant to the decision on
this application. Finally the issue of any restrictive covenant is a civil law issue, which
would have to be pursued by the National Trust via the Courts rather than the
planning process. All the Local Planning Authority can do in relation to this matter is to
bring it to the attention of the Applicants via a ‘Note to Applicant’.

5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS:
5.1 Whilst this application raises some difficult issues, the material planning considerations are
limited. The application only proposes to retain a building for forestry purposes and it appears
that a genuine case has been made for the need.

5.2 To alleviate fears of inappropriate or unlawful uses it is suggested that a planning condition is
attached to control the use and a condition is also suggested for the removal of the building
should the need for it cease.

5.3 Taking into account the details and policies relating to the case it is considered that the

impacts would not be unacceptable, and it is therefore recommended that permission be
granted.

RECOMMENDATION: GRANT- subject to the following conditions:-

1. The development to which this permission relates shall be begun no later than the expiration
of five years beginning with the date of this permission.
2. The use of the buildings shall be for the purposes described in the application documents

only, namely for the storage of tools and shelter. The buildings hereby permitted shall not be
used for any residential purpose including overnight accommodation.

3. Should the use of the buildings for forestry cease the structures shall be removed from the
land within 6 months of the date of the cessation of the use and the land shall be restored to
grassland no later than 3 months from the date of removal of the building unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

The reason(s) for the condition(s) is (are):-

1. To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.
2. In the interests of rural restraints policies.

3. In the interest of landscape and visual amenity.

NOTES TO APPLICANT:

Civil Law Issue

The LPA have been advised that the site may be subject to a Legal Covenant involving the National
Trust. You are advised to contact John Pearson, Land Use Planning Advisor, on 01978 340 800 or
07770 496701 to discuss this matter.

Page 151



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 11
PLANNING COMMITTEE

18" February 2015
AGENDA ITEM NO.

REPORT BY THE HEAD OF PLANNING AND PUBLIC PROTECTION
RECONSIDERATION OF PLANNING APPLICATION

Variation of condition no. 3 of planning permission code no. 24/2007/0694 (granted under appeal) to
allow other organisations as authorised by North Wales Police to be permitted to use the site

Craig y Ddywart Quarry, Rhewl, Ruthin
APPLICATION NO. 24/2014/1246/PS

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To seek Planning Committee’s reconsideration of an application presented to Committee on 21%
January 2015.

1.2 The report will provide Members with the relevant background information and the reason why the
application has been referred back to Committee for determination.

2. BACKGROUND

2.1 The application to vary Condition 3 on the existing planning permission relating to the use of the
North Wales Police Firearms facility at Rhewl Quarry was recommended for grant by Officers,
having regard to the contents of the application, planning considerations and representations.

2.2 A copy of the Officer report to the January Committee is attached as Appendix 1 to this item. The
Appendix also includes representations on the application received from Llanynys Community
Council, which were included on the late information sheets circulated before consideration of the
application.

2.3  The matters raised in debate at the January Committee included local concerns over the use,
including the issue of site supervision and checks on users, noise, and highways implications.

2.4 At the end of debate on the item, Members may recall that there were two votes on the application:
- The first vote was on a proposition to grant permission with a variation to the officer
recommendation, to add a condition obliging the presence of a supervisor on site when other

organisations were using the facility. The vote was 15 in favour of this amendment and 5 against.

- The second vote was on a proposition to refuse the variation to the condition. Councillor Merfyn
Parry suggested as a basis for a refusal, (i) control of users on site and (ii) increase in crime

Page 153



2.5

2.6

locally and nationally from who is training for firearms use. The vote was 12 to refuse permission
and 8 to grant. The decision was therefore to refuse permission.

As Officers we are fully respectful of the views of Members and the fact that Committee voted to
refuse to vary the condition in this case. We have since attempted to draft a reason for refusal to
encompass the basis of the concerns expressed, to give effect to the resolution of Committee.
However, with every respect to the suggested basis of the refusal and the vote at Committee, having
due regard to the information submitted with the application, and the evidence to support a refusal, it
is our professional opinion that there is a clear prospect of a cost award at appeal if we issue a
refusal based on the grounds outlined. It is on these grounds that the application is being referred
back to planning committee for determination in accordance with Section 2.1.10 of the Scheme of
Delegation.

The following section of the report therefore contains further commentary on the issues arising in
relation to the proposal, and requests Members to reconsider the application.

3. KEY ISSUES ON THE APPLICATION

3.1

3.2

3.3

The Officer report in Appendix 1 sets out in some detail the basis of the application seeking the
variation of Condition 3. It explains the facility is long established and that in respect of this particular
application, its use is governed by conditions set by a planning inspector on appeal in 2008. The
variation sought is essentially to allow other organisations authorised by North Wales Police to use
the site during already permitted hours of use.

Responses on the application from consultees and private individuals are referred to on page 223
and 224 of the Officer report. The Llanynys Community Council’s response and Officers’ notes
relating to them, as included on the late information sheets to the January Committee, are in the final
sheet of the Appendix. The concerns expressed are over potential noise, access / highway impacts,
fear of increased crime in the area, and over hirers not being supervised.

Specific attention is drawn to the contents of Section 1.6 of the Officer report on Pages 226 and 227.
This highlights information provided by North Wales Police in relation to the users of the facility and
detailed site management arrangements. In summary :

* The use would be by accredited gun clubs and other government organisations
* In terms of Site Management the application states:—

- any organisation using the facility would have to be a large scale body and have accredited
standards (such as the British Association for Shooting and Conservation);

- would have to have licensed instructors in place;

- the organisation would have to have risk assessments in place for their activities and hold suitable
public liability insurance;

- Chief Officers of NWP would need to sign off on authority for the organisations to use the range

- all activities would be monitored by the Range Warden, who would also be responsible for opening
and closing the site and ensuring that shooting only took place within the permitted hours;

- register of those attending and hours of use would be kept; and

Page 154



3.4

3.5

3.6

3.6

- in the event of any unsafe activities or breaches of rules occur then the Organisation would be de-
authorised from using the range.

In relation to control over the users of the site, Officers would suggest that the submission makes
clear that this is a matter for North Wales Police, and as noted above, that there are detailed checks
in place as part of their supervisory regime that should offer suitable comfort over who uses the
facility, including monitoring by way of the Range Warden.

In relation to fear of crime, the Officer report accepts that this may be a material consideration but
questions how it would be a defensible ground for refusing the variation of condition, given the site is
operated by a responsible body in the form of North Wales Police, who would have to authorise
which organisations use the facility, and monitor individual users.

In offering Members advice on this matter following the resolution at the January Committee, Officers
recognise that perception of harm may be a legitimate consideration in the assessment of a planning
application, but that it is a very difficult matter to determine what weight, if any, should be accorded to
fear of crime arising from the potential use of the firing range by organisations who are authorised
and supervised by a responsible body such as North Wales Police. In defending any appeal against a
refusal, it would be necessary to provide a clear evidence basis that there is a reasonable likelihood
of there being an increase in crime in the locality or nationally as a result of the grant of the variation.
Officers do not consider that there is such evidence to support a refusal.

It would be Officers’ view therefore that whilst appreciating the grounds of concern, this is not an
instance where significant weight should be given to fear of an increase in crime as a ground for
resisting the application.

4. RECOMMENDATION

4.1

In acknowledging Members’ resolution on the application, having regard to the contents of this report
and the Officer report to the January Committee, it is recommended that Planning Committee adopt
the original recommendation of the Planning Officer and grant the variation of the condition.

GRAHAM H. BOASE
HEAD OF PLANNING & PUBLIC PROTECTION

Page 155



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1
OFFICER REPORTTO
JANUARY COMMITTEE

Paul Griffin
WARD : Llandyrnog
WARD MEMBER(S): Clir Mervyn Parry
APPLICATION NO: 24/2014/1246/PS
PROPOSAL: Variation of condition no. 3 of planning permission code no.

24/2007/0694 (granted under appeal) to allow other
organisations as authorised by North Wales Police to be
permitted to use the site

LOCATION: Firearms Training Complex Craig y Ddywart Quarry Rhewl
Ruthin

APPLICANT: North Wales Police

CONSTRAINTS: Listed Building

PUBLICITY Site Notice — Yes

UNDERTAKEN: Press Notice — No

Neighbour letters - Yes

REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE:
Scheme of Delegation Part 2

e Recommendation to grant / approve — 4 or more objections received

CONSULTATION RESPONSES:
LLANYNYS COMMUNITY COUNCIL: awaiting response

DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CONSULTEES —

Pollution Control Officer (Noise):” We have received noise complaints about the site in the past
but they were largely in relation to the explosive method of entry procedure practised on site at
that time. After liaison with the site management efforts were made to improve the matter and

as a result we have not received, to my knowledge, any further complaints since 2009.

The potential for the intensification of noise from the site is a concern but as they are not going
to be altering their current planning permission in relation to this, it is unlikely that this will be a
material concern and could be addressed at a later date through the nuisance legislation if a
problem did actually materialise.

We do not therefore have any further comments to make at this time.”

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY:

In objection
Representations received from:

S. Dolben, Y Garreg Wen, Rhewl O. L. Jones, Prysor, Rhewl

Delwyn G Jones, Pen Y Bryn, Rhewl

Mrs Olwen Edwards, Gwynlys, Rhewl Mrs Victoria Roberts, 1 Pen Y Graig, Rhewl | Edwards,
Pen Y Graig Farm, Rhewl D M Bryan & K Bryan, Fron Haul, Rhewl Rhian Wyn Jackson, Bryn
Coch, Rhewl R.E, H.N, |, K, S & E Owen - Bryn Caredig, Rhewl Mrs. K. Culhane, 22 Min yr
Afon, Ruthin

Summary of planning based representations in objection:

- Impact on residential amenity by way of increased noise and activity
- Increased risk of gun crime in the area

Page 157


jude5019_2
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX 1
OFFICER REPORT TO
JANUARY COMMITTEE


- Infringement of human rights as the proposal would interfere with the reasonable
expectation of privacy (Article 8) and the it would result in the State interfering with the
peaceful enjoyment of property (Article 1).

EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION: 4/1/15

REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION (where applicable):

awaiting consideration by Committee

PLANNING ASSESSMENT:
1. THE PROPOSAL:
1.1 Summary of proposals

111

1.1.2

113

1.14

115

North Wales Police are seeking a variation of a condition governing the use of the
North Wales Police Firearms complex at Rhewl quarry.

The firearms use has been established over many years and the condition in question
is one granted on appeal in 2008, and which controls who uses the facility and when.

The planning condition in question, relating to the use of firearms at the site states:

- “3. The use of the firearms training centre during weekdays shall be subject to
compliance with all the following restrictions:

a) the organisations permitted to use this site shall be limited to the North Wales
Police Authority and such other emergency services as are authorised by the North
Wales Police Authority;

b) the hours of use shall be restricted to between the hours of 0830 and 1730 during
weekdays (Mondays to Fridays) with the provision of a maximum number of 12 days
in any 12 month period where the hours of use shall be permitted between 0830 and
2000, within which shooting activity shall not be permitted to exceed a maximum of 5
hours;

c) a register identifying all users and hours of use of the training centre shall be kept
and made available for inspection by officers of the Local Planning Authority on
request.”

The proposed variation seeks to vary parts a) and b) as follows::

- “a) the organisations permitted to use this site shall be limited to the North Wales
Police, such other emergency services as are authorised by North Wales Police, and
other organisations as are authorised by the North Wales Police.”

And criteria b), condition 3 reading:

- “b) the hours of use shall be restricted to between the hours of 0830 and 1730
during weekdays (Mondays to Fridays) with the provision of a maximum number of 12
days in any 12 month period where the hours of use shall be permitted between 0830
and 2000, within which shooting activity shall not be permitted to exceed a maximum
of 5 hours; and the use by the other authorised organisations shall be limited to
a maximum of four hours per day between the hours of 10:00 and 16:00 on
Monday - Friday.”

No extension to the permitted hours or days of use is sought.

1.2 Description of site and surroundings

121

Rhewl Firing Range Complex is a long established police training facility within the
former Craig y Ddwyart quarry off the A525, north-west of Ruthin, and south west of
Rhewl.

Page 158



1.2.2

The site is accessed via a track from the main A525.

1.2.3 The site contains a number of buildings and purpose built training areas set within the

former quarry area.

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations

131

The site is located outside of defined development boundaries.

1.4 Relevant planning history

14.1

142

143

144

145

The site in question has been the subject of a number of permission's which allow its
current use a firing range for North Wales Police (NWP) and other emergency
services. The applications of relevance to the origins and use of the site are detailed
in section 2 of this report.

Of relevance are planning permissions 24/0834/98/PF and 24/518/99/PS which
imposed conditions restricting the hours and days on which the site may be used. The
conditions in question were identical and stated that the use of the firearms training
centre shall be subject to compliance with the following restrictions:

“a) the organisations permitted to use the site shall be limited to the North Wales
Police and such other emergency services as are authorised by the North Wales
Police;

b) the hours of use shall be restricted to between 0830 and 1730 with the provision
for a maximum number of 12 days in any 12 month period where the hours of use
shall be permitted between 0830 and 2000 within which shooting activity shall not be
permitted to exceed a maximum of 5 hours;

c) a register identifying all users and hours of use of the training centre shall be kept
and made available for inspection by officers of the Local Planning Authority on
request;

d) there shall be no operation on Saturdays, Sundays or Public Holidays.”

In 2007, NWP applied to vary the above conditions under planning reference
24/2007/0694/PS.

The variation sought to replace the above criteria c) with:
¢) the site and buildings shall not be used on Christmas, Boxing or New Years Day
and criteria d) with:

d) there shall be no firing of high or low velocity weapons or activities involving
explosions within the site on Saturdays, Sundays or Public Holidays and no sound
amplification equipment shall be used outside buildings within the site on these days.

In essence application 24/2007/0694/PS sought to increase the use of the site for
passive activities only, and not any activity that would result in additional noise from
gun fire.

The application was reported to planning committee in August 2007 and was refused
against Officers recommendation. NWP subsequently appealed the decision, and the
appeal was allowed in March 2008.

Page 159



146

1.4.7

1.4.8

Full costs were awarded against the Council by the Planning Inspectorate as the
Inspector considered refusal had been based on the 'unfounded fears of local
residents that the full ranges of activities, including the firing of noisy weapons at the
training centre at weekends and public holidays’ and that such fears were ‘clearly a
misapprehension’. He concluded that the decision to refuse the proposal was 'largely
driven by local concerns which were not soundly based, and was contrary to the
advice of paragraph 15 of the Circular [23/93 on costs] indicating that local opposition
to a proposal in itself is insufficient to justify withholding planning permission'.

In allowing the appeal, the Inspector imposed 3 planning conditions, two of which
related to restrictions in the use of the site. These are the controls currently in place at
the site. Condition 3 related to the use of fire arms, and is the one of most relevance
to this application:

3. The use of the firearms training centre during weekdays shall be subject to
compliance with all the following restrictions:

a) the organisations permitted to use this site shall be limited to the North Wales
Police Authority and such other emergency services as are authorised by the North
Wales Police Authority;

b) the hours of use shall be restricted to between the hours of 0830 and 1730 during
weekdays (Mondays to Fridays) with the provision of a maximum number of 12 days
in any 12 month period where the hours of use shall be permitted between 0830 and
2000, within which shooting activity shall not be permitted to exceed a maximum of 5
hours;

c¢) a register identifying all users and hours of use of the training centre shall be kept
and made available for inspection by officers of the Local Planning Authority on
request.

It is to be noted the use of firearms on weekends and public holidays is clearly
prohibited through criteria c) of condition 2 of 24/2007/0694/PS, which is not under
consideration as part of the current application.

1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission

151

15.2

153

Initially the application sought to vary the condition to simply allow other organisations
to use the facility within the existing hours of operation, Monday to Friday.

Following receipt of comments from members of the public and discussions with
Officers, the applicants agreed to limit the hours which those ‘other organisations’ can
use the site to between 1000 and 1600 hrs Monday to Friday.

The applicant’s agent is keen to stress the following:

“the proposal would not alter the character, nature, or intensity of the existing use of
the site as it would involve only a minor change in the identity of the users on it, with
the nature and level of activity not changing from the levels allowed by the current
condition. As such there would be no harmful impact upon local amenities, or the
operation and safety of the highway. However, without prejudice to our arguments in
respect of the lack of material impact on noise from the site the Applicant is willing to
accept a condition along the lines of what you proposed in order to address local
residents concerns”

1.6 Other relevant background information

16.1

NWP have explained the rationale behind the application as being:
'to satisfy demand for use of the facility by accredited gun clubs and other
government organisations, with expressions of interest forthcoming from such groups

Page 160



to make use of the high standard of facilities available at the site. The applicants are
keen to satisfy this demand as it would allow them to make best use of the resource
that is provided by the site when it is not in use.'

1.6.2 Interms of site management, the application states that:

- any organisation using the facility would have to be a large scale body and have
accredited standards (such as the British Association for Shooting and Conservation);

- would have to have licensed instructors in place;

- the organisation would have to have risk assessments in place for their activities and
hold suitable public liability insurance;

- Chief Officers of NWP would need to sign off on authority for the organisations to
use the range

- all activities would be monitored by the Range Warden, who would also be
responsible for opening and closing the site and ensuring that shooting only took
place within the permitted hours;

- register of those attending and hours of use would be kept; and

- in the event of any unsafe activities or breaches of rules occur then the Organisation
would be de-authorised from using the range.

2. DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY:
2.1 24/549/97/LE - certificate of lawfulness for existing use of quarry as a firearm centre for North
Wales Police - CERTIFICATE ISSUED 02/09/98

24/973/97/PF - erection of office block, training courses, tower, street scenes, provision of
assault course, car parking, and other ancillary works - GRANTED 12/2/98

24/834/98/PF - erection of building for workshop, control room, and garage - GRANTED
27/11/98

24/518/99/PS - amendment to condition 3 of 24/973/97/PF to allow use of firearms training
centre by other emergency services and to allow an extension in hours of operation from
08:30 until 20:00 for a maximum of 12 times per annum - GRANTED 03/11/99

24/2007/0694/PS — Variation of condition no.3 of planning permission code no. 24.518/99/PS
and condition no.3 of planning permission code no. 24/0834/98/PF to allow use of the
Firearms Training Centre site and buildings in compliance with the following restrictions:

a) the organisations permitted to use the site shall be limited to the North Wales Police and
such other emergency services as are authorised by the North Wales Police;

b) the hours of use shall be restricted to between 0830 and 1730 with the provision for a
maximum number of 12 days in any 12 month period where the hours of use shall be
permitted between 0830 and 2000 within which shooting activity shall not be permitted to
exceed a maximum of 5 hours;

¢) the site and buildings shall not be used on Christmas, Boxing or New Years Day;

d) there shall be no firing of high or low velocity weapons or activities involving explosions
within the site on Saturdays, Sundays or Public Holidays and no sound amplification
equipment shall be used outside buildings within the site on these days.

REFUSED 01/08/07 at planning committee for the following reason:

Page 161



“The proposed variations of condition to allow increased use of the site at weekends and
certain Bank Holidays for additional organisations to North Wales Police and other
Emergency Services would lead to an unacceptable intensification of use at the site beyond
the original grant of permission, having a detrimental impact on the general amenity of the
area contrary to criteria i) and v) of Policy GEN 6 of the Denbighshire Unitary Development
Plan.”

The proposal was allowed at APPEAL with costs awarded against the LPA on 28/03/08. The
conclusions of the Inspector were that the decision to refuse the proposal was 'largely driven
by local concerns which were not soundly based, and was contrary to the advice of paragraph
15 of the Circular [23/93 on costs] indicating that local opposition to a proposal in itself is
insufficient to justify withholding planning permission'.

3. RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE:
The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be:
N/A

4. MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS:

In terms of general guidance on matters relevant to the consideration of a planning application,
Planning Policy Wales Edition 7, July 2014 (PPW) confirms the requirement that planning
applications 'should be determined in accordance with the approved or adopted development plan
for the area, unless material considerations indicate otherwise' (Section 3.1.2). PPW advises that
material considerations must be relevant to the regulation of the development and use of land in
the public interest, and fairly and reasonably relate to the development concerned., and that these
can include the number, size, layout, design and appearance of buildings, the means of access,
landscaping, service availability and the impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment
(Sections 3.1.3 and 3.1.4).

The following paragraphs in Section 4 of the report therefore refer to the policies of the
Denbighshire Local Development Plan, and to the material planning considerations which are
considered to be of relevance to the proposal.

4.1 The main land use planning issues in relation to the application are considered to be:

4.1.1 Principle
4.1.2 Residential amenity/Noise

4.1.3 Fear of Crime

4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations:
4.2.1 Principle
The application is made under section 73 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
which relates to the variation of conditions associated with a planning permission.

In terms of the requirements of the legislation, on such an application the local
planning authority has to consider only the question of the conditions subject to which
planning permission should be granted, and—

(a)if they decide that planning permission should be granted subject to
conditions differing from those subject to which the previous permission was
granted, or that it should be granted unconditionally, they shall grant planning
permission accordingly, and

(b)if they decide that planning permission should be granted subject to the
same conditions as those subject to which the previous permission was
granted, they shall refuse the application.

The use of the site as a Firing Range for training purposes is well established, as
detailed in the preceding sections. It is therefore considered that the principle of a

Page 162



proposal to vary a condition may be acceptable in principle, subject to assessment of
the localised implications/impacts of allowing condition 3 to be varied to allow ‘other
organisations as authorised by North Wales Police’ to use the site during the
permitted hours of operational activities.

4.2.2 Residential amenity/Noise
Planning Policy Wales 3.1.4 refers to the number, size, layout, design and
appearance of buildings, the means of access, landscaping, service availability and
the impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment as potentially material
considerations. The impact of a development on residential amenity is therefore a
relevant test on planning applications. This is emphasised in Paragraph 3.1.7, which
states that proposals should be considered in terms of their effect on the amenity and
existing use of land and buildings in the public interest. As the Courts have ruled that
the individual interest is an aspect of the public interest, it is therefore valid to
consider the effect of a proposal on the amenity of neighbouring properties.

Concern has been expressed by local residents that allowing other organisations
(alongside the NWP and other emergency services) increases the potential for the
site to be used for the firing of noisy weapons to its maximum allowance, i.e. between
0830 and 1730 during weekdays (Mondays to Fridays) and with the provision of a
maximum number of 12 days in any 12 month period where the hours of use are
permitted between 0830 and 2000, within which shooting activity is not permitted to
exceed a maximum of 5 hours. The Public Protection Officer advises that there have
been no complaints since 2009 over activity at the site and has raised no objections
to the proposed variations.

The concern that the proposal would result in the site being used more intensively is
appreciated. However, in allowing the 2007 appeal, the Inspector considered the
amenity impacts of those hours of use and concluded that as a maximum that they
were acceptable. In terms of hours of use and noise it is respectfully considered
irrelevant who is creating the noise, the point being that there is no control over how
much use is made of the facility. Regard has to be given to the fall back position that if
this application were refused, North Wales Police could still operate the site to its
maximum permitted hours and create the same impacts as could arise if the variation
were granted. This, in Officers opinion, is the fundamental consideration in
determining the application. Such consideration suggests that a refusal on the
grounds of additional noise having a detrimental impact upon the residential amenity
of occupiers of dwellings in the area would not be sustainable.

4.2.3 Fear of crime
There is general advice in Planning Policy Wales (Section 3.1), the Crime and
Disorder Act 1998 and subsequent good practice guide that the effects of a
development on crime is a potential material consideration a planning authority should
consider when exercising its functions.

Concern has been raised by local residents that the use of the firing range by other
organisations could result in a loss of public safety within the area and increased fear
of crime.

Whilst respecting this perception, from a planning perspective it is clear that fear of
crime in relation to a site run by North Wales Police, (with users being members of
large scale organisations, licensed instructors being present, and a Range Warden
supervising activities), is not a defensible reason to consider withholding permission.
There is little or no evidence to support this stance, as the applicants are well placed
to ensure the proper operation and monitoring of the site and its users. It is not
considered that the proposed variation of the planning condition would result in a loss
of public safety.

4.3 Other matters
In considering comments made relating to human rights, it is noted that Article 1 and Article 8

Page 163



relate to impact upon the enjoyment of private property and residential amenity. It is
considered that these issues are addressed above.

5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS:
5.1 Having regard to the considerations which appear relevant to the determination, it is
considered that the variation of condition 3 to allow ‘other organisations as authorised by
North Wales Police’ to use the site during the permitted hours of operational activities is
acceptable, and it is recommended that the variation be granted.

5.2 For Members’ reference, it should be noted that where an application under section 73 is
granted, the effect is the issue of a new planning permission, sitting alongside the original
permission, which remains intact and un-amended. A decision notice describing the new
permission would need to be issued, setting out all of the conditions related to it. To assist
with clarity decision notices for the grant of planning permission under section 73 also have to
repeat the relevant conditions from the original planning permission

RECOMMENDATION: GRANT- subject to the following conditions:-

1. The passive training pursuits on weekends and public holidays (except Christmas Day,
Boxing Day and New Years Day) shall be subject to compliance with all the following
restrictions:

a) the organisations permitted to use this site shall be limited to the North Wales Police, other
emergency services and other organisations as are authorised by the North Wales Police;

b) it should not operate except between the hours of 0830 and 1730 hours on Saturdays,
Sundays or Public Holidays, with the proviso that no activities whatsoever shall take place on
the site on Christmas Day, Boxing Day and New Years Day in any year;

¢) no firing of high or low velocity weapons or activities involving explosions within the site
(including buildings) and no sound amplification equipment shall be used outside the buildings
within the site on Saturdays, Sundays or Public Holidays;

d) there shall be no more than 30 persons in attendance at training events at any one time;
e) a register identifying all users and hours of use of the training centre shall be kept and
made available for inspection by officers of the Local Planning Authority on request.

2. The use of the firearms training centre during weekdays shall be subject to compliance with
all the following restrictions:
a) the organisations permitted to use this site shall be limited to the North Wales Police, such
other emergency services as are authorised by North Wales Police, and other organisations
as are authorised by the North Wales Police.
b) the hours of use shall be restricted to between the hours of 0830 and 1730 during
weekdays (Mondays to Fridays) with the provision of a maximum number of 12 days in any
12 month period where the hours of use shall be permitted between 0830 and 2000, within
which shooting activity shall not be permitted to exceed a maximum of 5 hours; and the use
by the other authorised organisations shall be limited to a maximum of four hours per day
between the hours of 10:00 and 16:00 on Monday - Friday.
c) a register identifying all users and hours of use of the training centre shall be kept and
made available for inspection by officers of the Local Planning Authority on request.

The reason(s) for the condition(s) is(are):-

1. In the interest of residential amenity.
2. In the interest of residential amenity.

NOTES TO APPLICANT:

None

Page 164



Agenda Item 12

Report To: Planning Committee
Date of Meeting: 18" February 2015

Lead Member/Officer: Clir David Smith, Public Realm/
Angela Loftus, Strategic Planning & Housing Manager

Report Author: Angela Loftus, Strategic Planning & Housing Manager

Title: Draft Site Development Brief -Ty Nant, Nant Hall Road,
Prestatyn

1. What is the report about?

1.1  This report introduces the draft Site Development Brief for the Ty Nant site off
Nant Hall Road, Prestatyn. It is accompanied by the draft main document,
Appendix |, the Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA) screening
document, Appendix 2, and the screening document for the Equality Impact
Assessment, Appendix 3.

2. What is the reason for making this report?

2.1 To seek Members’ approval to undertake consultation on the draft Site
Development Brief and the accompanying Strategic Environmental
Assessment with statutory bodies and members of the public. If approved, the
Site Development Brief will assist in the determination of planning applications
for this site.

3. What are the Recommendations?

3.1 That Members agree the draft Site Development Brief for Ty Nant, Nant Hall
Road and the accompanying Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA)
screening document for public consultation.

4. Report details.

4.1  This draft site development brief will become, once adopted, part of a series of
Supplementary Planning Guidance notes (SPGs) amplifying Denbighshire
Local Development Plan 2006 - 2021 (LDP) policies or principles of
development for individual site allocations in a format which aims to guide the
process, design and quality of new development.

4.2 The Council's SPG notes are not part of the adopted development plan. The

Welsh Government (WG) has confirmed that following public consultation and
subsequent Local Planning Authority (LPA) approval, SPGs can be treated as

Page 165



4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

a material planning consideration when LPAs, Planning Inspectors and the
Welsh Government determine planning applications and appeals.

The site is located in the centre of Prestatyn, to the east of the High Street. It
is accessed from the Nant Hall Road, with pedestrian access from the High
Street. The site lies immediately opposite Parc Prestatyn Retail Park. Most of
the site is currently in use for car parking, with the Ty Nant Council offices
occupying the northern part of the site. This building has been vacated and is
currently being marketed to let. Part of the site is within the Conservation Area
and the buildings fronting Nant Hall Road, although not listed, are within the
Conservation Area.

The draft Development Brief aims to set out a framework to guide the potential
redevelopment of the site. It proposes the following vision for the site:

e To create a vibrant, attractive development which successfully connects
and integrates with Prestatyn’s town centre.

e To provide high quality design, which respects and enhances the
adjacent important listed buildings and Prestatyn High Street
Conservation Area.

¢ It should provide a mixture of uses which enhance the vitality and viability
of Prestatyn’s town centre by establishing an active frontage along Nant
Hall Road, which could include new cafes and restaurants to add to
Prestatyn’s attractiveness and complement existing facilities in the town
centre.

e The mix of uses could include retail, commercial, residential, leisure,
offices, health, education and public open space.

e The frontage to Nant Hall Road and the existing Council Chamber should
be retained and re-used if possible but there is scope for innovative
design on the remainder of the site.

e The aim is to provide well-designed public open spaces/ squares for
visitors and residents to enjoy and to help to provide a focus for the town.

e Good pedestrian links, both within the site and to the High Street and
Nant Hall Road will ensure that any development here becomes part of
the town centre.

The document’s main elements are: site location and description, local
planning policies, areas highlighted for development and potential uses, and
access and movement. The aim is to provide guidance on potentially
acceptable uses on the site.

The public consultation period would be a minimum of 8 weeks and is
anticipated to start in March 2015. All City, Town and Community Councils will
be consulted along with key stakeholders and people registered on the LDP
database. Hard copies of documents will be available in all libraries and one
stop shops as well as on the Denbighshire web site. Officers also will hold

Page 166



4.7

5.1

6.1

6.2

7.1

8.1

exhibitions / drop-in events at Prestatyn Library (details will be announced as
early as possible). The results of the consultation will be reported back to
Planning Committee with any changes proposed as a result of the comments
received.

The draft document is accompanied by a Strategic Environmental Assessment
screening document, Appendix 2, which will also be subject to consultation
with statutory consultees over the same period of time.

How does the decision contribute to the Corporate Priorities?

Corporate Priorities 2012 — 17. The SPG will contribute positively to the
following corporate priorities:

» Modernising the Council to deliver efficiencies and improve services for
our customers by ensuring that planning guidance documents are up to
date

What will it cost and how will it affect other services?

Approving the draft Development Brief for consultation with statutory bodies
and members of the public is not anticipated to create any additional costs.

Having an adopted SDB outlining potential development opportunities, which
comply with planning legislation subject to details, will assist in marketing of
the site to attract investment and to deliver a redevelopment by reducing risk
and providing certainty for developers and future occupiers.

What are the main conclusions of the Equality Impact Assessment (EqlA)
undertaken on the decision? The completed EqIA template should be
attached as an appendix to the report.

The proposal is to carry out public consultation on guidance relating to
development on the Ty Nant, Nant Hall Road site. The content of the
Development Brief does not set policy but consolidates, and provides site-
specific guidance on, the relevant LDP policies. The LDP, including all
policies, underwent a full EglA prior to adoption.

What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny and others?

Content and principles of development were discussed by Denbighshire Local
Development Plan 2006 — 2021 (LDP) Member Steering Group and the draft
Development Brief was also discussed at the Prestatyn and Meliden Member
Area Group on 28" January 2015. Contributions from colleagues from the
Economic Business and Development, Development Management,
Conservation and Property Services have also informed the development of
the Brief.

Page 167



8.2

9.1

10.

10.1

11.

111

The Councils regeneration aspirations for the site are to deliver a high quality
urban development providing an attractive and vibrant environment to
reinforce the commercial vitality of the Town Centre and provide new
employment opportunities. The Development Brief is aimed at providing a
guality mixed use scheme that is complimentary to the Town Centre generally
and but is sympathetic to adjacent uses.

Chief Finance Officer Statement

Any costs associated with the final guidance should be contained within
existing budgets and therefore there are no obvious financial implications
contained in the report.

What risks are there and is there anything we can do to reduce them?
This is a significant site in Prestatyn, which has the potential to be
redeveloped to provide a mixture of uses which enhance the vitality and
viability of Prestatyn’s town centre. Taking a positive approach will help to
ensure that a suitable scheme is put forward which improves the visual
appearance of the site and raises the attractiveness of the place for potential
new investment.

Power to make the Decision

Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act (2004)

Page 168



Appendix 1

Draft Site Development Brief:

Ty Nant, Nant Hall
Road, Prestaty

Main Document

Strategic Planning & Housing Team Sir ddin bcyy”@'c":r h
February 2015 denbighshire v:g

County Council

Page 169



2

Draft Site Development Brief: Ty Nant, Nant Hall Road, Prestatyn
Page 170 -



Content Page

1. Introduction 5

2. Document Status and Stages in Preparation 5

3. Site Location and Description

4. Planning Policy

5. Vision for Site & Development F,
Design Influences & De

Land use and density

6. Access and Moveme 29

7. Further tions 29

Figure 2a LOS
& 2b
Figure 3 Site brief plan

les relevant to development at Ty Nant

Cover Photo: Ty Nant, Prestatyn (Aerial View, 2009)

Draft Site Development Brief: Ty Nant, Nant Hall Road, Prestatyn
Page 171



2/ T abed

Figure 1: Location of Ty Nant, Prestatyn

SRS
RS
\“\\“l‘

I:‘“";
-

om
ey

RN, BT
© Hawifraint y Goron a hawliau cron

fa ddata 2014 Arolwg Ordnans 1 Q(TOZ;MO&

VWOSTTTUY TG Darin

I chanag,
we's Point of Ayr
7
® R 7 Talacre
— A @! T ”\" Mostyn Ba
-G N Fiyn

1S
Gwespyr._ NN\
Wl?’e@-
1) N\
7

[ ffordd~ D
@nasa o)
NV

4. Mostynj
% relogan =
Nl

Gronant

A
230
\ A
VG
RUSLFARRK

‘: R
S SSEh IS
& /#,t.:" H L
OIS
8%

/
k=

%
05

L T/ 3 00

N PR 2% %

DS A o“&{/""

SO FNS U NEOYNL %,

W A N Y S

S SN SN N
N0 S QRN //\‘<§0

PSS N

&i":’l ’t’l’;‘;"q ¢
b N

B B

< .&/
L

ffin y safle /
site boundary

o
glg Crown copyngh( and rights 2014 Ordnance Survey 100023408.Z




1. Introduction

1.1 This site development brief is one of a series of Supplementary Planning
Guidance notes amplifying Denbighshire Local Development Plan 2006 —
2021 (LDP) policies or principles of development for individual site allocations
in a format which aims to guide the process, design and quality of new

development. These notes are intended to offer dej@iled guidance to assist

members of the public, Members of the Coungj tential developers and

Officers in discussions prior to the submi

determination of future planning applic}m.

2. Document Status and Stages in Preparation

and, consequently, in

2.1 This site development bgef was forma roved for public consultation by

2.2 e notes (SPGs) are not part
plan. The Welsh Government (WG) has

ultation and subsequent Local Planning

members ©t the public.

3. Site Location and Description

3.1 Location

The site is located in the centre of Prestatyn, to the east of the High Street

Page 173



3.2

3.3

3.4

3.6

(please see figure 1). It is accessed from Nant Hall Road, with pedestrian
access from the High Street. The site lies immediately opposite Parc

Prestatyn Retail Park which opened in 2013.

Size

The site measures 1.3 hectares.

Site Boundaries

The site is bounded to the north by Nant H a historically important

Existing and previous land
The Council Offi
estern sectfon of land next to the Parish

g hall. A guide hut was erected in the mid

opography

the site rises at a gentle gradient from north to south.

HistoricaN@&ckground

Prestatyn developed rapidly from a fishing village to a thriving town. The
townships of Prestatyn and Nant were merged to create a new parish of
Prestatyn in 1863, after the parishes of Meliden and Llanasa were separated.
The railway, which opened on 1st May 1848 contributed to the real and
anticipated rise in population. The first phase of building of the Parish Church
was built in 1863. The Vicarage was built in 1866. Both the buildings and

Draft Site Development Brief: Ty Nant, Nant Hall Road, Prestatyn
Page 174



3.7

3.8

3.9

boundary walls are constructed of the local limestone, now comparatively
rare in Prestatyn. Much of the Ruabon brick, seen extensively in the town and

in Nant Hall Road, was imported.

Landscape and Landscape context
Much of the site is a hard surfaced urban car park. It is a large rectangular

open space, with smaller block of development to thg south west next to the

Parish Church. It is bound by low limestone ary walls to the west.

There is post and panel fencing to the easte ary, with hedges to the

ich is an important part of the

There are rage site. These are covered

several species. A tree survey has been

boundary further east and helps to break up the density of
ant Hall Road. These trees are shown on Figure 3. The
tified a number of trees which contribute to the site’s amenity
be integrated into the design where possible, to provide some
mature landscaping. Hedges to the rear of the car park at the south of the
site are also a positive landscape feature. Any new tree planting should

incorporate a range of species and take account of the availability of space.

Biodiversity and ecology

A Phase 1 habitat survey, bird and bat survey and tree survey has been

Draft Site Development Brief: Ty Nant, Nant Hall Road, Prestatyn
Page 175



3.10

undertaken on behalf of the Council and is available on request. This
concluded that there are no rare or notable habitats present on the site, the
majority of the site is hardstanding and amenity grassland. It also concluded
that any development would not affect any watercourses. No bats were found
on the site, although there may still be bats occasionally using the buildings
and any demolition should be carried out outside the bat activity season

(March to September). The site could be enhanced fgg bats by erecting some

f the site. Any tree or
ed to avoid the bird

bat boxes, preferably along the south west corrj
shrub removal, or work to buildings shou

breeding season (March to September).

Existing buildings of importance

The site is adjacent to the Prestat ' nservation A

Listed buildings: -
Christ Church — a Grade |
Listed as “A plai

utting the site to the west.

programme reflecting the

ated design nothwithstanding

and the delay of completion of the chancel

Draft Site Development Brief: Ty Nant, Nant Hall Road, Prestatyn
Page 176

8



Christ Church, Prestatyn

Christ Church Vicarage — §

extremely important.
The Church and Vicarage boundary walls are listed as they form part of their

curtilage.

Draft Site Development Brief: Ty Nant, Nant Hall Road, Prestatyn
Page 177



View of Church and Vicarage
boundary walls, High Street

Unlisted buildings

Northern boundary
The Council Qi

storey prg ‘ windows.

tta®hed to mid Victorian two

he Council offices are two

the Council Chambers. There is some

jling above windows and doors. The

All the above buildings are in the Conservation Area.

Page 178

10



Nant Hall Road

3.11  Visual appraisal

- the treatment of the facade to the

torian architectural character similar to

- Buildin§@#fes directly abutting pavement

- Cohesive architecture in terms of scale, massing and materials

- Ruabon red brick, with yellow sandstone surrounds, and slate roofs

- Two storey domestic scale, punctuated by the classically inspired Council
Chambers.

- A moderate to high townscape value

Draft Site Development Brief: Ty Nant, Nant Hall Road, Prestatyn
Page 179

11



3.12

- The character changes heading east on Nant Hall Road. There is more
space surrounding and between buildings. The character of the former library
appears to be more lightweight than the Victorian and Edwardian
architecture. This is down to the use of materials, the amount of glazing and
its neat and compact form, set back from the road, with trees and greenery

introduced.

To the west, the Vicarage is set within spacious ds facing south to the

church. The character of this area is distinc in character, which is a

sharp contrast to the dense urban form and northern part

of the High Street.

Views
The principal view into
Nant Hall Road is of Ty N

obscured the

e vehicular access point from
top view to the site but has

e Vicarage and Church

View from Nant Hall Road

The Church building itself is not a dominant feature in any views from Nant

Hall Road, as it is tucked neatly away between the High Street and car park

Draft Site Development Brief: Ty Nant, Nant Hall Road, Prestatyn
Page 180

12



but the spire is very significant in terms of views to it. This is an important
historical landmark. Other important views are of the limestone walls and the
Vicarage and Church, which are of most significance when viewed in the
same view point. This is partially obscured by Ty Nant.

Views to the site via the access road from High Street are created by a strong
boundary line created by limestone boundary walls fronting small garden

areas to either side. The stop view is busy, and inclydes a large mature tree

and a side elevation of Ty Nant. The tree and ant are of roughly the

same height. The view into the site from the route of the High Street

could be improved.

View from Ty Nant access road towards the
Vicarage

Draft Site Development Brief: Ty Nant, Nant Hall Road, Prestatyn
Page 181

13



3.13

3.14

View towards Ty Nant from access road

Important open space
The open character of the car part accid@ligl and functional rather than
attractive. It is of a siggificant size, % has an unplanned character.
Consequently existing d ent within site, such as the Guide Hut
and Church Hall have no icularl evant active frontages, or

e or to nearby streets and

gck gardens @€ evident to the buildings on the northern perimeter of the

Cultural appraisal
This area has for a long time been the municipal quarter of Prestatyn. The
Council’s preference is for the existing Council Chamber located on the first
floor of 6-8 Nant Hall to be retained, if not feasible alternative arrangements
for accommodating Town Council meetings should be explored.

Draft Site Development Brief: Ty Nant, Nant Hall Road, Prestatyn
Page 182

14



4.1

4.2

Planning Policy

Planning Policy Wales (Edition 7), paragraph 2.1.2, states that planning
applications have to be determined in accordance with the adopted
development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.
Denbighshire’s Local Development Plan 2006 — 2021 (LDP) was adopted in

June 2013, and contains local policies applicablgy to any development

proposals for Ty Nant, Prestatyn.

Material considerations are issues that
as capacity of physical infrastructur, g. inage or water
systems), noise or disturbance r [ city, nature
conservation and biodiversity oD@ [ us appeal

decisions and planning inguiry reports.

Draft Site Development Brief: Ty Nant, Nant Hall Road, Prestatyn
Page 183

15



8T abed

Figure 2a

Terfynau'r Safle

Site Boundaries

Allwedd:
fin y Safle

Ffi
D Canol y Dre

P\ cadwrzeth Argal
Adeiladau i gael

[

Adeilad/ Ffasad i'w gadw

Tirwedd Presenn:
Lledaeniad Ceron Coe
Lleoli iogelu
Coes! eden

Rhif

Categori Cyflwr Coeden B
C: s yn bosob)

Categori Cyflwr Coeden C

o

@ @ERO0ONE

F
[(]
3 a

rrrrrrrrrrrrr

&&&&&&

eu disodli/hailddatblygu




GgT abed

Figure 2b

\\\ i
\ \ // \v”\

- = v 2 \

.- —
-
- -
| T

—-—
-_-_.—.
-

Ffin y Safle /
Site Boundary

" v~ Ffin Canol Tref/
~ le—«—* Town Centre Boundary

N [T ™ 7| Ardal Cadwraeth /
y L——J Conservation Area

V//% Datblygiad Adwerthy Newydd /

New Retail Development

{
.’
’ .. Blaenoriaeth Datblygu Tir Liwyd /
e Il \ Brownfield Development Priority
| Parthed Llifogydd C1/
I‘ Flood Zone C1

cw,m.mmmmumo&mxm
© Crown copynght and database nghts 2014 Oranance Survey 100023408

v

Draft Site Development Brief: Ty Nant, Nant Hall Road, Prestatyn



4.3

4.4

LDP Policy RD 1 — Development Boundary: The site is located within the
development boundary of Prestatyn, i.e. a wide range of land uses could be
considered suitable subject to detailed policy criteria addressing sustainable
development and good standard design.

Development proposals should aim for high standargs of design in terms of

built environment and in securing the best envj ent through landscape

design. That means applicants may want t r the following matters

Although the Policy geperally seek ieve densities for residential

development of a min o per hectare, the density of

— Affordable Housing: All developments of 3 or more
rently expected to provide a minimum of 10% affordable
opments of between 3 and 10 dwellings are required to make
a financi@€ontribution, whereas developments of 10 or more are expected to
make on-site provision. The minimum 10% contribution will be subject to
annual monitoring of sales prices and could be increased to a minimum 30%
contribution in the future. Further detail is provided in the Council’s adopted
Supplementary Planning Guidance on Affordable Housing. The Council
would encourage proposals for higher levels of affordable housing on this

site.

Page 186



4.7

LDP Policy VOE 1 — Conservation Area: Prestatyn’s Conservation Area
borders to the north, and west. It is essential that any development proposals
should maintain and wherever possible, enhance the character and setting of
the conservation area, and listed buildings; particularly to potential adverse
effects on the setting of Christ Church and Christ Church Vicarage (both
Grade Il Listed Buildings).

Appraising the local context is essential in i and understanding the

11 - "Recreation and Open Space: Whilst no land is

reation and open space on site, there is an opportunity to

Road. This could provide a focus for the town, with provision of high quality
seating, information and public art. The policy sets out the Council’s
requirements for open space in association with residential development at a
rate equivalent to 2.4 hectares per thousand population, to be provided on
site unless it can be demonstrated that it is impractical to do so, in which case

a commuted sum will be required. The preference here would be to secure

Draft Site Development Brief: Ty Nant, Nant Hall Road, Prestatyn
Page 187

19



4.1

4.12

contributions from any residential development, to provide a community open
space/ public square on the northern part of the site which would allow for

better design and the potential to provide a more usable public space.

LDP Policy BSC12 - Community facilities: This policy seeks to protect
community facilities. The former library building on the north-eastern part of

the site was previously a community facility, but it is agcepted in this case that

the services that it provided have been relocat in Prestatyn and that

the continued use of the facility is unvi unsuitable. Therefore

LDP Policy PSE3 - Protection of em land and buildings: The office
or a number of years, however
it has been vacated and > ver a year. Proposals for

ver the Council would not

part of the

t on this site should be accompanied by

ite for alternative uses. Any

osals contribute towards regeneration

refers to development in an out of town centre location but within
development boundaries. As part of the site is located in a designated town
centre, policy criteria as defined in PSE 8 are applicable to this part of the
site. Within this area, development proposals will be permitted provided they
enhance the vitality and viability of the town centre and do not result in an

unacceptable imbalance of retail and non-retail uses. Any proposals for

Draft Site Development Brief: Ty Nant, Nant Hall Road, Prestatyn
Page 188

20



development should be accompanied by information demonstrating how they
would contribute to and enhance the vitality and viability of the town centre.

Policy PSE 9 would apply to the remainder of the site. This policy states that
proposals for small scale retail uses will be permitted provided that they: (1)
are less than 500sqm gross area; (2) serve the local area; (3) do not form
part of an industrial estate; and (4) do not jeopardise the viability and vitality

of town or district centres. Should the size of any getail proposed exceed

500sgm gross area, a sequential approach to th ction of sites would be

required in line with Planning Policy Wales (E paragraph 10.2.11.

Draft Site Development Brief: Ty Nant, Nant Hall Road, Prestatyn
Page 189

21



Development Vision

e To create a vibrant, attractive development which successfully connects
and integrates with Prestatyn’s town centre.

e To provide high quality design, which respects and enhances the adjacent
important listed buildings and Prestatyn High Street Conservation Area.

¢ |t should provide a mixture of uses which enhance the vitality and viability
of Prestatyn’s town centre by establishing an active frontage along Nant
Hall Road, which could include new cafes and restaurants to add to
Prestatyn’s attractiveness and complement existing facilities in the town
centre.

o The mixture of uses could include retail, commercial, residential, leisure,
offices, health, education and public open space.

¢ The frontage to Nant Hall Road and the existing Council Chamber should
be retained and re-used if possible but there is scope for innovative design
on the remainder of the site.

e The aim is to provide well-designed public open spaces/ squares for

visitors and residents to enjoy and to help to provide a focus for the town.

¢ Good pedestrian links, both within the site and to the High Street and Nant

Hall Road will ensure that any development here becomes part of the town

centre.

5. Development Framework
Land use and density

5.1 Redevelopment of this site provides the opportunity for a mix of uses, which
could include housing, office, hotel, leisure, education, health and retail uses,

together with public open space and improved links to the High Street. Any

Page 190



5.2

5.3

9.5

residential development should be close to existing residential areas. The
balance between commercial uses and residential uses will need to be
carefully considered and the impact on the amenity of existing and proposed
housing from any commercial development proposed would have to be
considered. This should include aspects such as noise, opening hours, refuse

collection, and car parking.

The space to the south of the site could benefit fr development of larger

massing and scale and an innovative desj could sit comfortably
alongside the Church, providing that buyi rooflines, skylines,

massing and appropriate space a the buildin ere taken into

consideration.

Retail or commercial uses may be
Hall Road.
should sit comfortably with Y& for s fronting Nant Hall Road.
The Council’s [ ant Hall Road and the

ustered around the existing

commercial area around scale, mass and form of this

e site'Is currently provided for car parking although this has
since the closure of the Ty Nant Council Offices. Parking
s undertaken in August and September 2014 indicate that
icient parking capacity elsewhere in the town centre to
accommodate any parking displaced from the site. Any redevelopment of the
site would, however, need to provide sufficient parking spaces for the new

uses in line with the Council’s requirements.

Prestatyn has a high level of housing need and a mixture of mainly 2 bedroom

town houses/terraced (some 3 bedroom) would be most appropriate for the

Draft Site Development Brief: Ty Nant, Nant Hall Road, Prestatyn
Page 191

23



southern part of the site. Affordable housing provided should comprise a
mixture of mainly rented properties with some shared equity properties. In view
of the high level of housing need in the area, the Council will require a

minimum of 20% affordable housing to be provided on the site. Any residential

development would be required to meet the Council’'s space standards set out
in SPG: Residential Space Standards.

Draft Site Development Brief: Ty Nant, Nant Hall Road, Prestatyn
Page 192

24



€6T obed

Figure 3

Briff y Safle
Site Brief
Allwedd:

E Ffin y Safle

E Canol y Dre

. Adeiladau i gael eu disodlifhailddatblygu
. Adeilad/ Ffasad f'w gadw

Tirwedd Presennol

Defnydd Cymysg (hamdden, Gwesty/Caffi
Manwerthu, Preswyl, Busnesf)

E Liwybr mynediad cyhoeddus
[—] N
Uledaeniad Coron Coeden

Q Lieoliad Diogelu Gwereiddiau

@ Goesyn Coeden
Rhif Coeden

(@] Categori Cyflwr Coeden B
(9¥] (Cadw os yn bosob)

D Categori Cyfiwr Coeden C

Legend:

E Site Boundary

E Town Centre Boundary

. Buildings to be replaced / redeveloped
[7] svicing s Fecade to be retained

. Existing Landscape

. Mixed Uses (Leisure, Hotel { Cafe
Retail, Residential, Offices/Business use)

. Residential

IE' Public Access Route
@ Tree Crown Spread
Root Protection Area (RPA)

@ Tree Stem
Tree No.

Tree Condition Category B
(9¥] (to be retained If possible)

D Tree Condition Category G




5.6

5.7

Design Principles: Public realm

Listed buildings and their settings need to be preserved and enhanced.
Generally the space within the site currently does not enhance the setting of
the listed buildings to any great degree. However, the lane by the church and

vicarage is very important.

ing of the Church and
and the car park. The

The area of high significance, and part of the set

Vicarage is the boundary wall between these bui

trees and limestone boundary walls with ow width of the road

between the boundary wall and car p create a semi-rural

character, which captures the charac historic Pres and this part of

ees and an appropriate traffic

d as a pedestrian access. Any

important. Views in and out of the site should identify particular vantage
points, and features of interest. The critical view is of the Church spire. This
should be recorded in any appraisal and site lines protected. Cluster
viewpoints will also be important — for example the relationships with the

Church and Vicarage.

Page 194



5.10

5.11

Integrated sustainable renewable resources would be welcomed, providing

they are integral architectural components of the building.

Green infrastructure / Open Space

The green space outside the library could be retained and the tree boundary
reinforced to create a visual link to the eastern part of Nant Hall Road. There
are a number of trees on the northern part of the site which should be
retained and protected and these are shown on Figure 3: Site Brief Plan. The
Tree Survey also identified a number of trees which contribute to the site’s
amenity which should be integrated into the design where possible, to provide
some mature landscaping. Green space could be introduced into the site to

enhance the setting of the Church and Vicarage, or could form part of a

0 Nant‘id into the site should be
g andsc g.

any residential development

series of urban squares.

Council’'s general preference is for on-site

on the former library site, provided that there is positive treatment to the gable

end of the Council offices. There is a strong vertical emphasis to windows
and doors, which is important and should be considered in any new
development in order to retain the townscape rhythm. An active frontage with

appropriate scale, massing and detail to the site onto Nant Hall Road is

Draft Site Development Brief: Ty Nant, Nant Hall Road, Prestatyn
Page 195

27



5.14

essential.

Any affordable housing should be well designed in terms of materials and
detailing and not segregated architecturally.

New build within the site needs to reflect the scale, height and mass of
existing buildings, which are principally two storey, and generally terraced or

set close together within small grounds. An imaginative approach can be

considered, but within the confines of the existin e, height and massing

of buildings.
The existing buildings on Nant Hall R f re-use. A mixed
tenure — such as shop units to gro ove, would be
encouraged. The Council woul treet level
along Nant Hall Road. A similar app build on the site should be
considered.

ity and design, and reflect
8sing'and architectural quality in
ue for example. There should be a clear

ate space and frontages facing into the

Demolition

Demolition

library, Ty Nant and the modern extension to the

n Nant Hall Road is considered acceptable. Conservation

Community safety

Any proposals should ensure the creation of attractive and safe public spaces
and movement routes particularly for the pedestrian and cyclist maximising
natural surveillance over the public realm and adopting where appropriate

Secure by Design measures.

Draft Site Development Brief: Ty Nant, Nant Hall Road, Prestatyn
Page 196

28



6.1

6.2

7.

7.1

A N

Access and Movement

Vehicular access should be gained from Nant Hall Road, there may be scope
to alter the current access point and flexibility with regard to internal access
and circulation arrangements within the site. Design solutions should have
regard to ‘Manual for Streets’. Any proposals should incorporate clear,

attractive and safe pedestrian links to the High Street@nd Nant Hall Road.

Pedestrian access routes from Glyn Avenu ar park site should be
permeable, protected and enhanced uld provide safe

conditions for pedestrians, cyclists [ i pairments both

of individual proposals apd the potent ase of traffic generated by the
development which wo d. Access arrangements and
road improvement works

department.

is set out the Council's

quirements

Parking Requirements in New

Further Considerations

Flood risk considerations

A anhe northern part of the site lies within Flood Risk Zone C1 of
Welsh G&vernment's Development Advice Map referred to in Technical

Advice Note 15: Development and Flood Risk. Zone C1 denotes areas of

floodplain which are developed and served by significant infrastructure,
including various types of flood defences. Consequently, development may
take place but will be subject to application of justification tests and
acceptability of consequences for particular types. Detailed information on

justification tests and acceptability criteria can be found in WG TAN15:

Draft Site Development Brief: Ty Nant, Nant Hall Road, Prestatyn
Page 197

29



7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

Development and Flood Risk, paragraphs 6 - 7 and Appendix 1. The majority
of the site is shown within Flood Zone A — an area considered to be at little or

no risk of fluvial or tidal flooding.

A flood consequences assessment has been undertaken for the site and is

available on request.

With regard to flood risk, types of development ¢ adly be categorised as

(1) Emergency Services (e.g. hospitals, fire , (2) Highly Vulnerable

TAN15, and any advice from Natur. rces Wales (NRW) would be

treated as a material co jon.

Archaeology
This area . i have thé¥remains of Mesolithic hunter
the vi . During developments at the old Kwik

idde nd stone tools have been found which

esent on the site. Developers are advised to contact the

County regarding the pre-determination evaluation and
potential measures to safeguard or enhance archaeological interests if
necessary.
Drainage

Development should incorporate Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems

(SUDS) to limit land drainage or surface water runoff discharging to the public

Draft Site Development Brief: Ty Nant, Nant Hall Road, Prestatyn
Page 198

30



7.6

7.7

sewer or causing surface water flooding.

Construction

The Council will require a Construction Environmental Management Plan to
be submitted, covering issues such as hours of work on site, delivery of
materials, noise and disturbance during construction. The Council will also

expect any developers to enter into local labour/ trainjgg agreements for the

construction phase.

Welsh Language

The Council may require the submissj

provide bilingual signag

Contacts

Denbighshire County Council
ProtectiC Planning and Public Protection
jement Strategic Planning & Housing
Caledfryn

Smithfield Road

Denbigh

LL16 3RJ

Tel.: 01824 706727 Tel.: 01824 706916
Email: planning@denbighshire.gov.uk  Email: Idp@denbighshire.gov.uk

Denbighshire County Council Denbighshire County Council
Economic and Business Highways & Environmental Services
Development Highways and Transportation

Draft Site Development Brief: Ty Nant, Nant Hall Road, Prestatyn
Page 199

31



Caledfryn Department

Smithfield Road Caledfryn
Denbigh Smithfield Road
LL16 3RJ Denbigh

LL16 3RJ

Tel.: 01824 706860
Email: econ.dev@denbighshire.gov.uk  Tel.: 01824 70@882

denbighshire.gov.uk

Draft Site Development Brief: Ty Nant, Nant Hall Road, Prestatyn 32
Page 200



Appendix 2

Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA) Screening —
Site Development Brief for Ty Nant, Nant Hall Road, Prestatyn

1.

11

1.2

1.3

1.4

2.1

Legal Background

This reports aims at determining whether the emerging Site
Development Brief (SDB) for Ty Nant, Prestatyn must be subject to a
(full) Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA) to comply with the
requirements set out in ‘Environmental Assessment of Plans and
Programmes (Wales) Regulations 2004’, henceforth referred to as SEA
Regulations 2004, which transposes European Directive 2001/42/EC
into national legislation.

The SEA Regulations 2004 place an obligation on local authorities to

undertake a SEA on plans and projects;

= that are required for town and country planning or land use; and

= set the framework for future development consent of projects listed
in Annex | or 1l to European Council Directive 85/337/ EEC.

Detailed guidance on the methodology is laid out in ‘A Practical Guide

to the Strategic Environmental Assessment Directive’ (ODPM et al,

2005)

The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 contained the
requirement for local planning authorities to produce a Sustainability
Appraisal (SA) for all local development plan documents. It was
suggested to be of best practise to incorporate the SEA into the
document accompanying SA. The Planning Act 2008 removed the
obligation of carrying out a SA for Supplementary Planning Guidance
(SPG) including SDB without establishing whether a SPG still requires
the SEA.

SEA Regulations 2004, regulation 5(6) further clarifies that a SEA is
not required for (1) a plan or programme which determines the use of a
small area at local level or (2) minor modification to a plan or
programme, unless it has been determined that the plan, programme
or modification is likely to have significant environmental effects or the
Welsh Government determines so.

SEA - screening

Although this Site Development Brief supplements policies from
Denbighshire’s Local Development Plan (LDP) 2006 — 2021, which has
been subject to a full SA (including SEA) appraisal, it is essential to
determine whether this SDB is likely to have a significant effect on the
environment. Natural Resources Wales (NRW) and Cadw, both are
statutory consultation bodies, will be consulted on this document to

Page 1

Page 201



establish whether they agree with the Council’s viewpoint that this SDB
would not be ‘likely to have significant environmental effects’.

2.2

If NRW or Cadw conclude that the plan would be likely to have

significant effects on the environment, listing the reasons for their
viewpoint, the requirements are established for a (full) SEA.

2.3

Table 1 presents the template for this screening process to determine

the requirements for a SEA. It is an amended version of ‘Figure 2 —
Application of the SEA Directive to plan and programmes’ in ‘A
Practical Guide to the Strategic Environmental Assessment’ (2005).

Table 1: Screening for the need for an SEA

development consent of projects in
Annexes | and Il to the EIA Directive?
(Art 3.2(a))

Stage [Y / N] Reason

1. Is the PP (plan or programme) The SDB has been prepared by a

subject to preparation and/or adoption Yes | local planning authority, and is

by a national, regional or local likely to become adopted by the

authority OR prepared by an authority Council.

for adoption through a legislative

procedure by Parliament or

Government? (Art. 2(a))

2. Is the PP required by legislative, The SDB is not required by

regulatory or administrative Yes | legislative provision but amplifies

provisions? (Art. 2(a)) several Denbighshire Local
Development Plan policies and
may become a material
consideration in determining
planning applications.

3. Is the PP prepared for agriculture, The SDB was prepared for town

forestry, fisheries, energy, industry, and country planning and may

transport, waste management, water Yes | guide future land use if adopted.

management, telecommunications,

tourism, town and country planning or

land use, ‘Urban development projects’

AND (identified under Annex Il - 10. (b)

does it set a framework for future Yes | of the Directive) is the most

relevant type of Annex Il project in
relation to the SDB. The SBD site
totals approximately 1.3 hectares,
and therefore exceeds the 0.5
hectare threshold outlined in the
regulations.

The SDB suggests a various uses
(residential, office, hotel, leisure,
retail) that might be appropriate
for the site. At this stage, any
suggested use is not specific.
Once a more specific use is
identified, the planning application
process would ascertain whether
the proposed use (s) are EIA
development by way of the

Page 202

Page 2




standard screening process.

4. Will the PP, in view of its likely N/A

effect on sites, require an assessment N/A

for future development under Article 6

or 7 of the Habitats Directive? (Art.

3.2 (b))

5. Does the PP Determine the use of The SDB will be used to guide

small areas at local level, Yes | development of a small area (1.3
ha) at local level.

OR
The SDB amplifies policies

is it a minor modification of a PP Yes | contained in the Denbighshire

subject to Art. 3.2? (Art. 3.3) Local Development Plan 2006 -
2021 that was subject to a full
SEA as part of the Plan process.

6. Does the PP set the framework for N/A | N/A

future development consent of

projects (not just projects in annexes

to the EIA Directive)? (Art 3.4)

7. Is the PP’s sole purpose to serve N/A | N/A

the national defence or civil

emergency, OR is it a financial or

budget PP, OR is it co-financed by

structural funds or EAGGF

programmes 2000 to 2006/77? (Art 3.8,

3.9)

8. Is it likely to have a significant effect No Please refer to table 2

on the environment? (Art. 3.5) ‘Assessment of the likely
significant effects on the
environment’

Table 2: Assessment of the likely significant effects on the environment

1. The characteristics of plans and programmes, having regard, in particular, to:

SEA Directive Criteria
(Article 3 (5) of directive
2001/42/EC)

Response

Is there a significant
or specific effect
beyond that
anticipated by the
parent policy
framework? Y/N

1a) The degree to which the | The SPD suggests No.
plan or programme sets a acceptable uses and seeks
framework for projects and to raise the standards of

other activities, either with design on the site.

regard to the location,

nature, size and operating

conditions or by allocating

resources.

1b) The degree to which the | The SDB will not influence No.
plan or programme other plans and programmes
influences other plans and but may guide future

programmes including those | development on this

in a hierarchy. particular site.

1c) The relevance of the The SDB refers to the fact No.

plan or programme for the

that all development

Page 203

Page 3




integration of environmental
considerations in particular
with a view to promoting
sustainable development.

proposals should be of high
guality and inclusive design.
Land use proposals,
landscape elements and
design must principally
contribute to the creation of
a sustainable community
and secure the best
environment.

1d) Environmental problems | Specific reference has been | No.
relevant to the plan or included to advise on the
programme. requirements regarding
building works affecting
nature conservation, building
conservation and flood risk.
le) The relevance of the The SDB points out principal | No.

plan or programme for the
implementation of
Community legislation on the
environment (e.g. plans and
programmes linked to waste
management or water
protection).

design aspirations but does
not contain or impose
specific measures. Those
features are expected to be
discussed as part of the
planning application.

2. Characteristics of the effects and of the area likely to be affected, having regard,

in particular, to:

2a) The probability, duration,
frequency and reversibility of
the effects.

The aim of the SDB is to
redevelop the site for the
long-term future.

No.

2b) The cumulative nature of
the effects.

The changes proposed will
occur over a gradual period
of time, and when taken as a
whole, the effects of the SDB
if implemented, will be on a
local/small scale only.

No.

2c) The trans-boundary
nature of the effects.

Indirect effects of
redevelopment as outlined in
the SDB would relate
primarily to highways and
visual impacts.
Environmental
considerations are
considered at 2f.

No.

2d) The risks to human
health or the environment
(e.g. due to accidents).

It cannot be envisaged that
there are any risks to human
health or the environment
beyond legal requirements.
As a small part of the site is
located within flood zone C1,
the SDB outlines the national
policy requirements relating
to potential uses on the site.

No.

2e) The magnitude and
spatial extent of the effects
(geographical area and size

The SDB specifically refers
to the Ty Nant site in
Prestatyn. There may

No.

Page 204

Page 4




of the population likely to be
affected).

positive spill-over effects for
the local community, e.g. job
and leisure opportunities.

2f) The value and
vulnerability of the area likely
to be affected due to:
= special natural
characteristics or
cultural heritage.
= exceeded
environmental quality
standards or limit
values.
= intensive land-use.

Part of the site is located
within the Prestatyn
conservation area, and
adjoins several buildings of
architectural value (including
listed buildings). There are
also Tree Preservation
Orders adjoining the site.
The SDB highlights the
importance of (and
measures for) any
redevelopment proposal
preserving and enhancing
the setting and character of
the surrounding area.

The SDB area does not
include any environmentally
related designations. The
SDB aims to improve
environmental quality by re-
developing a brownfield site
to high environmental
standards.

The site is a brownfield site
that was previously used for
car parking and office
accommodation. It is not
considered any potential re-
development and
subsequent use of the site
would lead to a more

intensive land use of the site.

No.

29) The effects on areas or
landscapes which have a
recognised national,
Community or international
protection status.

The area affected by
proposals contained in the
SDB is not covered by any
national etc. designation.

No.

3. Conclusion

3.1

a (full) Strategic Environment Assessment.

Page 205

The Council awaits responses from statutory consultation bodies:
Natural Resources Wales and Cadw before concluding whether the
site development brief for Ty Nant, Nant Hall Road, Prestatyn requires




This page is intentionally left blank



CYNGOR

Sir Ddinbych
Denbighshire
v COUNTY CgOUNCIL

Appendix 3

Draft Site Development Brief:
Ty Nant, Nant Hall Road, Prestatyn
27™ January 2015

Equality Impact Assessment




Draft Site Development Brief: Ty Nant, Nant Hall
Road, Prestatyn

Contact: Angela Loftus

Updated: 27/01/15

1. What type of proposal / decision is being assessed?

| A new or revised policy

2.  What is the purpose of this proposal / decision, and what
change (to staff or the community) will occur as aresult of its
implementation?

The proposal is to carry out a public consultation on the Draft Site Development
Brief for the site at Ty Nant, Nant Hall Road, Prestatyn. The Site Development
Brief supports the planning policies contained within the Denbighshire Local
Development Plan and sets out the principles of development for the site in order
to guide future proposals. If adopted, following consultation, the Site
Development Brief will be used in determining applications for planning
permission on the site.

3. Does this proposal / decision require an equality impact

assessment? If no, please explain why.
Please note: if the proposal will have an impact on people (staff or the
community) then an equality impact assessment must be undertaken

The proposal is to carry out public consultation on guidance
relating to development on the Ty Nant site. The content of
the Site Development Brief does not set policy but
consolidates and provides site-specific guidance on the
relevant LDP policies. The LDP, including all policies,
underwent a full EqlA prior to adoption.

Page 208
1



4. Please provide a summary of the steps taken, and the
information used, to carry out this assessment, including any

engagement undertaken
(Please refer to section 1 in the toolkit for guidance)

The Denbighshire LDP is the overarching policy framework under which all Site
Development Briefs sit and this underwent an EglA prior to adoption by Council.

5.  Will this proposal / decision have a positive impact on any of
the protected characteristics (age; disability; gender-
reassignment; marriage and civil partnership; pregnancy and

maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; and sexual orientation)?
(Please refer to section 1 in the toolkit for a description of the protected
characteristics)

| No

6.  Will this proposal / decision have a disproportionate negative
Impact on any of the protected characteristics (age; disability;
gender-reassignment; marriage and civil partnership;
pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; and
sexual orientation)?

| No

7. Has the proposal / decision been amended to eliminate or
reduce any potential disproportionate negative impact? If no,
please explain why.

| | No applicable

8. Have you identified any further actions to address and / or
monitor any potential negative impact(s)?

] | Not applicable




9. Declaration

Every reasonable effort has been made to eliminate or reduce any potential
disproportionate impact on people sharing protected characteristics. The actual impact
of the proposal / decision will be reviewed at the appropriate stage.

| June 2015 |

Angela Loftus 27/01/15

Please note you will be required to publish the outcome of the equality impact
assessment if you identify a substantial likely impact.

Page 210




	Agenda
	1 APOLOGIES
	Voting updated 1212

	2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
	4 MINUTES
	5 APPLICATION NO. 01/2014/0705/PF - ST DAVIDS CHURCH, ST DAVIDS LANE AND BROOKHOUSE ROAD DENBIGH
	Cycle track - 2014-0705

	6 APPLICATION NO. 01/2014/1390 - 51 MYTTON PARK, DENBIGH
	51 Mytton Park - 2014-1390

	7 APPLICATION NO. 18/2014/0793/PF - PENTRE MAWR COUNTRY HOUSE HOTEL, LLANDYRNOG, DENBIGH
	Pentre Mawr 2014-0793

	8 APPLICATION NO. 18/2014/0794/LB - PENTRE MAWR COUNTRY HOUSE HOTEL, LLANDYRNOG, DENBIGH
	Pentre Mawr 2014-0794

	9 APPLICATION NO. 21/2014/0032/PF - CLWYD FOREST, MAESHAFN
	Big Covert - 2014-32

	10 APPLICATION NO.  21/2014/0096/PC - CLWYD FOREST, MAESHAFN
	Big Covert 2014-0096

	11 APPLICATION NO. 24/2014/1246/PS - CRAIG Y DDYWART QUARRY, RUTHIN
	Appendix 1 - 2014-1246

	12 TY NANT DEVELOPMENT BRIEF
	App 1 Draft Ty Nant Development Brief
	Appx 2 SEA Screening
	Appx 3  EqIA




